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Our First 10 Years

A new statutory body to encompass technical training
for diverse trades and industries

HMBILEEERE RETEXREHBEEHBE

1982

The VTC was initiated under the
Vocational Training Council Ordinance
as a statutory body to provide a
comprehensive system of vocational
education and training (VET) in

Hong Kong to enhance the quality of
the city’s workforce and advance the
growth of industry and commerce.
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1984

The first Training Centre Complex in
Kowloon Bay housing five industrial
training centres opened to provide
craft and operative courses.
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1986

Two new technical institutes in Sha Tin
and Tuen Mun were established,
which, together with the five institutes
taken over from the Government,
marked a great leap in the expansion
of technical education at technician
and craft level.
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1991

The VTC further extended its
vocational training to students with
disabilities with the inauguration of
the Skills Centre in Tuen Mun.
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Our Second 10 Years

Birth of IVE extending vocational education

to sub-degree level
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1993

The VTC set up technical colleges in
Tsing Yi and Chai Wan, to take on
Higher Diploma courses transferred
from the former Polytechnics, marking
a new chapter that expanded the
provision of learning opportunities at
sub-degree level.
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1996

The first cohort of Higher Diploma
students graduated.
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1997

The Hong Kong team led by the VTC
participated in the WorldSkills
Competition for the first time, to
benchmark the local skill standards in
the international arena.
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1999

The Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education (IVE) was established by
merging the two former Technical
Colleges and seven former Technical
Institutes under the VTC, heralding a
new era of vocational education for
young people.
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2000

The Chinese Cuisine Training Institute
(CCTI), one of the Government’s
Capital Millennium Projects, was
opened to offer formal systematic
training in Chinese culinary arts.
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Our Third 10 Years

A full-fledged vocational education and training provider

offering top-up degree programmes
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2003

The School for Higher and
Professional Education (SHAPE) was
established to offer top-up degree
programmes, providing aspiring VTC
Higher Diploma graduates with a clear
path to enhance their qualifications.

The Institute of Professional
Education and Knowledge (PEAK) was
founded to offer a wide range of
corporate and professional training for
in-service workers up to degree level
and beyond.
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2004

The Youth College was first established
to provide a valued alternative study
pathway for Secondary 3 school
leavers and non-engaged youths.
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2006

The VTC successfully went through an
institutional review and programme
area accreditation conducted by the
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational
Qualifications, becoming the first
vocational training organisation to
obtain such recognition.
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2007

The Hong Kong Design Institute
(HKDI), a centre of excellence in
design education, admitted its first
cohort of students.
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2008

The Integrated Vocational
Development Centre (IVDC) was
founded to offer a wide variety of
retraining and skill-development
programmes to people with diverse
backgrounds.
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Into our Fourth 10 Years

Advance towards seamless progression pathways with

the debut of in-house degree programmes
BNEARE HEBDETEENASRER

2009

In collaboration with the UK’s
University of Warwick, the WMG
School for Professional Development
was set up to offer master degree
programmes.
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2011

T Hotel, Hong Kong's first-ever training
hotel operated by students, was
launched to provide students with
real-life experience in hotel services.
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2012

The Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong
(THEI) was founded to provide the
VTC’s own vocationally-oriented degree
programmes, extending the VET value
chain from craft and operative level to
technologist at degree level.

VTCH Y &S ERHEHE Lt (THE)
BRUEEARTINETBURE &
—SEFREERBENA B FH
FERTE HYUEHETI  BEER
RERmEEEL By -

Government funding was secured for
the development of the International
Culinary Institute to produce quality
manpower in the culinary arts,
hospitality and wine business. An
iconic new campus will be located
adjacent to CCTIl and Hospitality
Industry Training and Development
Centre (HITDC), to create synergy
effect in serving as a wellspring of
culinary talents.
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VTC took our place on international
stage through partnering with
renowned international institutes to
organise signature events and
participating in global competitions.
These included “German Design
Standards — From Bauhaus to
Globalisation” Exhibition held by HKDI
and IVE (Lee Wai Lee) in collaboration
with the red dot Design Museum and
Die Neue Sammlung (The International
Design Museum Munich), and student
participation in World Solar Challenge
and the WorldSkills Competition.
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The 30th Anniversary of the VTC
marked its longstanding commitment,
achievements and excellence in VET.
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CORPORATE
INFORMATION

BEEN

About the Vocational Training Council

Established in 1982, the Vocational Training Council
(VTC) is the largest vocational education, training and
professional development group in Hong Kong. Every
year, our comprehensive range of pre-employment and in-
service programmes provide about one quarter of a million
students with valuable credentials, including internationally
recognised qualifications.

Members of the VTC Group

Technological and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong (THEI)

Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge
(PEAK)

School for Higher and Professional Education
(SHAPE)

Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (IVE)

Hong Kong Design Institute (HKDI)

Hospitality Industry Training and Development
Centre (HITDC)

Chinese Cuisine Training Institute (CCTI)

Maritime Services Training Institute (MSTI)

Youth College

Pro-Act by VTC

Integrated Vocational Development Centre (IVDC)

Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School (YCM)

Shine Skills Centre
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Vision

To be the leading provider of vocational education and

training in the Region

Mission

® To provide a valued choice to school leavers and adult
learners to acquire the values, knowledge and skills for

lifelong learning and enhanced employability

® To provide valued supports to industries for their

manpower development

Core Values

To serve with integrity

To be client-focused

To strive for excellence

To be entrepreneurial

To forge partnerships with stakeholders
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

BiEER

The VTC is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance and has always recognised the importance of
good governance to its effective operation.

Our corporate structure has clear lines of accountability and
responsibility, with authority delegated within clearly defined
parameters. The VTC's management and committees
operate on three levels:

(@) The Council, together with its committees and boards,
is responsible for macro-level management;

(b) The Executive Director, supported by the management
Caucus and various committees, is responsible for day-
to-day management; and

(c) The Vocational Education and Training (VET) Advisory
Committee and VET Academic Board, with its
committees and boards, provide advice and oversee
the management of academic matters.

The Council, the highest authority in the VTC, consists of 22
members, four of whom are senior Government officials, and
18 non-governmental representatives from the industrial,
commercial, service, labour and educational sectors. All
members are appointed by the Chief Executive of the
HKSAR. The Executive Director also sits on the Council as an
ex-officio member.

The Council is assisted by 21 training boards and five
general committees. Together, they advise the Government
on the labour market conditions in their respective sectors
and help to ensure that the VET keeps pace with projected
manpower requirements. In addition, they formulate precise
specifications for the main jobs in different industrial
sectors, and advise the VTC on curriculum development,
course planning and quality assurance.
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The VTC’s day-to-day management comes under the purview
of the Executive Director, an ex-officio member of the Council
serving on its five functional committees. The Executive
Director reports to the Council via its Chairman.

The Executive Director is supported by the Caucus team,
which guides and manages the overall operation of the
VTC services. The Executive Director also chairs the
Quality Assurance Steering Committee and Strategic Plan
Implementation Steering Group.

Chaired by a prominent industry leader, the VET Advisory
Committee consists of members from industry, education
and the public sector. Its function is to advise the Council
on the broad direction and strategy of the VTC’s academic
development, and its provision of quality VET to meet
projected manpower requirements. Chaired by the Executive
Director, the VET Academic Board formulates major
academic management policies.
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CHAIRMAN'’S

TREFE

2012 was an exciting and eventful year for the Vocational
Training Council (VTC) as we celebrated our 30th anniversary
with a host of special events and new initiatives. We have
taken this opportunity to reflect on the difference we have
made to Hong Kong’'s human resources development since
1982 and lay out our vision for the future. The milestone
year marked our 30 years as a vital part of the education
landscape and also took us into new strategic directions and
new horizons.

Since its foundation, the VTC has been faithful to its mission
of enriching the quality of Hong Kong's workforce. Starting
off with five Technical Institutes dedicated to technical
education and training, the VTC has evolved into a well-
established professional development group in Hong Kong,
playing an instrumental role in raising the quality and
competitiveness of Hong Kong’s workforce.

Throughout the journey, the VTC has taken steps to
respond more swiftly to the changing education and training
landscape as well as manpower development needs, and
has developed into a vibrant, professional and creative
organisation. In this Report, | would like to highlight some of
the VTC’s achievements in the past year as well as its long-
term objective of developing a globally competitive workforce
to build a stronger economic future of Hong Kong.
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Education has long been described as a strong impetus
for growth, which helps generate the skills and knowledge
required for a capable and productive economy. With
increased globalisation and shifting demands for a
diversified workforce with varied skills, vocational education
and training has never been more important to economic
success. The VTC takes pride in playing a key role in
empowering people with knowledge and bridging the
gap between student needs and employer expectations,
enhancing the overall sustainable competitiveness of Hong
Kong.

At the VTC, we recognise the importance and value of
individuals and diversity. To this end, we are committed
to fostering the intellectual and cultural growth and civic
awareness of our students, preparing them to make
significant contributions to their communities in the
Region and beyond. In 2012/13, we not only embraced
internationalisation as one of our key missions but also
made major strides in realising this objective. In addition
to admitting non-local students, we have strengthened our
international arm and cultivated internationalism on campus.
We also sought out collaborative opportunities regionally
and internationally in student and staff exchanges, research,
internship programmes and other areas of interests, while
building close ties with institutions and organisations in the
Mainland.
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Strengthening Our Core Values

On top of taking an international view of our work, we also
devoted great efforts to live up to our core values — nurturing
professionals for Hong Kong and the Region through the
provision of high quality programmes and services. Guided
by our second eight-year Strategic Plan, we have further
enriched our academic programmes and in-service training
offerings to ensure that our graduates are equipped with the
necessary and up-to-date knowledge, skills and competence
needed for success.

Some of the most prominent examples included the opening
of the Technological and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong (THEI) in September 2012, offering vocationally-
oriented degree programmes to the first cohort of Hong
Kong Diploma of Secondary Education (HKDSE) graduates,
and the launch of newly designed Higher Diploma (HD)
programmes which promote work-integrated learning through
industrial attachments, placement and projects.

On the in-service front, the professional certificate courses
tailored for catering industry professionals were launched
through the VTC Tao Miao Institute. We also introduced the
Pilot Traineeship Scheme aiming to help youths develop their
career through practical workplace training complemented by
relevant study programmes.

The launch of “One Examination, Multiple Certification”
System in collaboration with the Guangdong Occupational
Skill Testing Authority is another shining example.
Representing the interconnection of vocational skill
assessment schemes, the system marked an important
milestone in the efforts to raise workers’ professionalism
and competitive advantages.

Building the Future

Partnership is always at the heart of the VTC’s work.
Aiming to become a trusted partner of the industries,
we have been forging mutually beneficial and lifelong
development relationships. During the year, we continued
to collaborate with Hong Kong’s chambers, trade
associations, professional bodies and prominent industry
partners to develop a quality workforce and support
industry development. We are delighted to have received
the Best SME’s Partner Award for seven consecutive years
by the Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium
Business.
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Globalisation and the changing socio-economic landscape
bring new challenges and opportunities. As with many
advanced economies, Hong Kong faces a rapidly ageing
population and dwindling workforce. Nurturing young talents
and assisting them to unleash their full potential becomes
crucial. A pragmatic framework has to be in place to close
the skills gap and ensure young people can be gainfully
employed. To cope with challenges and cater for new
demands, we will continue to capitalise on our strengths
and drive innovation in our curriculum and offerings, as
well as joining hands with industry and employers on skills
development. Some new initiatives such as the International
Culinary Institute, products and services in support of ageing
population and new training schemes are in the pipeline.

As we embark on our new journey, | would like to take this
opportunity to pay tribute to the Council members, as well
as the Government, industry partners and various sectors of
society for their staunch support, which has facilitated the
implementation of various works and initiatives of the VTC.
Thanks also go to all colleagues, students and alumni for
their support and unwavering pursuit of excellence.

With the concerted efforts of all VTC members and our
valued partners, | am confident that we can succeed in
catalysing skills development and nurturing even more
competent professionals for a better and sustainable Hong
Kong.

Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman
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DIRECTOR'’S
REVIEW

HITHET/HEE

| was privileged to become the Executive Director of the
Vocational Training Council (VTC) in January 2013, a time
when it had already achieved 30 years of excellence through
an unwavering commitment to nurturing talent and industry.
It is my pleasure to present this Review, which summarises
the results of the hard work and achievements made by all
members of the VTC community.

30 Years of Excellence

The year 2012 was the 30th anniversary of the VTC. After
three decades of development, the VTC has become a fully-
fledged organisation with more than 5,500 staff and a
student population of 250,000 a year, a profound success
indeed. During the year, a series of commemoratory
programmes under the theme of “Partnering into the
Future” were organised, aiming to raise awareness of the
importance of vocational education and training (VET). We
have to thank all our supporters, friends, students and
alumni who made this year truly spectacular. The celebratory
activities enabled us to further cement our ties with all our
partners.

Today’s youth are tomorrow’s future. Opening opportunities
for students and empowering them to build their strengths
and confidence are our first priority. Last year, we set up
the VTC Student Development Foundation which aims to
provide more than 50,000 full-time students with more
learning opportunities to enhance their job readiness. It
was encouraging that we managed to raise handsome
contributions through a series of fundraising activities.
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Promoting Internationalisation

While celebrating our past achievements, we at the VTC have
to press ahead and continuously reinvent our strategies
to fulfil our mission and better serve our community. With
that in mind, we have supported Government policies
and proactively responded to industry needs to provide
diversified progression pathways for young people and
promote lifelong learning. A major part of our work in
2012/13 was promoting internationalisation.

Since 2010, the Government has been stepping up its
efforts to enhance Hong Kong’'s status as a regional
education hub through education reform as well as
internationalisation and diversification. Echoing the
Government’s call and in line with the changing landscape,
we began to admit non-local students to the Higher Diploma
(HD) in 2012/13. At the same time, we built networks
with Mainland and overseas institutes and corporations
and strengthened our international capability, which is
essential to the internationalisation of our programmes and
institutions. Exchange activities covering familiarisation
visits, exchange camps, enrichment programmes and
industrial attachments were organised for more than 6,000
students in the year.

Student Awards
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Enriching Vocational Education and Training

The key to our success lies in the quality of our VET
programmes and teaching. During the year, we continued to
innovate and expand the breadth and depth of our VET.

Starting from September 2012, the Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEi) has offered six
VTC’s degree programmes, which are vocationally-oriented in
niche areas of demand by industry. Responding to industry
needs, a number of new HD programmes have also been
introduced.

Building Effective Learning Environment

We at the VTC are committed to maximising student
potential growth through an excellent teaching and learning
environment. In this regard, we devoted much effort to
upgrade our facilities and infrastructure during the year.
Notable examples include the opening of the Wofoo
Foundation Dr Joseph Lee Whole Person Development
Education Centre and BOCHK Financial Services Learning
Centre.

Other major capital projects such as construction of
International Culinary Institute, student dormitory at IVE
(Tsing Yi) and THEi new campus are in good progress.

Deepening our Relationship with Partners

During the year, we also enhanced our collaborations with
industry partners and signed Memoranda of Understanding
with industry partners including the MTR Corporation Limited,
SGS Hong Kong and the Trade Development Council.

Our partnership also took the form of strategic alliances.
During the year, we introduced the “One Examination,
Multiple Certification” System in collaboration with the
Guangdong Occupational Skill Testing Authority, whereby
successful candidates would be simultaneously certified
by the Mainland, Hong Kong and international professional
organisations. With the new system in place, we hope to
boost the professionalism of workers in Hong Kong and the
Mainland, thus contributing further to the manpower and
economic development of our nation.
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Moving Forward

Achievements as such did not come easily. | would also like
to thank all partners, including our community, for supporting
and working together with us in the past 30 years. Our
achievements would not have been possible without their
contribution. As we move into a new era, we will continue
to shoulder the responsibility of nurturing our younger
generation and leading them to success.

My appreciation goes to each and every member of the VTC
for their passion, professionalism and commitment, without
which we would not be where we are now.

Carrie YAU, GBS, JP
Executive Director
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HIGHLIGHTS
OF THE YEAR
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Students and teachers of the Hong Kong Institute
of Vocational Education (IVE) and the Hong Kong
Design Institute (HKDI) swept several prizes at the
Hong Kong ICT Awards 2012 with their animation,
multimedia installations and computer software.
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SOPHIE, the solar-powered car developed by students
and teachers of the Department of Engineering, IVE
(Tsing Yi), clinched the first runner-up of the Solar
Prototype Class of Shell Eco-marathon Asia 2012 in
Malaysia.
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The Opening Ceremony of the WorldSkills Hong Kong
Competition 2012 kicked off contests in 22 trades,
testing the professional skills of young people.
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The VTC organised the Orientation Day for non-
Chinese speaking students at IVE (Haking Wong).

VTCIFEE B2 AT AR IVE (FEreik) 817 -




The BOCHK Financial Services Learning Centre was
jointly established by the IVE and Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited in IVE (Sha Tin).

IVEERRERTT(FE)BRAREHE - RIVECAHH)
P IREFB T RIRFEEF L

The Hong Kong team of the Window Display Design
trade, comprising graduates of the HKDI, won the
championship for the second time in a row at the
2012 Guangzhou/Hong Kong/Macao/Chengdu Youth
Skills Competition.

R2012F 8B RA ST FHRAEFETY  HKDIEEARRK
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The VTC participated in the InnoCarnival 2012
held in the Hong Kong Science Park, where some
20 innovative products of technology created by
the teachers and students of IVE, HKDI and the
Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong
Kong (THEI) were showcased.

VTC 2HNE BRI ERELBITHAIF R ZFE2012 -
BHL204HIVE - HKDI R E B a2 SR EHE 2t
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Over 17,000 graduates received their awards at
the 2012 VTC Graduation Ceremony. On the same
occasion, Mr. Eddie NG, Secretary for Education,
conferred the VTC Honorary Fellowship on six
distinguished personalities.
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The VTC named the newly established student
development centre the Wofoo Foundation Dr Joseph
Lee Whole Person Development Education Centre to
honour the dedicated support of Dr. Joseph LEE.
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In appreciation of the generous donation from Bright
Future Charitable Foundation, the Hall of IVE (Morrison
Hill) was re-named the Bright Future Hall.
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The “Design Dialogue: Hong Kong Culture 2013”
gathered experts of the cultural, arts and design
fields to share insights and experience. The opening
ceremony was followed by the first seminar of Mr.
Henry STEINER.
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The Shine Skills Centre held a prize presentation
ceremony on the Inclusive Design Contest of
Technical Aids to honour the winners and presented
appreciation certificates to 10 caring employers in
recognition of their staunch support in providing
employment for people with disabilities.

RAEREERTORTEREABEBBRMRHLE
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The VTC joined hands with the Guangdong
Occupational Skill Testing Authority and the
International Professional Standards Network to
launch the “One Examination, Multiple Certification”
System.

VTC BEREBERGEETEET O LERERRE
GRBRETFAE L A=/ 58 -

The VTC hosted the annual reception themed
“Building Confidence, Achieving Excellence”. Guest
of Honour, Mrs. Carrie LAM, Chief Secretary for
Administration, joined a full house of 400 guests
from the Government, industry and VTC alumni.
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VTC 30TH
ANNIVERSARY

VTC 30 & &F

A Proud History of Excellence

The history of the Vocational Training Council (VTC) can be
traced back to 1936 when the first technical college, the
predecessor of Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education
(Morrison Hill), opened its doors to offer technical training
courses.

In the early 1980s, the Government led a determined effort
to establish a statutory body to nurture a quality workforce
for the industries. The VTC was thus officially established
under the Vocational Training Council Ordinance enacted
in 1982. Growing from a group of five technical institutes
with 35,000 students to a fully-fledged organisation of 13
member institutions, the VTC is now the largest vocational
education and training (VET) provider in Hong Kong, providing
valuable credentials for over a quarter of a million students
annually.

Since its inception, the VTC has been serving as a cradle for
nurturing pillars of society. Throughout its development, the
VTC has been firmly anchored to the community — building
strong ties with all sectors of industry and commerce to
provide them with services tailored to their needs. Over the
years, the VTC has cultivated generations of professionals in
various sectors through the provision of high quality VET that
prepares students from diverse backgrounds to contribute
and serve as backbone of today’s complex and globalised
economy.

With its ability to nurture all-round talent and a multifaceted
capacity for knowledge transfer to the local economy,
supporting local networks and linking them with global ones,
the VTC has made a vital contribution to the success and
sustainable development of Hong Kong.
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Partnering into the Future

2012 was a remarkable year for the VTC as it marked
its 30th anniversary and invaluable partnership with
stakeholders.

More than 20 celebratory events under an umbrella theme
of “Partnering into the Future” were organised during the
year. By inviting staunch supporters, partners and friends,
we celebrated the past achievements and reaffirmed the
ongoing commitment of the VTC while looking into the future.
The celebration, including many special events and campus-
wide activities, was well received and considered a major
success.

VTC Student Development Foundation

With the aim of providing students with more learning
opportunities to unleash their full potential, the VTC
established a Student Development Foundation in 2012 and
took the opportunity of its 30th anniversary to raise funds for
this cause.

Thanks to the generous support of the donors, the
Foundation has raised significant funds to support the
development needs of more than 50,000 full-time students
since its establishment.
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VTC 30th Anniversary
Kick-off Ceremony

The VTC’s anniversary celebrations
got under way, with Mr. John TSANG,
Financial Secretary as the Guest of
Honour.
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» Toy Image DIY Desigh Competition >
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Cultural Fetes 2012

The Hong Kong Design Institute (HKDI)
organised the Toy Image DIY Design
Competition aiming at exploring
potential young design talent and
promoting collaboration between the
design industry and the community.
About 100 secondary students
selected for the final round made use
of colours and accessories to style the
5-foot Qee Bear models to showcase
the cultural identity of each of the 18
districts of Hong Kong.
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A three-day event under the theme
of “Unveiling Local Culture” was
organised by IVE (Kwai Chung) to raise
public awareness of the local history
and culture.

A+ X LEZE2012

B IVE(SE) B - AT AL S E
%] ATHE - AB=X  MARRYA
S0 52 SO O3B <



22 APRm™A

» “Celebration with Beethoven's
Music” Fundraising Concert

Under the baton of Dr. Henry SHEK, the
VTC Symphony Orchestra and Chorus
presented renowned symphonic pieces
of Beethoven to an audience of over
1,500 people.
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» Youth Construction Discovery
Challenge

The VTC and Construction Industry
Council organised the Youth Construction
Discovery Challenge to enhance secondary
school students’ understanding of the
construction industry. The event concluded
with a final assessment and award
presentation ceremony.
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» “Partnering into the Future”
Fundraising Dinner

Over 500 guests from the local
business, industry, education and training
communities gathered at the Regal
Airport Hotel Hong Kong to attend the
dinner, which raised HK$4 million for the
VTC Student Development Foundation.
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» Hong Kong Young Chef Chinese

Culinary Competition

A Chinese culinary competition was
held at the Chinese Cuisine Training
Institute (CCTI), providing a platform
for young chefs to showcase their
creativity and culinary skKills.
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“D&AD Awards 2012 - Winners”
Exhibition

The HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)
joined hands with the Design and
Art Directions (D&AD), an education
charity in the UK, to host a three-week
exhibition. Showcasing the best award-
winning works, the exhibition attracted
over 5,000 visitors.

ZEE D&AD &5t K B S K88 2012
- BRIERRE

HKDI & IVE(ZEF|) HERESHE
HIEDRADEFERRE - EHZHE
BESHESR  ARZANESHRSIE
5,000 A =28 -

16 nov +-5

» VTC 30th Anniversary Fundraising

Gala - “Innovative Experience with
Manchu Han Imperial Feast”

A fundraising dinner under a special
theme “Manchu Han Imperial Feast”
was organised at the CCTI, providing
participants with an innovative
experience of Imperial Feast.
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» Partnering into the Future

- VTC 30th Anniversary Walkathon

With the presence of officiating guests
including Mr. Timothy FOK Tsun-
ting, Mr. HO Hau-cheung, Chairman
of Sha Tin District Council, and VTC
senior management, the Walkathon
was held with the support of over
4,800 VTC students, alumni, staff
and industry partners, raising more
than HK$2 million for the VTC Student
Development Foundation.
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» VTC 30th Anniversary Closing

Ceremony and Carnival

Bringing together industry partners,
teachers, students, alumni and
colleagues of the VTC, the VTC 30th
Anniversary Carnival held at the Ma
On Shan Sports Ground marked the
conclusion of the year-long Anniversary
Programme. At the event, over 1,000
participants joined hands to form the
VTC 30th Anniversary logo.
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» VTC 30th Anniversary Awards

To honour those who have made
significant contributions to the
advancement of VET, the VTC
presented the 30th Anniversary Awards
to 56 exceptional individuals and
organisations.

Dr The Honourable Andrew LEUNG was
conferred the VTC 30th Anniversary
Lifetime Achievement Award in recognition
of his valuable contributions to local
industry, VET as well as the VTC.
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EMBRACING
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In today’s globalised world, the internationalisation of
education is vital to ensure the competitiveness of Hong
Kong. The Government has been driving internationalisation
and diversification of education across different spheres in
recent years, aiming to consolidate Hong Kong’s role as a
regional education hub.

In support of the Government’s move, the Vocational
Training Council (VTC) has embraced internationalisation
as a shared focus on driving Hong Kong as a leading
education hub. In the past year, we have stepped up efforts
on internationalisation at all levels. The International
Development Division was established in March 2013 to
further develop the strategies and operational structure to
realise the goals.

In 2012/13, the VTC welcomed the first batch of non-local
students. Students from different parts of the world including
the Mainland have been enrolled to the Higher Diploma (HD)
programmes during the year.

Our internationalisation efforts also include curricula
enhancement, student and staff exchanges, overseas field
trips and participation in international competitions. Through
these activities, we hope to forge a culture and environment
conducive to internationalisation and provide opportunities
for students to acquire cross-cultural work experience and
enhance their international outlook.
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At the VTC, students have been given ample opportunities to
move from the classroom into real-world practice, expanding
their global perspective.

In 2012/13, there were more than 6,000 students joining
programmes in the Mainland while about 300 students
participated in overseas visits covering Japan, Korea,
Macao, Singapore, Germany, Italy and the UK. More than
230 students of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education (IVE) participated in industrial attachment
programmes in Mainland companies in various provinces.
Twenty students from the Business Administration Discipline
also participated in a 40-day industrial attachment
programme in Singapore.

In June 2012, 200 local and international students from
around the world converged on the HKDI campus for the
World Design Summer Camp. As one of the signature
programmes of 2012 Hong Kong Design Year, the 11-day
event facilitated cultural exchange and sharing of views on
design through a series of events including design master
talks, seminars and workshops, and a study visit to Pearl
River Delta.

We also joined hands with the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology (MIT) to organise the MIT Summer Workshop
2012 under the MIT-China Educational Technology Initiative
to promote cultural exchange between American students
and Chinese students. Over 70 VTC students participated in
the workshop and benefited from this invaluable opportunity
to explore other cultures and expand horizons.
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During the year, we also sought to encourage an
international perspective among our staff and enhance our
teaching capabilities and academic standards by inviting
overseas visiting fellows for teaching and research activities
as well as participation in overseas events.

In May 2012, we took part in Guangzhou’s International
Vocational Education Forum, which provided an excellent
platform for our staff to learn from peers and share
views and knowledge on vocational education with
industry experts. The Master Lecture Series and Visiting
Fellows/Creators-in-residence Scheme organised by the
HKDI also offered significant opportunities for both our staff
and students to learn from world-renowned designers and
practitioners from overseas.

The VTC also organised the National Study Programme
at Tsinghua University for the third time in June 2012.
Through the programme, staff members were given the
chance to learn from Mainland government officials,
renowned academics and professors of Tsinghua and Peking
Universities and other experts on the latest economic, social
and cultural development in the Mainland.
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To promote students’ all-round development and extend
their international outlook, we encourage them to participate
in local and overseas competitions such as the WorldSkills
Hong Kong, WorldSkills Competition and Robocon Contest.

In 2012, a team of teaching staff and students from the
Department of Engineering at IVE competed at the Shell Eco-
marathon Asia 2012 in Malaysia with their self-developed
solar-powered Vehicle SOPHIE and brought back the first
runner-up award. Our students participated in Guangzhou/
Hong Kong/Macao/Chengdu Youth Skills Competition in the
same year, and won the championship of the Window Display
Design trade.

To facilitate staff and student mobility, the VTC has actively
established strategic alliances and sought partnerships with
like-minded institutions.

During the year, we have entered into Memoranda of
Understanding with JTB (HK) Ltd., Hackney Community
College, UK, and University of West London, UK for staff
and student exchange collaborations. Several signature
exhibitions including “German Design Standards — From
Bauhaus to Globalisation”, D&AD Awards 2012 — Winners
and Colours of Asia were organised by HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai
Lee) in collaboration with renowned international institutes
and organisations.
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The VTC continued to forge close relationships with Mainland
universities and businesses, which provided students with
opportunities for internships, service learning, research and
training. A number of collaborative agreements were signed
in 2012/13. These included Memoranda of Understanding
on training and exchange programmes with Hebei Education
Department, Ningbo Education Bureau and the Guangdong
Occupational Skill Testing Authority.

At the same time, we sought to contribute to the
development of vocational education and training (VET) in
the Mainland. One example was our collaboration with the
Guangdong Occupational Skill Testing Authority. During the
year, VTC continued to render advice to Guangdong Industrial
Design Institute (partner institute of Hong Kong Design
Institute) in Nanhai in the areas of curriculum development,
management structure and quality assurance. A number of
exchange activities were organised for students, such as
design workshop hosted by overseas master and industrial
attachments in Nanhai region, as well as visits for Hong
Kong industry associations.

Collaborations with our Macao counterparts also gathered
pace in 2012/13. Echoing the Macao government’s
endeavours to help upgrade its workers’ skills and
capabilities, the VTC continued to respond to the training
needs of our partners — the Labour Affairs Bureau of Macao,
the Youth Affairs Bureau of Macao and others — in the areas
of Vocational English Programme, Professional Diploma in
Property Management, ProTools Certification and Incubation
Programmes and other experience sharing sessions.

We also received a multitude of visitors, with over 50
delegations of approximately 2,200 delegates from the
Mainland during the year.

m lllll A

VIC BB NI AN N TR IRAE - B
BERBTHEESE  RHGESEE - HAIXBEB K
H b tFFl 0 2012/13F A - FAFIERZ KA
WIBIEK G 1EH S BRETILEREE -
BERTHER T%%H&%TSE@E%E?E%
RORE A FRT

HR AN EEHEFINERE - ZKMIFKRAN
SFF o Pl ER AR E R EEEIRED L
BIE REREERNXRNEENERITHE
HETEIIZER (BENERFT LR E ERR)
REEEREER  TEEBNEZRET
HHEZ RRAE 2L RERME
2 BIEBIINKENERET TEY BEIHEE
S REHEBNTEREL2EHEE -

VIC TMEERFMIBUNECR © BIRABMEALA
Blg kA g ﬁﬁ Wamzu3¢%6ﬁ&
BTERR - BA#HEEEERELENKHE
a1E - BH Hﬂz%“’ﬁ %%Eﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
Y EmET AProToolsiBEERERTEEE
8 WERREMRRIEE -

Vi

FA - FAES T B 50 AR 5 E E L 4
2,200 ZNRIHER AL -

*llﬁ. HiEiREn

-‘l.

‘\"‘"H‘ l;iql '"l__

£

MW, ~ R CEE §2dmnE



ENRICHING THE

BEZARAN UEHEEFE

;ﬁ'

We have always been committed to providing students of all
ages with valuable and high quality VET. The VTC’s awards,
pegging at levels from sub-degree, degree to master, form a
seamless progression pathway for students, enabling them
to achieve their full potential.

Starting from September 2012, the Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEi), a new member
institution, has offered VTC degree programmes to the
first cohort of Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education
(HKDSE) graduates, adding to the value chain of VET.

More degree programmes are offered by THEi in September
2013, such as Landscape Architecture, Chinese Culinary
Arts and Management, and Health Care. These will be
complemented by applied research and consultancy that
will further distinguish THEi as an institution that produces
graduates, research and consultancy that can help industry
development.

In its first year of operation, THEi secured external research
grants from its partners and industry sponsorships from
Kentec, Taiwan, to carry out R&D on sustainable and
renewable energy, and Supremacy, Hong Kong, for work on
waste recycling and resource recovery respectively.
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In addition to offering new degree programmes through
THEI, a number of new courses and enriched modules are
introduced in areas of growth and strong demand, such
as engineering, construction, health care and elderly care
services.

We are also extending the learning experiences and
qualifications offered to students through collaborations
with local, Mainland and overseas institutions and
universities. Top-up degree programmes are offered to
meet the aspirations of HD graduates and other sub-degree
holders for higher qualifications. Moreover, master degree
programmes are offered in partnership with The University of
Warwick.

Alongside these changes, we are also reviewing our
curriculum to ensure our programmes are relevant to
the diverse needs of our students. Revamped HD and
Foundation Diploma (Level 3) programmes were introduced
in 2012/13 for the first batch of HKDSE graduates. The
new HD programmes have been developed with enriched
language training, whole person development, green
features as well as a mandatory component of not less than
90 hours of industrial attachment to enhance students’
work-readiness and employability.
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The VTC’s industry partners also enable students to connect
to the workplace via mentoring them as they work on real-life
projects. Examples included the Dairy Farm Corporate Brand
Product and Career Webpage Design Projects, the Spaghetti
House marketing project, and the Harbour Cruise — Bauhinia
and Hong Kong Trade Development Council “Becoming An
Entrepreneur” Project.

During the year, a total of 54,130 students enrolled in the
VTC’s pre-employment programmes. More than 13,400
students graduated from the full-time pre-employment
programmes offered by our member institutions. Around 37%
of graduates pursued further full-time studies and 90% of the
remaining graduates secured employment.

The VTC actively promotes VET among secondary school
students to help them plan for their future studies and
career path. In this aspect, we provide senior secondary
students with a wide spectrum of Applied Learning (ApL)
courses under the new curriculum.

In 2012/13, 10 ApL courses were offered for 2,600
Secondary 5 students, providing them with opportunities
to explore their orientation for further studies and career
aspirations. A school-based curriculum with a set of elective
subjects was also provided to 220 students at the Yeo Chei
Man Senior Secondary School.
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Endeavouring to care for the less privileged, non-Chinese
speaking (NCS) students and students with special
educational needs (SEN), the VTC provides them with various
vocational education and training opportunities. Dedicated
support and services are offered to these students to meet
their specific needs and facilitate their growth.

In the past year, the VTC continued to offer the Vocational
Development Programmes to non-engaged people aged
14 to 24 with education below sub-degree level to help
them search for their own interest in life and equip them
for further studies or employment. In collaboration with the
Social Welfare Department, the VTC also offered tailor-made
VET programmes for over 1,200 residents at the Tuen Mun
Children and Juvenile Home. The VTC provided services for
about 900 youths in support of the Government’s Youth Pre-
employment Training Programme and Youth Work Experience
and Training Scheme.

We also provided vocational training to people with special
educational needs through our member institutions. In
2012/13, 570 full-time and 480 part-time students were
enrolled in programmes offered by the Shine Skills Centre.
About 580 SEN students were also enrolled in programmes
such as top-up degree, HD, Foundation Diploma (Level 3)
and Diploma in Vocational Education offered by our other
member institutions. Adapted ApL courses were offered
to about 120 senior secondary students with intellectual
disabilities.

About 20 dedicated full-time and part-time VET programmes
were offered to about 750 NCS students in the past year
catering for their specific needs. A new Youth College was
set up in 2012/2013 where enhanced support is provided
for NCS and SEN.

The VTC seeks to develop the intellectual, personal,
vocational and physical abilities of its students through
a challenging curriculum, experience-based co-curricular
activities, and adventurous learning opportunities.
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Apart from student development programmes such as
IVElite and Wofoo Leaders’ Network which offer students
opportunities to enhance their learning ability and personal
attributes, two new programmes, “Speak for SUCCESS”
and “Road to Marathon”, were piloted in 2012 and 2013
respectively. Students engaged in the projects are exposed
to a wide variety of activities aimed at fostering essential
attributes including communication and presentation skills,
effective planning and self-management.

Promoting lifelong learning is one of the missions of
the VTC. As a staunch supporter of the Qualifications
Framework (QF), which provides local workforce with a clear
pathway for the pursuit of lifelong learning, the VTC has
assisted in formulating the Specifications of Competency
Standards (SCS) for various industries since 2005. To
help practitioners obtain recognised qualifications that
are in line with SCS, a structured system of vocational
assessments for key trades was set up. In 2012/13, about
4,500 VTC students sat for the vocational assessments in
Safety, Health and Environment, Beauty Care Services and
Hairdressing.

As part of the support to the QF, the VTC also acts as the
Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) assessment agency to
assess the skills, knowledge and experience acquired by
individuals from eight industries: Printing and Publishing,
Watch and Clock, Hairdressing, Property Management,
Automotive, Jewellery, Logistics and Chinese Catering
industries. It is anticipated that the RPL services will be
extended to other industries, such as the Retail as well as
the Import and Export industries in 2014.

The VTC is seeking accreditation with relevant academic
and professional bodies. The VTC has been holding the
Programme Area Accreditation status in 69 Programme
Areas up to QF Level 4. Three new degree programmes to
be offered by THEi in September 2013, namely, bachelor
degree programmes in Health Care, Landscape Architecture,
and Chinese Culinary Arts and Management, went through
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ) accreditation. Also, 13
new top-up degree programmes have been accredited by
HKCAAVQ during the year.
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ENHANCING
FOR
STUDENT LEARNING
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The VTC has always been passionate about providing
students with a dynamic and supportive learning
environment where they can develop their skills and
maximise their potential.

During the year, a number of capital projects have been
undertaken to create a quality learning and teaching
environment. One such newly completed project is the Wofoo
Foundation Dr Joseph Lee Whole Person Development
Education Centre, which provides indoor and outdoor
experiential and adventure-based training. In 2012/13,
more than 2,600 students under the Structured Whole
Person Development Programme have participated in the
adventure-based training day camps.

Construction of the International Culinary Institute at
Pokfulam, student dormitory at IVE (Tsing Yi) and THEi new
campus in Chai Wan, also capital projects, is well underway.
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During the year, a number of training facilities have been
set up at different campuses of IVE which provide students
with simulated learning environments to acquire skills and
knowledge in industries.

One such example is the BOCHK Financial Services Learning
Centre at IVE (Sha Tin), which allows students to acquire
practical knowledge about banking operations and customer
service techniques through role-play practices. A Civil
Engineering Laboratory was established at IVE (Tuen Mun) to
provide hands-on training in relation to civil engineering. The
Centre for Legal and Administrative Practices featuring a moot
court was also set up at IVE (Morrison Hill) where students
could participate in true to life court proceedings.
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SERVING THE BUSINESS
AND INDUSTRY WITH

SEAH RBFR

A high quality workforce is crucial to maintain Hong Kong's
competitive edge. During the year, the VTC has administered
several industry-wide schemes and training programmes to
help industries upgrade their employees’ competencies and
enhance their competitiveness.

In March 2013, the VTC launched the “One Examination,
Multiple Certification” System in collaboration with the
Guangdong Occupational Skill Testing Authority. The system
was piloted in the beauty and hairdressing industries and
will be extended to sectors such as vehicle maintenance,
elderly care, printing and property management. The
introduction of this scheme marks a milestone in effort to
raise the professionalism and competitive advantages of
workers in Hong Kong, the Mainland and member countries
of the International Professional Standards Network (ipsn)
including Japan, Australia, New Zealand and Canada.

Besides that, the “One Trade Test Two Certificates”, which
is approved by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the People’s Republic of China, is periodically
held at the Chinese Cuisine Training Institute (CCTI). During
the year, 55 CCTI trainees sat for the trade test and received
dual certificates.

Apart from promoting cross-border recognition, the VTC has
helped raise the competitiveness of local businesses and
workforce through apprenticeship schemes, industry-specific
training as well as consultancy services.
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In 2012/13, about 3,400 apprentices in over 130 trades
received training to become qualified skilled workers under
the Apprenticeship Scheme. Besides, a traineeship scheme
for service industries was launched. The scheme was piloted
in the Beauty Care and Hairdressing industries and over
200 trainees enrolled during the year. Planning is under
way to extend the scheme to other trades such as retail,
elderly care services and food and beverage services, which
will support young people to develop their career through
practical on-the-job training complemented with vocational
education.

In parallel, the Institute of Professional Education And
Knowledge (PEAK) provides a wide range of quality in-service
training services for working people in various industries
including banking, finance, insurance and information
technology. Professional certificate courses are offered to
in-service personnel of the catering industry through the
VTC Tao Miao Institute. Training and consultancy services
are also provided to the Government and corporations
which include services for supporting the mandatory
building inspection scheme, School-based Teacher Training
Programme and other initiatives.

During the year, the VTC established the Plastic Materials
Resources Centre in collaboration with the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. Acting as a central repository for
plastic materials, the centre helps the development of
the plastics industry, especially for small and medium
enterprises in facing keen competition and rapid changes in
the consumer market.

In view of the rapid development of the catering industry, the
International Culinary Institute will be established in 2016
to train professional manpower in international cuisines.
The Institute will offer a wide spectrum of programmes,
leading to certificate, diploma, professional diploma, higher
diploma, as well as degree qualifications to be developed in
collaboration with THEi for youth and in-service practitioners.
To pave the way for future collaborations, several exchanges
with overseas culinary institutions have been lined up
in order to establish a network of experts in various
international cuisines.
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BUILDING SYNERGY
FOR SUCCESS
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The Vocational Training Council (VTC) aspires to be a
trusted partner of business, industry and the community and
endeavours to establish longstanding mutually beneficial
relations with them. Towards this end, the VTC has actively
engaged with industries, professional organisations and
government departments through offering an array of
vocational education and training (VET) programmes,
consultancy services and joint projects with industries.

During the year, we have continued to strengthen our
partnership with industries by all means. For example,
training courses on occupational health and safety in
arboriculture and identification of common trees in Hong
Kong were launched to meet the increasing training needs.
Courses on Chinese catering sales and marketing training,
and fishermen training were organised with the Association
for Hong Kong Catering Services Management, and the
Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department.

The Jockey Club Heavy Vehicles Emissions Testing and
Research Centre has also provided testing, research and
consultancy services to government departments and major
corporations.
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Extensive Network and Resources

Leveraging the network and resources of its partners,
the VTC offers diverse ways for students to broaden their
industry knowledge and prepare for their future career.

The Career China Project launched under a collaborative
effort between the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
and the VTC is an example. Through participation in
the programmes, students are able to gain a better
understanding on the latest industrial development and
employment prospects in the Mainland. The YIC Education
Programme organised by the Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council also enabled VTC students to learn from industry
experts and provided them with attachment opportunities
to work at their members’ businesses. Other attachment
programmes included IT Buddies Programme by the Boys’
and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong; the Microsoft
Summer Coding Camp by Microsoft (Hong Kong); Weborganic
Seed School Industrial Attachment Programme by
Weborganic; GTI Industrial Attachment Programme by Global
Technology Integrator.

Industry Collaborations

During the year, our relationships with industry partners
continued to grow through co-operative arrangements for
training, industrial attachments and other collaborations.

Examples include the Memoranda of Understanding
with SGS Hong Kong and Zhongshan Centre for Disease
Control and Prevention on joint training or attachment
programmes. We also entered into agreement with a number
of corporations including Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, Ocean Park and Hong Kong Association of Property
Service Agents to offer industrial attachment opportunities
for our students.
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We believe participating in projects and competitions allows
students to gain a broader perspective in their fields. During
the year, our students have participated in a series of
collaborative projects, competitions and research activities
with the support of the VTC’s industry partners. Some of
them included collaborative projects with IT Accountants
Association, Dairy Farm, Amoy Food Limited, Tao Heung
Group, Radio Television Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Museum of Art.

Scholarships for Students

The VTC is grateful to its donors for their generous support
of its academic, student development and infrastructure
enhancement over the years.

A number of sponsorships have been received during the
year. For example, the Hong Kong Construction Association
and 10 leading construction corporations have donated
scholarships to over 150 engineering students from
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (IVE).
Hong Kong Disneyland also awarded scholarships to
about 70 students in hotel, tourism and catering service,
entertainment and creative industry and engineering
programmes. In the past year, we also established the
VTC Student Development Foundation to support the
development needs of VTC full-time students and received
generous support from a wide variety of donors.
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Industry Recognitions

The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium
Business has presented the Best SME’s Partner Award to
the VTC, in recognition of its support to industry.

In 2012, the Department of Construction of IVE has also
received the Silver Award of the Hong Kong ICT Awards:
Best Professional Development (Other Professional) Award
for its “Building Information Modelling Education in IVE”, a
recognition of the VTC’s contribution to the ICT manpower
and professional development in Hong Kong.
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TRAINING BOARDS
AND COMMITTEES

HREEEN—REES

The VTC has gathered representatives from major trade
associations and unions, professional bodies, educational
and training institutes, and government departments to form
21 Training Boards and five General Committees.

The Training Boards and General Committees support
the manpower development needs of industries and
vocational education and training in Hong Kong. Comprising
stakeholders in nearly all major sectors in Hong Kong, the
Training Boards and General Committees play an important
advisory role in setting out directions, strategic development
and quality assurance mechanisms for VTC programmes.

Recognition of Exemplary Contributions

The VTC Honorary Fellowship is the highest award of the
VTC for distinguished individuals who have made significant
contributions to the development of VET in Hong Kong and
are staunch supporter in VTC’s services.
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FE2012FVICEHEE F - HAIm AL ERA

BRI RBRL

Six prominent individuals were conferred the Honorary
Fellowship at the 2012 VTC Graduation Ceremony. They
were:

Mr. CHEUNG Kin-fai, MH

Chairperson of Rehabilitation Alliance, Hong Kong
Chairperson of The Hong Kong Joint Council

for People with Disabilities

Mr. Albert IP Yuk-keung

Independent Non-Executive Director and Audit Committee
Chairman, Eagle Asset Management

Independent Non-Executive Director and Audit Committee
Chairman, Hopewell Highway Infrastructure, Hong Kong

Professor KAN Tai-keung, BBS, SBS
Founder of Kan & Lau Design Consultants

Mr. Stanley LAU Chin-ho, BBS, MH, JP

Managing Director of Renley Watch Manufacturing
Company Limited

Deputy Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Industries

Mr. Kennedy LIU Tatyin

Partner and Head of Capital Market Services Group of
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

Dr. Albert MA Hon-ning, JP

Chairman and Managing Director of Hong Kong LP Gas
(Holdings) Limited

School Supervisor of HKMA College of Further Education

SREEZEE A, MH
BRERBEER
BERERBEER

- s
EHEEAESE (BE)ERAT
BYENTEERBAEES TR
EEANARERERADBIHTES
REAEER IR

SRR, BBS, SBS
SRR TR A A 8lg A

2R FE 54, BBS, MH, JP
BEREAR AR EEELIE
ERTEBERTE

ROBUKBEFMEBAEEA
KEARDGRGEEE
R EREHELE

BH2={ELT, P
ERXARER(EE)BRRANEERER
FREERKIR
AEREREERERFELEECERRE






OUR
PEOPLE




66 |

GROOMING

STUDENTS
WBRT

As a people-centred organisation, the Vocational Training BEIRBVIC)AAARR » BEENE TR
Council (VTC) is dedicated to providing its students and staff HEXASEARE 2 HIFATEE -

with diverse opportunities and full support.

HAMNBERREZ IS BR2NTE

Students of the VTC have constantly sought challenges bt B2 2012/13F © 7 % 8 A& £ BB -
through participation in competitions. Academic excellence R 2B RAMZHELERAREY @ &
and all-round achievement of our students were fully MAEEENHMERE  HARIELEE ki
demonstrated in a range of international, regional, national LR VICEABENRE  TEERRMM
and local competitions in 2012/13. The recognitions they FEEH  INET J VICEEHEIE|REN
received showcased their talents, and bore witness to the BE o

education and training quality of VTC programmes.

ACCA IR &I K EL Bt
ACCA Hong Kong Business Competition e THE KREBER - AR EBME-
e 1st Runner-up, Best Budgeting, Most Creative Team and XA E A
Best Team Spirit PROER - BB - ®REE - Bk
CHAN Chak-sing, CHOW Sze-tung, WONG Choi-yi and IVE(EE) ITREER

YEUNG Yuen-ling
Department of Business Administration, IVE (Kwun Tong)
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HKIAAT Accounting and Business Management Case
Competition
e The Champion

YEUNG Yik-ho, CHEUNG Yuenting, LIU Lok-hang and

SUEN Man-uen

Department of Business Administration, IVE (Kwun Tong)

Design & Art Direction Awards 2012

e Design Student Award
NG Pui-yin, LAW Ying-ting and CHANG Oi-ting
Department of Communication Design and Digital Media,
HKDI

Hong Kong Designers Association - Design Student of the
Year Award 2012
e Design Student of the Year Award

TAM Ho-yin

Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

Hong Kong Fur Design Competition 2013
e Champion (Full Fur Category)

LEE Ngaiyi

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI
e Champion (Fur Combination Category)

CHUI Ka-ying

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

The 6th Hong Kong Lighting Design Competition
e Champion (Student Group)
NIP Fu-yuk
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI
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The 13th Hong Kong Footwear Design Competition
e Gold Award (Children Category)

LEE Ngai-yee

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI
e Gold Award (Ladies’ Boots Category)

WONG Ka-man

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI
e Gold Award (Ladies’ Shoes and Bags Category)

WONG Mei-ying

Department of Fashion and Image Design, HKDI

The 14th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition
e Champion (Student Group)
PANG Horng
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

The 14th Hong Kong Eyewear Design Competition
e Champion (Student Group)
PANG Horng
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI

The 29th Hong Kong Watch and Clock Design Competition
e Champion (Student Group)

NGAN Pik-ki

Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI
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Engineering

Autodesk Hong Kong Building Information Model Awards 2012
e Student Category Award

LAM Ka-chun

Department of Construction, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Hong Kong Computer & Communications Festival 2012

e Champion
LEUNG Yung, NG Chun-tung, LEUNG Ho-yin and LAM
Kwan-chiu
Department of Electronic and Information Engineering,
IVE (Sha Tin)

Shell Eco-marathon Asia 2012

e 1st Runner-up in Solar Group (Prototype Category)
SO Tin-ching, LEE Wai-kin, TSE Ka-ming, YIP Ching-to,
LAM Yuk-hong, TSE Chun-yu, YEUNG Wing-tai and
NG Wing-kuen
Department of Engineering, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Skills Competitions

The 7th Guangzhou/Hong Kong/Macao/Chengdu Youth Skills
Competition
e Champion (Window Display Design)
WONG Ho-shan, YEUNG On-wing and CHEUNG Kwok-for
Department of Product and Interior Design, HKDI
e 1st Runner-up (Intelligent Home Appliance Installation)
LI Kwan-ha, CHAK Sze-wing, FAN Chun-wing
Department of Engineering, IVE (Tsing Yi)
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Sports

Hang Seng All Schools Championships
e 2nd Runner-up in Men’s Double
IVE Men’s Table Tennis Team

18th All China University Fencing Championship

e 1st Runner-up (IVE Women’s Team Foil)
CHAN Shuk-yan
Department of Product & Interior Design, HKDI
CHUNG Hiu-lam
Department of Hotel, Service and Tourism Studies
IVE (Haking Wong)
LI S.Y.H.
Department of Business Administration, IVE
(Haking Wong)

VTC Outstanding Students Awards

The VTC has sought to recognise the outstanding
achievement of students and encourage them to pursue
continued growth. During the year, the Dr Ng Tat-lun
Memorial Outstanding Students Awards were presented
to nine high achievers who have demonstrated excellence
in academic, leadership, personal traits, extra-curricular
activities and community services. The recipients for 2012
are:

Applied Science
e KAN Ka-man
Department of Applied Science, IVE (Chai Wan)

Business Administration
e HO Wing-sum
Department of Business Administration, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Design
e WU Chung-man
Department of Communication and Digital Media, HKDI

Hotel, Service and Tourism Studies

e SO Yuen-yan
Department of Hotel, Service and Tourism Studies, IVE
(Haking Wong)
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Information Technology Bl B
e LO Wing-sze o TKEF
Department of Information and Communications IVE(BR) Bl BARE R
Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi) o HEE
e MAK Chun-yin FFBR (XF) PEHEUERE (B
Diploma in Vocational Education (Information B
Technology), Youth College (Kwai Fong) e TTAIMR
e WONG Ho-yan FFBR (XF) PEHEUERE (B
Diploma in Vocational Education (Information B
Technology), Youth College (Kwai Fong)
IE
Engineering e FTERE
e HUI So-ha IVE (EEIRER L) @& TIR R
Department of Construction, IVE (Morrison Hill) o IR
e TSEUNG Chung-long IVE (E5eii) EMITIER

Department of Electrical Engineering, IVE (Haking Wong)




Vinnce LO Wing-sze, who graduated from the Hong Kong Institute
of Vocational Education (IVE) in 2013 with a Higher Diploma in
Telecommunications and Networking, had a keen interest in
computers from an early age. After assembling her first computer
when she was a secondary student, Vinnce set out to pursue
a career in information technology. She opted for the IVE after
graduating from secondary school.

While studying, Vinnce participated in extra-curricular activities,
voluntary services, cultural exchange programmes and also acted as
a VTC student ambassador. She described life at the IVE as “fruitful”
and said she had benefited a lot. “Thanks to the rich campus life and
dedicated teachers, | become more motivated and confident.”

Vinnce thought the programmes offered by the IVE strike a balance
between theory and practice. In addition to empowering students
with professional knowledge, the institute also offers practical
training and placement opportunities. “l was attached to the
Housing Authority, and acted as a team leader of the internship
group, assisting in planning and organising teammates’ tasks. In
the internship, we were tasked to install and test software in the
office. Each of us was required to handle around 10 computers
a day and so effective time management became crucial. The
attachment experience allowed me to practise what | have learned
in a real working environment. It also enhanced my leadership
and communication skills and better equipped me for entering the
business world.”

Her outstanding performance in academic and extra-curricular
activities has earned her a number of scholarships from the the VTC,
Government and other organisations. She was recently awarded the
Alistair Harvey Foundation scholarship to further her study in the
UK for a bachelor degree in information technology. Vinnce hopes
to develop a web-based home healthcare monitoring system for the
elderly after graduation.
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Reaching Out to the World
FHALETE BREHER

LEE Wai-kin
Higher Diploma in Electrical Engineering

IVE Graduate in 2012
TER
IVEE# TRESHURFIZE2012 FEFEA

“Engineering is an endless sea of knowledge. | had the privilege
to lead the team to develop SOPHIE, the solar-powered car that
participated in the Shell Eco-marathon Asia 2012 contest in Kuala
Lumpur. The experience in putting theory into practice has been
important in my life ever since,” said LEE Wai-kin, graduate of IVE
Higher Diploma in Electrical Engineering in 2012.

With the encouragement and support from teachers, Lee and his
IVE classmates represented Hong Kong in the event, competing with
more than 100 teams from 18 countries and areas. LEE and his
classmates were tasked with designing and constructing a vehicle
that can run the longest distance with minimal fuel. “The teammates
are just like the gears and components of a vehicle. We had different
roles in a team. As a team leader, | was responsible for managing
and co-ordinating different tasks to ensure that we could do the
best and performed at our peak in the competition. To prepare for
the contest, the whole team worked and experimented continuously
after class. We encountered many hurdles at the beginning in making
this solar vehicle. With our perseverance and unity, we finally solved
the problems and successfully constructed the energy converter for
transforming solar energy into electricity.”

Through their professional knowledge, high tech design and quick
responses to unforeseen scenarios, the SOPHIE Team clinched the
first runner-up of the Solar Prototype Class of Shell Eco-marathon
Asia 2012. “Participating in overseas competition helped broaden
my horizons, and my leadership, communication and problem-
solving skills were further enhanced by being nominated the leader
of SOPHIE Team. | am grateful to the guidance of my teachers. | had
without doubt a great learning experience each day at IVE.”

LEE Wai-kin is now studying a bachelor degree programme in
electrical engineering in a local university, heading to his dream as
an engineer.
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Student Statistics

Number of Students of the VTC Member Institutions in 2012/13
2012/13 F[Z VIC B B 24 A2

Member Institutions

BEKE

Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong
EERENEREER
IVE, HKDI and School of Business and Information Systems
BEREXHEER FRAERTER  ITHENER
Youth College HHFEp:
Pro-Act Training and Development Centres St 3|3 & 0
Automobile FEE%
Electrical S#3
Electronics &%
Fashion Textiles Bt 4
Gas SREBMBIZE
Jewellery EREZ
Mechanical %
Precision Engineering BHRIEH
Printing EDRIZ
Welding J2#%

Chinese Cuisine Training Institute FERFEEpE

Hospitality Industry Training and Development Centre FREEERIE EZHI2 R O

Maritime Services Training Institute EEIHRZBE

Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge S i&EBERR
School for Higher and Professional Education 7 E&5%# 52k
Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School ¥ X &2
Integrated Vocational Development Centre E#EE3ERE 0
Shine Skills Centres B R AR

Total #8%

Starting from 2012/13, programmes offered by the Business Services Centre
(formerly Pro-Act (Global Business) and Pro-Act (Retail)) are managed by IVE

Starting from 2012/13, the Vocational Development Programmes (formerly under
the operation of IVDC) are managed by Youth College

1.

Type of Courses RZEE
In-service
Pre-employment Training
AT R
270 -
35,500 82,640
5,040
7,760
680
2,520
190
810
9,420
260
470
480
1,010
120
1,220
230 1,340
1,260 1,970
50 3,660
- 93,090
2,180 1,390
220 -
4,430 3,250
570 480
54,130 200,620

BH2012/13 548 - REAA TR (B & A EMEIER
POOREREE) REBFIEEFR O (TEE)) FANRE
FA IVE B 3f

F2012/13F#8 * LAEHIVDCE RN B ERRABIHEFS
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FOSTERING
A CLOSE-KNIT
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The VTC is always keen to maintain close relationships with
alumni. To strengthen bonds between industries, alumni,
philanthropists, foundations and other key stakeholders, we
have set up the new Institutional Advancement Division in
November 2012.

Steered by the new division, the Alumni Relations Office
acts as the bridge between the VTC and alumni to nurture
lifelong, mutually beneficial relationships. Efforts have also
been made to encourage alumni to offer volunteer and
philanthropic support for the VTC.

Apart from volunteering and making donations, many of our
alumni have returned to help our students and acted as
mentors through the Career Navigation Scheme.

In 2012, eight former students were presented the VTC
30th Anniversary Outstanding Alumni Awards to honour their
dedicated support to the VTC and its alumni development,
as well as the outstanding achievements in their respective
industries.
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SHARPENING

BEAEIES

The VTC aims to become a leading vocational education and
training (VET) provider in the Region. In this regard, we are
committed to honing staff and leadership skills through the
facilitation of learning and development, recognition and
reward for performance, and building leadership capability.

An expanded range of capability building programmes were
conducted for staff during the year, including management
and supervisory training, thematic workshops, national
studies, language courses and wellness workshops.

The Teaching Excellence Award is established to give
recognition to outstanding teachers while promoting the
sharing of best practices in teaching. The recipients for
2012 include:

e Mr. Harry CHENG Wai-keung
Lecturer, Student Development Office, IVE (Morrison Hill)

e Mr. Jeremy CHAN Wai-yeung
Lecturer, Student Development Office, IVE (Sha Tin)
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Award for Pastoral Care

Ms. Joanne LAW Ka-yee
Teaching Associate, Department of Business
Administration, IVE (Kwun Tong)

Ms. Regina TAM Yuen-yuk
Lecturer, Department of Business Administration, IVE
(Kwun Tong)

Mr. Michael TSE Ming-kit
Lecturer, Department of Business Administration, IVE
(Kwun Tong)

Ms. Arale LAU Sze-lui
Lecturer, Student Development Office, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Ms. Crystal TSANG Shuk-mun
Lecturer, Language Centre, IVE (Haking Wong)

Mr. Jordan CHENG Man-fai
Acting Lecturer, Department of Electronic and Information
Engineering, IVE (Sha Tin)

Mr. LEUNG Kim-wai
Workshop Instructor Il, Department of Engineering
Management and Technology, IVE (Chai Wan)
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Award for Use of Information Technology in Learning
and Teaching

HKDI X IVE (Z=EF)) B30y &AM

s RERZL

e Ms. Frances LAM Wai-fun IVE (M) B BEM

Lecturer, Language Centre, HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

Ms. Sylvian CHAN Wai-yan
Lecturer, Language Centre, IVE (Sha Tin)

Ms. Emmy CHAN Yin-ha
Teaching Associate, Language Centre, HKDI and IVE (Lee
Wai Lee)

Ms. Venny CHENG Pei-yi
Lecturer, Language Centre, IVE (Morrison Hill)

Ms. Olivia WONG Wing-che
Teaching Associate, Language Centre, IVE (Sha Tin)
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Award for Work Placement/Industrial Attachment for
Students

e Mr. David CHUNG Siu-wing
Teaching Associate, Department of Information and
Communications Technology, IVE (Tuen Mun)

Staff Excellence Award

The Staff Excellence Award recognise staff members and
teams who have made exceptional contributions to the VTC
through outstanding dedication, competence, ingenuity and
conscientious performance. The recipients for 2012/13
include:

® Mr. Stephen LEE Kin-keung
Attendant |, Language Centre, IVE (Chai Wan)

® Mr. Yip Tak-man
Attendant Il, Campus Secretariat, Youth College (Kwai
Fong)

e Mr. Bosco CHAN Chi-ming
Lecturer, Department of Business Administration, Youth
College (Yeo Chei Man)

e Mr. TANG Moon-leung
Technician, Language Centre, IVE (Tuen Mun)

e Student Development Office Team
Student Development Office, IVE (Haking Wong)

¢ Building and Development Team
Campus Secretariat, IVE (Kwai Chung)
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e E| Happy Jo
Department of Electronic and Information Engineering,
IVE (Sha Tin)

* Wofoo Leaders’ Network Project Team
Student Development Discipline Office

® Building Information Modelling Team
Department of Construction, IVE (Morrison Hill, Tuen Mun
and Tsing Yi)

e Student Counselling Team
Student Development Office, Youth College

Outstanding Staff Achievements

The VTC has numerous talented and experienced employees
contributing to society in many ways. Some of their
achievements recognised by the community during the year
include:

® Springer Theses Award 2013, Springer Publishing

® Postgraduate Research Output Award 2012, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong
Dr. Janet LAU Ting-fong
Teaching Associate, Department of Applied Science, IVE
(Chai Wan)

® 2012 Outstanding Coach Award, The Citizen Athletic
Association
Mr. Keith YEUNG Chi-sing
Teaching Associate, Department of Hotel, Service and
Tourism Studies, IVE (Chai Wan)

® Qutstanding Coach Award 2012, Handball Association of
Hong Kong, China
Mr. PANG Kwan-sing
Physical Education Officer Il, Student Development
Office, HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)
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® Springer Theses Award 2013, Springer
Publishing
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In 2012, 320 staff members were awarded for their
dedicated service. Recognition was given to the
contributions made by 86 staff members during their 30
years of service to the VTC. Meanwhile, a further 97 and 137
were commended for having completed 25 and 20 years of
service.

As at 31 March 2013, we had 5,670 full-time staff,
breakdown as follows:

Teaching and Administrative Staff 3,580
Technical and Supporting Staff 2,090
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A strong commitment to good corporate citizenship is a
core value of the VTC. Over the years, the VTC has been
promoting environmental protection on and off campus
through recycling and reduction of waste. During the year,
different energy and water saving devices and equipment
were installed in the VTC premises.

In recognition of the support to local recycling work, the
Environmental Protection Department and the Management
Company of EcoPark awarded “Friends of EcoPark 2012/13”
to the VTC. We have also been presented the Caring
Organisation Award by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for seven consecutive years.

Meanwhile, the VTC encourages its students and staff to
take part in community projects to enhance community
involvement and to give back to society. Over 20,000
students and staff supported the territory-wide Volunteer
Movement project organised by the Social Welfare
Department, with over 380,000 service hours recorded in
2012. Throughout the year, over 2,300 hours of volunteer
work in environmentally related activities were also
recorded.
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council has prepared Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year 2012-13 presenting the operating
results and financial position of the Council and its
subsidiaries (the Group) for the year. Total income of
HK$4,221.8M (2011-12: HK$3,966.9M) and total
expenditure of HK$3,866.5M (2011-12: HK$3,668.0M)
were reported.

Operating Results

Out of the total income of $4,221.8M, $2,585.1M was
government subventions, $1,412.9M was tuition fees and
training charges, $63.2M was interest income, $56.5M was
donations and $104.1M was other income. As compared
with 2011-12, an increase of 6.4% in the Group’s total
income was recorded. The increase in income was mainly
attributed to the increase in Government subventions
including Matching Grants, scholarship to students and pay
adjustment for 2012, increase in tuition fees income and
donations.

Consolidated expenditure of $3,866.5M incurred in the year
included staff expenses of $2,832.8M and other operating
expenses of $1,033.7M. The increase in expenditure
was mainly due to the increase in staff expenses
resulting from pay rise, start-up expenses for the new VTC
Degree Programmes and increase in scholarships to the
outstanding students.

The financial result of the subsidiaries showed total
income of $712.9M and total expenditure of $682.3M. The
Group as a whole reported a surplus of $354.9M for the
year 2012-13, of which $240.6M was transferred to the
Council’s Reserves for implementation of new initiatives and
other developments.
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Building Programmes and Capital Iltems

For the year 2012-13, a total of $235.1M was incurred
on building programmes and capital items. These projects
included the renovation of campus in Tsing Yi, construction
of student development education centre and modification
of the existing staff and student canteen at VTC Pokfulam
Complex as well as other alterations, additions and
improvement projects.

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Statement of Income and Expenditure
for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013 are set out in the
following pages.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

B@E2013F3AMHLFENGFEZABRRE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
INCOME N
Government Subventions BT & 2,585,081 2,426,775
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BELAEER 1,412,985 1,389,329
Interest Income MBI A 63,172 49,235
Donations B 56,451 14,013
Other Income E A 104,149 87,559
Total Income Nt 4,221,838 3,966,911
EXPENDITURE *H
Staff Expenses BTEX
Full-time Staff Expenses 2BETHY 2,497,474 2,317,735
Part-time Staff Expenses FEBETIRY 113,946 123,821
Temporary Staff Expenses FRFE THX 198,254 227,007
Other Staff Expenses HWETIHRX 23,118 23,163
2,832,792 2,691,726
Other Operating Expenses Hith&Emx
Consumables, Equipment and HEMYS  RER
Library Books [E= 288,417 278,069
Accommodation and Related ReEkim&
Maintenance Expenses BRARERAX 483,654 470,872
Hire of Services and BERFER
Professional Fees 48,766 45,583
Student/Trainee Grants and B BB R
Amenities 67,925 43,195
Training Boards/General JmEES —H
Committees’ Expenses ZEERX 34,618 43,028
Staff Development and Visits BIEIRAH 15,959 15,028
Other Expenses HEmAY 94,391 80,538
1,033,730 976,313
Total Expenditure g LG 3,866,522 3,668,039
Surplus before taxation BREL AT E R 355,316 298,872
Taxation FiiE 382 143
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REERHBRK
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2HEHWZEEE 354,934 298,729
TRANSFER TO: BERE
Reserves HiHEe 240,553 163,543
Specific and Other Funds BrRaLEMES 114,381 135,186
354,934 298,729

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore, the Group’s

“total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BT IAFERR] I FEBR2RFAILLEEMEENRE - B AREN [RFERHA ] HER [2EkaeE] -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

2013 3A31THHMGERERRR

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Fixed Assets BEBE 2,307,405 2,345,485
Loans to Staff ETER 1,386 1,797
Employee Retirement Benefits EERIKEHNEE
Assets 8,070 7,707
Deposits %e 3,627 4,754
Bank Deposits with Maturity FIHEBR—F
over One Year RITIER 200,000 200,000
2,520,488 2,559,743
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Loans to Staff BTER 1,332 1,858
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments FEUERIE « AR FRIE X
and Other Receivables H b FE UK BRIE 68,200 60,516
Bank Deposits with Maturity FERBBE=E A
over Three Months RITFER 3,181,061 2,308,781
Cash and Cash Equivalents BEMREEEY 796,038 1,247,541
4,046,631 3,618,696
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts Payable, Accruals and FEISBRIE - BRI R
Other Payables H b FE BRI 1,004,201 973,255
Provision for Employee Benefits lEEBAERE 385,582 399,446
Loans Payable within One Year —FANEEENER 2,829 3,830
Deferred Income RN = 293,104 248,010
1,685,716 1,624,541
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 2,360,915 1,994,155
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEAERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,881,403 4,553,898
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Provision for Employee Benefits EERFIEE 10,180 2,598
Deferred Income R = 1,325,565 1,360,576
1,335,745 1,363,174
NET ASSETS EEFRE 3,545,658 3,190,724
Represented by: LRFRESE :
Reserves fE 251,526 250,483
Specific and Other Funds FEABRREMES 3,294,132 2,940,241
TOTAL FUNDS ELHEEE 3,545,658 3,190,724

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council
on 6 September 2013

7 2013F 9H 6 H
HBXIRFDE SR IRERER

Mr. Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEIRBER

FREA(ZSEAE, SBS, JP
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THE COUNCIL
BRIKREES

As at 31 March 2013
H=201343A31H

Chairman
Mr. Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP

Deputy Chairmen

Dr. Joseph LEE, GBS, JP
Dr. Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, BBS, JP

Members

Ms. Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Ir Daniel CHENG Man-chung, MH, JP

Mr. CHOY Chung-foo

Mr. Locky CHU Kwan-lam, MH

Mr. James KWAN Yuk-choi, JP

Ir Sunny LEE Wai-kwong, JP

Ms. LI Fungying, SBS, JP

Ms. Winnie NG Wing-mui

Mr. Bruce POH Geok-huat

Ms. Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr. Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP

Mr. Larry TCHOU Ming-kong

Mr. Bernie TING Wai-cheung

Mr. Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Mr. Eric YIM Chi-ming

Deputy Secretary for Education (or her representative)
Ms. Michelle LI Mei-sheung, JP

Commissioner for Labour (or his representative)
Mr. CHEUK Wing-hing, JP

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his representative)
Mr. Kenneth MAK Ching-yu, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Mrs. Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

&
PREA( %4 |, SBS, JP

BIEE
ZR{E{E 4 GBS, JP
fE5F1E L, BBS, JP

£8

PREE LT

B IR T F2RM, MH, JP
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REMSEA, MH

BEMETE, IP

R TIZAD, JP

Z B4 1, SBS, JP
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=AML A, BBS, JP

BERR S E

HERIMWER (HERR)
ERLZL, JP

BTRERE (HEAR)
HoKESE, P

TEBSEBR(HERRK)
BIEFLE, P

BEJIHPRITHE
LTERERZL, GBS, JP



COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BRIKREESERBENERES

An Overview of Committees and Boards (as at 31 March 2013)

ZEERIIRZESHE (BE2013F3831H)

VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL B34 FEES

Standing Committee B ZEE S
Administration Committee TIZES
Audit Committee B EES
Estates Committee EXEBEES
Finance Committee Ef IS ZE S

Training Boards

JIREES

Accountancy Training Board

B EIREES

Automobile Training Board
ABEEIREES

Banking and Finance Industry Training Board
RITREMEIREZES

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board
EREEIREES

Building and Civil Engineering Training Board
IARTIRREEXIRESS

TEHERRIREES
LB REIIREES

ETERBAEIREZES
Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board

IR - MRERREXIRESS

HAORBBEXIREES
Insurance Training Board
REBEINREES

Maritime Services Training Board
BERBEIREES

Mass Communications Training Board
ABEEEIREES

Metals Training Board
TEFIREES

Plastics Training Board
BREIREES

Printing and Publishing Training Board
ENRIR KR REE S

Real Estate Services Training Board
B ERBEIREES

Retail Trade Training Board
ZEEIREES

Security Services Training Board
RERBEIREZES

Textile and Clothing Training Board
PRRAERENIREES
Transport Logistics Training Board
MREEXIREES

Chinese Cuisine Training Institute Training Board

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board

Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board

Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board

General Committees
—REES

Committee on Apprenticeship and Trade Testing
Z2RIIRRBEIBREESS
Committee on Information Technology Training and Development
EMRHRHIREREES
Committee on Management and Supervisory Training
EERBEIREES
Committee on Technologist Training
HEIIREES
Committee on Vocational Training for People with Disabilities

BERATREIRESS
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BRIKREESERENERES

STANDING COMMITTEE

Chairman
Mr. Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP

Members

Dr. Joseph LEE, GBS, JP

Dr. Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, BBS, JP

Mr. CHOY Chung-foo

Mr. Locky CHU Kwan-lam, MH

Ir Sunny LEE Wai-kwong, JP

Mr. Bernie TING Wai-cheung

Mr. Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Mr. Stanley LAU Chin-ho, BBS, MH, JP

Dr. Carrie WILLIS, SBS, JP

Deputy Secretary for Education (or her representative)
Ms. Michelle LI Mei-sheung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Mrs. Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member
Ms. Donna LO Sau-ling

BREE(— 4, SBS, JP

£8

ZR{EH L, GBS, JP

$@5 18+, BBS, JP

ZhpT A

REMIEAE, MH

ZEETA2AM, JP

TRELRE

=AML A, BBS, JP

2R FES 4 |, BBS, MH, JP

S e 1, SBS, JP

HERIMWER (HHERK)
EHLZL, JP

BEJHPRITHE
LTEXELZL, GBS, JP

BIZS
EXRK L



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

Chairman
Ir Sunny LEE Wai-kwong, JP

Members

Ms. Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Ir Daniel CHENG Man-chung, MH, JP

Mr. Locky CHU Kwan-lam, MH

Ms. LI Fungying, SBS, JP

Deputy Secretary for Education (or her representative)
Ms. Michelle LI Mei-sheung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Mrs. Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member
Mr. CHEUNG Wai-kin

THREES

E
FECTIRAED, JP

£8
fREE LT
EE3C I TA2RM, MH, JP
RIS, MH
Z B %4+, SBS, JP
HEREMWER (HEARRK)
EFLZL, JP
BEJZEHITHE
LB XKELZL, GBS, JP

BIZS
RERRAE
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BRIKREESERENERES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman
Dr. Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, BBS, JP

EREE®
i
B 1E L, BBS, JP

Members £8

Mr. Locky CHU Kwan-lam, MH KEMEA, MH

Mr. James KWAN Yuk-choi, JP BBMEE, P

Ms. Winnie NG Wing-mui hgz L

Mr. Larry TCHOU Ming-kong rERREAE

Mr. Kennedy LIU Tat-yin BiEBRE

ESTATES COMMITTEE EXEEZEY

Chairman e

Mr. Bernie TING Wai-cheung TEELAE

Members £B

Ir Sunny LEE Wai-kwong, JP ZFEOLTIZAD, P

Mr. Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP ZERZI %4 | BBS, JP

Mr. Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP T AL AL, BBS, JP

Mr. Eric YIM Chi-ming ELERR A

Mr. Martin N. HADAWAY, JP BER AL, P

Director of Architectural Services (or his representative) BHERZZE (skHREK)
Mr. Anthony LEUNG Koon-kee, JP REESLAE, P

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council B EiTRE
Mrs. Carrie YAU, GBS, JP LBXREZ L, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member BIZE8

Mr. Kenneth WONG Lai-yin HEBESLE



FINANCE COMMITTEE

Chairman
Dr. Joseph LEE, GBS, JP

Members

Mr. CHOY Chung-foo

Ms. Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr. Bernie TING Wai-cheung

Mr. Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Deputy Secretary for Education (or her representative)
Ms. Michelle LI Mei-sheung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Mrs. Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member
Ms. Karen CHAN Ka-lin
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

Accountancy Training Board EaE S EEI N
Chairman i

Mr. Kennedy LIU Tat-yin BiEB A4
Members £8

Mr. William CHAN Wai-hei PR AR I o 4

Dr. Eva CHAN Yee-wah PRAEEE L

Mr. Francis CHENG Man-piu Ly gy s

Mr. CHEUNG Kwong-tat REBERA

Ms. Bolivia CHEUNG Siu-wan RAEL T

Mr. CHIANG Sham-lam BT E

Mr. CHOW Chun-keung [EHR 98 7 A

Dr. Alice CHUI Pui-ling RMREL

Mr. Dennis CHUNG Chuen-on EERTE

Dr. Sammy FUNG Lai-kin B fRIE T

Dr. John FUNG Yat-chu B L

Mr. George HO Kwok-wah CIEES S

Mr. Johnson KONG Chi-how TR A

Mr. LEUNG Man-kay PNEEAE

Ms. Rhoda LIU Mei-ling BERL LT

Ms. Brenda NG Wai-po REELT

Mr. Balda WAI Po-tat EEERLE
Representative of the Director of Accounting Services EEBERREK
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BTk RRAE
Representative of the Executive Director of BEIRBUAITHENAEK

the Vocational Training Council



Automobile Training Board

Chairman
Dr. Ringo LEE Yiu-pui

Members

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Gordon CHAN Yan-ting

Frank FUNG Kwok-chu

LAM Hing-cheong

Marcus LAM Yat-nam

LAU Hoi-wing (up to 14 November 2012)
LEUNG Tat-ming

TANG Ka-piu

Ir TONG Kwok-kei

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Jones WONG Kin-fai
WONG Yiu-kwong
YAU Kwok-keung

Representative of the Director of Electrical and
Mechanical Services
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Commissioner for Transport
Representative of the Director of Environmental Protection
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

Banking and Finance Industry Training Board

Chairman
Mr. Adrian LI Man-kiu, JP

Members

Mr. Michael FRACCARO (up to 27 November 2012)
Dr. FUNG King-fai
Mr. Brian FUNG Wei-lung
Mr. Albert KWOK San-fat
Mr. LEE Huat-oon
Mr. Stephen LEE Siu-fung (since 1 November 2012)
Ms. LEUNG Suk-ching
Mr. Anthony NG Tze-wai
Mr. Paul PONG Po-lam
Mr. Patrick POON Mo-yiu
Ms. Jennifer SHUM Wan-ling
Mr. Thomas TSUI Chun-man
Representative of the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
Representative of the Chairman of the Securities
and Futures Commission
Representative of the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board

Chairman
Mr. Jacky CHOI Ho-sang

Vice-Chairman
Mr. PANG Kam-chiu

Members

Ms. CHAN Chin-ming

Ms. Jessica CHAN Yuen-ying

Ms. Josephine CHAN Yuk-bing

Ms. Liza CHEUNG

Ms. Frances CHIU Siu-ling

Mr. Orpheus CHOY

Ms. Christine FOK Chun-yeung

Ms. Doris FU Ka-yin

Mr. Joseph HO Shiu-chung

Ms. Ellen HUNG

Ms. Cally KWOK Lee

Ms. Posa LAM

Ms. Sara LAW Siu-wa

Ms. Carmen PANG Yuk-ling

Ms. Sandra TSOI Lai-ha

Mr. Thomas WONG Kwok-wah

Ms. Juliana YANG Hui-chun

Ms. ZHANG Yan

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Consumer Council

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

Building and Civil Engineering Training Board

TARIRREEXIREZES

Chairman FE

Mr. Peter NG Yau-yee HXELRE
Members £8

Prof. Edwin CHAN Hon-wan PR E EHIR

Ir Kenneth CHAN Sheung-yan BR /11— T2 R0
Prof. CHAN Kam-tim [EISRANE IR

Mr. Paul CHONG Kin-lit, MH FEERRUSE A, MH
Ir Adam CHOY Siu-chung 2 DIE TFZAD
Mr. CHU Yin-lin RIEFFTE

Mr. FUNG Kin-chung SRR A

Mr. HO Chi-wai AEEEE

Mr. Eddie LAM Kin-wing MRS

Dr. LO Siu-ming EJKmRE L

Ir MAK Shu-hei BHETIZA
Mr. TANG Ki-cheung BOHAE ST A

Ir TSUI Wai-tim TRIEATIIZEN
Mr. WOO Man-king X R LA
Representative of the Secretary for Development TRBARAREK
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour ZlkkxEK
Representative of the Director of Housing BEEBERARR
Representative of the Director of Buildings EFEBERREX

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

BEIRBATHERR



Chinese Cuisine Training Institute Training Board

Chairman
Mr. Stanley HUI Hon-chung, JP

Vice-Chairmen

Mr. Michael LI Hon-shing, BBS, JP
Mr. YEUNG Wai-sing, MH

Members

Mr. Freddy CHEUNG Sing-fat
Mr. KAM Kinsen (up to 5 October 2012)
Mr. Lawrence KOO Kin-yip
Mr. Patrick KWOK

Mr. LEE Man-sing

Mr. LEUNG Fai-hung

Mr. Wallace LI Chin-hung
Mr. James LI Kwok-yee

Mr. LOCK Kwok-on

Mr. TAM Siu-sing

Mr. Larry TCHOU Ming-kong
Mr. Wilson WU Wai-tsuen
Mr. YUEN Fuk-wo

Dr. ZHAO Li

Representative of the Secretary for Labour and Welfare

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board EITR¥IHEES

Chairman *E

Ir Raymond SYNN Cheung SEKFR LIZEM

Vice-Chairman BEFE

Ir Howard LOK Tat-hong LM TAZAD

Members %8

Mr. CHAN Yun-fu BRE=E LA

Ir Dr. CHUNG Chi-yung EEBEL - T2

Mr. Simon CHUNG Fuk-wai EEELEE

Mr. KWAN Sun-chuen [B2FsiReab e

Mr. LAl Wah-hing RIEFE S

Mr. Anthony LAU Siu-hung 2

Ir Angus LEE Chun-ming ZERA T AZAD

Mr. Fernando LEUNG Chung-fai 2R EAE

Ir Alex LEUNG Wai-hung 221 TFZRM

Ir Ken LI Ka-fai BT 2R

Ir LUl Kin-hung (up to 31 December 2012) EREETIZAM(Z2012F12 A31H1E)

Mr. MAK Chi-chui BEHEE

Ir Alex SHIU Siu-ming OIS T2

Ir James TO Wing-ming i = M T

Ir TO Yip-lam MEMTIZED

Mr. YIU Chow-leung PRI A

Representative of the Director of Electrical and BETEEBERAR
Mechanical Services

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BTRRERREK

Representative of the Executive Director of BEIIRBEPATHERR

the Vocational Training Council



Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board

Chairman
Ir Victor NG Kwok-ho

Vice-Chairman
Ir Dr. Aaron TONG Wai-kwok

Members

Ir Daniel CHAN Pak-ming

Mr. Kenny CHEUNG

Ir Raymond CHIU Ping-yiu

Ms. Winnie CHOW Wai-yee

Ir Ricky KWONG Wai-chuen

Mr. Mark LAM Lum-lee

Mr. Sylvian LEE

Mr. LEUNG Ding-kau

Mr. LEUNG Wai-boon

Mr. MA Fung-on

Prof. Philip MOK Kwok-tai

Mr. Jimmy NG Wing-ka

Mr. TAM Chi-chung

Mr. Christopher TSE Hung-keung

Mr. William TSE Wing-nam

Representative of the Director-General of Trade
and Industry

Representative of the Director of Electrical and
Mechanical Services

Representative of the Director-General of Communications

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

BIES - MRERRERIIRESS

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board

Chairman E

Mr. Larry TCHOU Ming-kong KEERE

Vice-Chairman HES:

Mr. Michael LI Hon-shing, BBS, JP ZE 4, BBS, JP

Members B3]

Ms. Lily AGONOY (up to 19 June 2012) HAEZEL+(E2012F6 A19A 1)
Mr. Keven CHAN Tin-yau PRA S

Mr. Romain CHAN Wai-shing BRIZRK ST

Ms. Darlene BRADY
Dr. Vincent HEUNG (up to 31 August 2012)
Mr. Mark HEYWOOD

Ms. Darlene BRADY
BEEKBLE(£2201248 A31HItE)
S ELA

Mr. Lawrence KOO Kin-yip mEELE

Mr. Patrick KWOK FELETE

Ms. Rita LEE Shuk-fong = e

Mr. Paul LEUNG RERIE

Ms. Hebe SUN Hoi-yi BelR e+t

Mr. James TONG EERBEE

Mr. Kenneth FAN SBRRKRSEE

Mr. Daniel WETTLING BELAE

Mr. Cramond WONG HIBF LS

Mr. Wilson WU Wai-tsuen (%
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BTRERERE
Representative of the Commissioner for Tourism IREEFEFRHERE

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

BEIRBIITHIAE



Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board

Chairman
Mr. Benson PAU Kit-kwan

Members

Mr. AU YOUNG Hung-man

Dr. Edward CHAN Kwok-man

Mr. Joe CHAU Kwok-ming

Mr. Raymond CHOY Wai-shek, MH, JP

Ms. Florence FUNG Ka-pik

Ms. Paula HO Kit-kwai

Mr. Daniel LAM (up to 27 May 2012)

Mr. Stephen LIANG (since 1 November 2012)

Ms. Carrie LAU

Dr. Kevin LAU Kin-wah, JP

Dr. Mac MAK Wai-ming

Mr. PAK Kwok-ming

Ms. Katherine SIU Po-sim

Mr. Brian SUN

Mr. Alan WONG Hoi-ming

Representative of the Director-General of
Trade and Industry

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

HREEEN—REES

Insurance Training Board

Chairman
Mr. LEUNG On-fook, JP

Members

Mr. Patrick CHAN Chi-kong
Mr. Kelvin CHEUNG Kin-keung
Mr. Kenny CHOW Sin-chuen
Mr. Andrew CHOW Yiu-ming
Mr. Jackie CHUN Yuk-chi
Mr. Mike LEE Siu-chuen
Mr. Geoffrey LUNG Tat-ming
Mr. Jack NG Chi-keung
Mr. Paul NG Po-kwong
Mr. Jimmy POON Wing-fai
Dr. Gollum SHAU Kwok-lam
Mr. Clement SHUM Chun-yau
Mr. Lewis TSE Kwok-po
Mr. WONG Yuk-loi
Representative of the Commissioner of Insurance
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Managing Director of
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Maritime Services Training Board

Chairman
Mr. Arthur BOWRING

Members

Ms. Yvette CHAN Yuk-lin
Capt. CHEUNG Sai-teng
Capt. CHEUNG Wing-tak
Ms. CHING Ngon-lai
Capt. Tommy LAM Pui-hung (up to 14 January 2013)
Mr. LEE Kwok-keung
Capt. LI Chi-wai
Mr. NG Kin-man
Mr. Nelson NG Siu-yuen
Mr. Clinton TENG Kin-ting
Dr. WONG Hon-shu
Representative of the Director of Marine
Representative of the Commissioner of Police
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

ARBREBFIREESS

Mass Communications Training Board

Chairlady B

Ms. May CHAN Suk-mei, BBS, JP PRI AR 2+, BBS, JP
Members £E

Ms. Bonnie CHIU Lai-yu B+

Dr. FU King-wa BREEL

Mr. FUNG Chung-leung PR TAE

Mr. Keith HO Chun-hung AR 4

Ms. Celine HO Ming-wai fAIRA R 20+

Mr. William IP Wai-kwok EEBELEAE

Mr. Keith KAM Woon-ting (since 1 November 2012)

HiagEsd (2012411 A1 8%)

Mr. LAl Ting-yiu RISt

Dr. Sam LAM Wun-sum MEHREL

Mr. Stanley LEUNG Kam-hung IR A

Mr. Alan LO Kok-lun EEBLE

Ms. Bianca MA Kin-san BEEz L

Mr. Joel POON Siu-kuen EORESE

Mr. Edgar SO Kai-chi ERRUES 4

Mr. Marco TAM Wai-chi BEELE

Ms. Tammy TAM Wai-yi BERAt

Mr. Alfred TSOI Po-tak HEERE
Prof. David WONG Chun-tung EERRHE

Mr. Patrick YU Kin-wah REBESLSE

Mr. YUEN Chi-wai REREE
Representative of the Director of Broadcasting EERERREK
Representative of the Director of Information Services BT ERE KRR

BEIRBATHERR

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council



Metals Training Board

Chairman
Mr. Moses LEUNG Fai-man

Vice-Chairman
Dr. Dennis NG Wang-pun, BBS, MH

Members

Ir Dr. CHAN Luen-chow

Mr. HUI Leung-wah

Mr. KONG Hon-po

Mr. Steven KWOK Hon-lam

Mr. Jimi KWOK Ngok-wing

Mr. Daniel LAl Poon-shing

Ms. Susanna LAM

Dr. Henry LAU Ying-kei

Dr. KO Chung-nin (up to 30 April 2012)

Ir LEE Kwok-keung (since 1 November 2012)

Ms. Irene LEUNG Wing-yan

Mr. Ben NG Ka-yan

Mr. SIN Kam-leung

Mr. YU Man-pui

Mr. YU Tak-ming

Representative of the Director-General of
Trade and Industry

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

Plastics Training Board

BREIREES

Chairman FE

Mr. Locky CHU Kwan-lam, MH KEMEAE, MH

Vice-Chairman ElES:

Mr. Stanley CHEUNG Tat-choi SRIEM L

Members £85

Mr. Edward CHAN Hoo-wai BROGRELEE

Mr. Raymond CHAN Wai-man BRIZ A

Mrs. Augusta CHEUNG, BH REEZ 2+, BH

Dr. CHIN Kwai-sang REEET

Mr. HUNG Sze-wai ARMERE

Prof. David LAM Chuen-chun MR IREIX

Mr. Leton LEE Yuk-pui FRIEEE

Mr. LEUNG Wing-cheung BKFEFRAE

Mr. Derek LOUIE Chi-hang ERITRAE

Mr. Bondi LUK Pak-shing ==y e

Mr. NG Ka-ho REFLE

Mr. NG Ping-hong RIAELEE

Representative of the Director-General of THEHEERREK
Trade and Industry

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BTREREREK

Representative of the Executive Director of BEIIRBEPATHERR

the Vocational Training Council



Printing and Publishing Training Board

Chairman
Mr. YAN Tak-chung

Vice-Chairlady
Ms. CHEUNG Shin-yee

Members

Mr. Edmund CHAN Ka-yeung
Mr. CHAN Tad-kin

Mr. FUNG Man-ching

Mr. Eric KWOK

Ms. KWONG Kwan-lai

Mr. Charles LAl Chau-wah
Miss Cynthia LAM Sum-sum
Mr. Peter LAU Man-pong
Mr. LEUNG Siu-yin

Mr. Herman LO Kwok-ming
Mr. MAK Wai-kei

Mr. Thomas NG Wang-kuen
Dr. Allen SHI Lop-tak, MH, JP
Mr. Conrad SO Wah-sum
Mr. SIT Sai-yu

Mr. TSANG Hip-tai

Representative of the Director of Government Logistics
Representative of the Director-General of Trade

and Industry

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

Bt ERBKIREES

Chairman E
Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP BEPIE & TA2AM, JP

Real Estate Services Training Board

Vice-Chairman BEE

Dr. Joseph LAU Kwong-yiu 2 RE L
Members £8

Mr. Henry CHAN Sai-lun PeR tH B ST A
Prof. Eddie HUI Chi-man HESPEE
Dr. KWONG Tsz-man BFiE
Ms. Serena LAU Sze-wan 2=FE i+
Mr. Eric LEE Chun-ming TR SH A
Mr. LEUNG Kam-leung PIBTITAE
Mr. Simon SHAM Sik-shing WRZY e
Mr. SHARE Tai-ki SNRESLA
Mr. David TSE Kin-wah HREL A
Mr. WONG Ho-ming =AERLEE
Dr. WOO Wai-man HHEREL
Mr. Kelvin YAU Man-fat BB A
Dr. Daisy YEUNG Kam-lan BeEELT
Mr. Alex YU Kaki REELAE

Representative of the Chief Executive Officer of MERIEEE BITHEHRR
the Estate Agents Authority

Representative of the Director of Housing

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of

the Vocational Training Council

FREFRMAE
BT RERAR
BEIRRHTHERK



Retail Trade Training Board

Chairman
Mr. Nicholas JIM Tak-hing

Vice-Chairman
Mr. Henry YIP Cheuk-tak

Members

Mr. lan CHOY Jing-man (up to 23 July 2012)

Ms. Elsa SO Man-wa (since 1 November 2012)

Mr. Samson CHU Chi-ming

Mr. Nicholas FUNG Kai-wah

Mr. Antonio KOO Yin-lun

Dr. Stella KWAN Mun-yee

Mr. Dennis LAU Hak-bun

Mr. TANG Cheung-sing

Mr. WAI Yau-on

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

Security Services Training Board

Chairman
Mr. Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, MH, JP

REZRBEIREZER
EE
SERIES A, MH, JP

Members £8

Mr. Gary BUKOWICKI Mr. Gary BUKOWICKI
Mr. Michael CHAN Yin-tim PRERNTE

Ms. Janna CHENG On-ki 2 2+

Mr. Daniel CHUI Yiu-hung TRIBIESE &

Mr. Danny HO Wai-yin AEELEE

Dr. KWONG Tsz-man B 3iE

Mr. Andrew LEE Chun-lai THERESE

Mr. Bruce LEE TR EE

Mr. Vincent LO Wing-keung 25K 58 S A

Mr. John NG Sheung-lok RERELE

Mr. Percy KONG Tat-fun TEEEE

Mr. Michael WONG Wai-hung =EELE
Representative of the Commissioner of Police LRk
Representative of the Director of Housing BEEFERARER
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BlkkxEK

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

BEIRBATHERR



Textile and Clothing Training Board

Chairman
Mr. Kenneth LO Lok-fung

Vice-Chairman
Mr. WOO Pat-nie

Members

Mr. CHAN Wing-lok

Mr. CHANG Yan-yiu

Mr. Sam CHEN Tong-sang

Mr. Felix CHUNG Kwok-pan
Mr. HSU Wen-chuan

Mr. Cornel KWAN Yat-hong

Dr. KWOK Yi-lin

Mr. David LEE

Mr. Richard LOK Kee-loong
Mr. Spike NGAI Chi-man

Mr. Stanley SZETO Chi-yan

Mr. TAM Chin-ming

Mr. Thomas WONG Cheung-chi
Mr. Nature YANG Tzu-jan

Mr. Clement YOUNG Sheung-ching
Ms. Susanna YU Sui-king
Prof. Marcus YUEN Chun-wah

Representative of the Director-General of

Trade and Industry

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of

the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

Transport Logistics Training Board

Chairlady B

Ms. Anny TSE Ting-ting HEEit
Members £E

Mr. Stephen CHENG Wui-yau e rEE
Mr. Emil LAl Cheung-kwong RS
Mr. Victor LAl Kong-ying FEE T S A
Dr. Stephen LEUNG Chi-hang 2EEELT
Mr. Paul LI Ping-hung IR A
Dr. Leon LI Yuk-on TELBL
Mr. Alfred LO Wing-yat BB oK S ST A

Ms. Alice LUI Yuen-nga (since 1 November 2012)

Efit (2012411 A1 8#)

Mr. Deforest NG Che-kan REEIE
Mr. Ryan TANG Chi-yan BEC s
Ir Madison TANG Wing-hong Bk % TF2AM
Mr. Terence WONG Chiu-kit eyl e
Mr. Thomas WONG Tak-kwong T
Mr. Simon YAP Thian-chai ERUEAE

Mr. YEUNG Lin-pik (since 1 November 2012)
Ms. Alice YIP Wai-chong (since 1 November 2012)
Representative of the Executive Director of

the Vocational Training Council

BB A (2012511 A1 BE)
HEEU T+ (H2012F11 A1 8%)

BEIRBATHERR



Committee on Apprenticeship and Trade Testing

Chairman
Mr. WONG Kit-loong

Vice-Chairman
Mr. Ringo CHOI Tai-wing (up to 21 July 2012)

Members

Mr. CHAN Chi-hin

Mr. CHAN Yiu-hung

Mr. Ramuel CHENG Chung-yan

Mr. Alec HO Yat-wan

Ms. Rachel LEE Wei (since 1 November 2012)

Mr. LUI Kin-hung

Mr. MAK Wai-hung

Mr. SO Hon-choi

Mr. WOO Chun-kit (up to 19 September 2012)

Representative of the Secretary for Education

Representative of the Director of Electrical and
Mechanical Services

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

ERNRIIREREES

Committee on Information Technology Training

and Development

Chairlady
Mrs. Agnes MAK TANG Pik-yee, MH, JP

£

BEEFELZ L, MH, JP

Members £8

Prof. Patrick CHAU Yam-keung [EE R HUR
Mr. Raymond CHENG Siu-hong NS
Mr. CHOY Chat-kwan BORRTA
Dr. James FOK Ting-yeung EEAFELT
Mr. Alan HUI Tak-lun BRG] b

Ir Sunny LEE Wai-kwong, JP

FECTIRRD, JP

Mr. Gordon LO Siu-chung ZLBEESE
Mr. Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit TFHEEAE
Mr. Tony TAI Chark-tong BEXRELE
Prof. TAM Kar-yan R 5 AR
Mr. Victor WANG Hok-pun FEMR L
Dr. WONG Chung-kiu =HPAELT
Mr. Ricky WONG Wai-kay FHELELE
Mr. Nelson YEUNG Wai-miu HBEREE

Representative of the Government
Chief Information Officer

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

BT ERR AR
BEIRBATHERR



Committee on Management and Supervisory Training

Chairlady
Mrs. Margaret CHENG LAW Wai-fun

Members

Mr. Raymond CHAN Wai-man

Prof. Alfred HO Sai-pak

Mr. Fred KWAN Yau-fat

Mr. Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

Ms. Connie LAM Tsui-wa

Mr. LAU Kar-wah

Dr. Kevin LAU Kin-wah, JP

Mr. Peter LIU

Dr. LO Kam-wing

Dr. Mac MAK Wai-ming

Mr. Eddie NG Hak-kim, SBS, JP
(up to 30 June 2012)

Mr. Martin TAM Tin-fong

Prof. WONG Chi-sum

Ms. Winnie YEUNG Cheung-wah

Representative of the Civil Service Training and
Development Institute, Civil Service Bureau

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

BEEREBEIRESR
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
dREZEGN-—REES

Committee on Technologist Training

REHIREES

Chairman £

Mr. CHEUNG Chee-wah RAEELA
Vice-Chairman EES:

Dr. Edwin KWONG Kwok-wah SR EEIE
Members £8

Mr. Raymond CHENG Wai-man EME ST
Ms. CHUNG Wai-har EEENT
Prof. KI Wing-hung Bk HEHUR
Mr. Michael LEE Pui-kuen RS A
Ir Dr. LI Chi-kwong BB - 260
Mr. Raymond LI Sing-wang TEREE
Mr. Simon LIU Sing-pang BERfS A
Dr. Stephen NG REHEL
Mr. Ken TSUI Wai-hung REHEEE
Mr. WAI Yip-kin BEREA
Mr. Joely WAN Yiu-keung B IRR ST A
Mr. Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing BEREAE
Mr. Jack YEUNG Chung-kit BIREB LA

Representative of the Vocational Training Council
Representative of the Commissioner for
Innovation and Technology
Representative of the Secretary for Development
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

BRI BHRR
BRI BERAR

TRERHRARX

BRIIRBIITHERR



Committee on Vocational Training for People
with Disabilities

Chairman
Mr. Herman HUI Chung-shing, BBS, MH, JP

Members

Mr. CHEUNG Kin-fai, MH

Ms. Irene CHOW Man-ling

Ms. Nicole LI Po-man

Prof. Cecilia LI TSANG Wai-ping

Ms. TSANG Chi-hung

Mrs. Susan SO CHAN Wai-hang

Mr. Eddie SUEN Kwok-tung

Mrs. Christy TUNG NG Ling-ling

Mr. Wilfred WONG Kam-pui

Mr. Nelson YIP, MH

Representative of the Secretary for Education
Representative of the Director of Social Welfare
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Secretary for Labour and Welfare

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF
THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL

BRIKRREERS

As at 31 March 2013
HZE2013%3H31H

Council
HES

Council Committees
HEEBETR/REES

Executive Director
HITHE

Deputy Executive Director (A) Deputy Executive Director (B)

BAFITHE (B)

BEITHE A

Principals/ Centre Principal/ Head/ Officer-in- Principal/ Head/ Principal/ Principals/ Director/ Senior

Youth College Director/ Yeo Chei Man Vocational charge/ School of Quality Hong Kong IVE Institutional Assistant

BEEZR HITDC and Senior Training for Office of the Business and Assurance Design ERER Advancement Executive

R& CCTl Secondary People with Director of Information and Institute and B2k Division Director/
e School Disabilities Apprenticeship Systems Accreditation IVE R BRARN Headquarters

EHERAD BFx Section LHBHE IHERSR Office (Lee Wai Lee) Be Division 1
R BRER BREAL £ & BERER BEAER: BREE-R

TEFERR RE BEGa TEEHRE ZRREE BRENE

Be E3 £ EXHEER TRz

(ZEH)
&
Legend:

CCTI: Chinese Cuisine Training Institute I EEEFEEpR
HITDC: Hospitality Industry Training and Development Centre Hi 3z BR #5315 5l 3% f& b0
IVE: Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education EBEEHE L
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Deputy Executive Director (C) Deputy Executive Director (D)
BE#ITHE (O BHATHE D)

Senior Assistant
Executive Director
(Corporate Goverance)

BRBEHTHE (BEBEH)

Head/ General Senior Head/ President/ Director/ Head/ Head/ Head/ Head/ Head/ Head/ Head/
Higher and Manager/ Assistant Centre for Technological International Human Central Information Estates, Finance and External Internal Audit
Professional Qualifications Executive Learning and Higher Development Resources Services Technology Health and Supplies Relations Unit

Education Framework Director/ and Teaching Education Division Division Division Services Safety Division Office ARERA
Division Secretariat Headquarters HERL Institute of BERBRER ANERR RREKR Division Division BHR MR £
5% BEER Division 2 IE Hong Kong ag £l IE BHRR EEXEER MREER %
EEHEN WER BRBE-R BEEENR R REZ2H *E
EdS) AL BREE HEER Ed ) EdS)
W8S RE&




For enquiries &5 External Relations Office,

Vocational Training Council
BN RB ISR

Address Hbit VTC Tower, 27 Wood Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
ERBTEE 27T EREIRR KIE

Tel &3 (852) 2836 1000
Fax E&H (852) 2838 0667
Website #81it http:/www.vtc.edu.hk

FlEREE
caringorganisation

Awarded by The Hong Koﬂg Cczuncl\ of Social Ser\i\cz
e SRFHER%

(A7 Printed on environmentally friendly paper
D0 sBREDR






OPPORTUNITIES + ACTION - SUCCESS
M- -B#®- -lh

www.avtc.edu hk



CELEBRATING

MILESTONES ‘/Tc

*E R B BB XX

B X ®RB
VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL






BEIN®RB
VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL
FINANCIAL REPORT &1 # #& & 2012/2013



Overview of Operating Results

Vocational Training Council

BEIRB

Auditor’s Report
A ClE: sy

Consolldated Statement of Comprehensive Income

rEEENE

Statement of Comprehensive Income

EHENER

Consolldated Balance Sheet
n‘/-.ﬁ = ﬁ?ﬁ1ﬁ%

Balance Sheet

BEEBEX

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

HEETEEHR

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

BB HMRRK

Consolldated Cash Flow Statement

an\ IE%U“JE%

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R P AE

06

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15






OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

EERRBA

Consolidated Financial Statements

Following the prevailing accounting principles in Hong Kong, the
Council has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year 2012-13 presenting the operating results and financial
position of the Council and its subsidiaries (the Group) of the year.
A total income of HK$4,221.8M (2011-12: HK$3,966.9M) and
total expenditure of HK$3,866.5M (2011-12: HK$3,668.0M) were
reported.

Operating Results

As compared with 2011-12, the increase in the Group’s income
was mainly attributed to the increase in Government subventions
including Matching Grants, scholarship to students and pay
adjustment for 2012, increase in tuition fees income and donations.

The increase in expenditure was mainly due to the increase in staff
expenses resulting from pay rise, start-up expenses for the new VTC
Degree Programmes and increase in scholarships to the outstanding
students.

The operating results of the major activities in 2012-13 are set out
in the paragraphs below.

Consolidated Income (2012-13)
2012-13F EHFE WA

6%

33%

® Government Subventions

® Tuition Fees and Training Charges

SBENREEN

® Other Income

HAUA
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Consolidated Expenditure (2012-13)
2012-13F EFE WA

7%

13%

@ Staff Expenses
ETHX

® Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses

REREREBEREMX

® Consumables, Equipment and Library Books
HEMEYm  REREE

® Other Expenses

Hpa <



Activities Financed by Government Recurrent Subventions
Total income for the year 2012-13 amounted to $2,950.2M (2011-
12: $2,750.3M), of which $2,211.5M (2011-12: $2,082.3M)
was recurrent subventions from the Government, $576.9M from
tuition fees and training charges, and $161.8M from bank interest
and other income. Total expenditure for 2012-13 amounted to
$2,709.6M (2011-12: $2,586.8M). The savings of $240.6M was
transferred to the Council’s Reserves for implementation of new
initiatives and other developments.

Activities Financed by Other Specific Government Grants

In addition to the Government’s subventions, the Council
successfully obtained grants under a number of specific Government
Funds. These mainly included the Manpower Development Scheme,
Social Welfare Department Project, Government Scholarship
Schemes and Matching Grant Schemes. Total income for the year
amounted to $157.7M and expenditure amounted to $132.2M.

Self-financing Activities

In 2012-13, the Group ran its self-financing activities mainly through
the operation of the VTC School of Business and Information
Systems (SBI), the VTC School for Higher and Professional Education
(SHAPE), Institute of Professional Education and Knowledge (PEAK),
Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School (YCMSSS), Technological
and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEi) and other part-
time courses/programmes. Total income generated from the self-
financing activities for the year was $970.8M and expenditure
incurred was $923.7M.

Building Programmes and Capital ltems

For the year 2012-13, a total of $235.1M was incurred on building
programmes and capital items, of which $191.0M was funded by the
Government Subventions and the remaining by the Council Reserves
and its self-financed earning account. These projects included
the renovation of campus in Tsing Yi, construction of student
development education centre and modification of the existing staff
and student canteen at VTC Pokfulam Training Centre Complex as
well as other alterations, additions and improvement projects.

Retirement Schemes

Other than the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (MPFS) set up
under the Hong Kong MPFS Ordinance, the Council’s retirement
schemes also included the VTC Provident Fund Scheme (1999) and
the VTC Retirement and Death Gratuity Scheme for Minor Staff.
These schemes were registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance and granted exemption pursuant to the MPFS
Ordinance.

New Technology Training Fund

New Technology Training Fund (the Fund) was established by the
Government to finance the New Technology Training Scheme (the
Scheme). The Council administers the Scheme and holds the Fund
on trust for the Government. The balance of revenue fund as at 31
March 2013 was HK$6.1M.

Mr. Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman
6 September 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO

THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL (THE COUNCIL)

B SR 9 AR R HY B ML A AT R

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the
Vocational Training Council (the Council) and its subsidiaries
(together the Group) set out on page 8 to page 60, which comprise
the consolidated and Council balance sheets as at 31 March
2013, the consolidated and Council statements of comprehensive
income, the consolidated and Council statement of changes in fund
balances and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Council’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Vocational Training
Council Ordinance and for such internal control as the Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 18 of the Vocational
Training Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

06 | Vocational Training Council & 25l 4k /&
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Council as at
31 March 2013 and of the Group’s and the Council’s surplus and the
Group’s cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Vocational Training Council Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

6 September 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BZE2013F3A31MBLFEENGEEEWER

Note 2013 2012
MisE HK$'000 HK$°000
INCOME WA
Government Subventions B E 3 2,585,081 2,426,775
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BERREEH 4 1,412,985 1,389,329
Interest Income FEU A 63,172 49,235
Donations B 5 56,451 14,013
Other Income HAbA 6 104,149 87,559
Total Income PN | 4,221,838 3,966,911
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses BEIMX 7
Full-time Staff Expenses ZHETHE 2,497,474 2,317,735
Part-time Staff Expenses RBETHAY 113,946 123,821
Temporary Staff Expenses RIEEE TR 198,254 227,007
Other Staff Expenses HtETH% 23,118 23,163
2,832,792 2,691,726
Other Operating Expenses Hih&Em >
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books HEMYSR  REREE 288,417 278,069
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses RE:ZEREBRERX 483,654 470,872
Hire of Services and Professional Fees BEERKER 48,766 45,583
Student/Trainee Grants and Amenities 24 BEFHBKRIE 67,925 43,195
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses JREZEE, —REEEHX 34,618 43,028
Staff Development and Visits ETEIRAE 15,959 15,028
Other Expenses HinpAx 94,391 80,538
1,033,730 976,313
Total Expenditure T H4aRE 3,866,522 3,668,039
Surplus before taxation BRI AT R SR 355,316 298,872
Taxation FIE 9 382 143
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE rEEBHR
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ZHEHKRARE 354,934 298,729
TRANSFER TO: WRE
Reserves fEE 10 240,553 163,543
Specific and Other Funds BEARRHEMES 11 114,381 135,186
354,934 298,729

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Group’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRY [AFERS | ARERERFRALREEMEE WS - AUAEBN A FERR | BER2EKRSRE] -

The notes on page 15 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.

PIFNE IS EEFE 60 EZMERAMBIRR 2 —87 °
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BZE2013F3A3MBHLEFENZEHWER

Note 2013 2012
BEE HK$'000 HK$’000
INCOME WA
Government Subventions BE@E 3 2,565,699 2,399,297
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BENEEER 4 781,878 756,707
Interest Income FIEWA 55,592 44,651
Donations B 5 55,668 13,037
Other Income Hebg A 6 311,226 343,406
Total Income WA 3,770,063 3,557,098
EXPENDITURE i
Staff Expenses ETMX 7
Fulltime Staff Expenses 2BETHX 2,123,351 1,992,401
Part-time Staff Expenses RBEIRX 97,930 109,257
Temporary Staff Expenses REFETHY 193,363 215,457
Other Staff Expenses HETHX 21,734 21,170
2,436,378 2,338,285
Other Operating Expenses Hih & ERX
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books HEMYR  REREE 264,216 253,518
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses RefmlEBREeERx 476,158 462,682
Hire of Services and Professional Fees BHERKEA 43,786 40,200
Student/Trainee Grants and Amenities 24 EERBNRE 56,324 31,244
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses HsEes —RESSEY 34,534 42,796
Staff Development and Visits ETIREIRAE 14,063 14,527
Other Expenses Hibp X 122,487 95,719
1,011,568 940,686
Total Expenditure XA 3,447,946 3,278,971
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REEBRHE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2HNHEEE 322,117 278,127
TRANSFER TO: ERE
Reserves wES 10 240,553 163,543
Specific and Other Funds BERERHMES 11 81,564 114,584
322,117 278,127

The Council had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Council’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRY [AFER N BARERFALLBHMZENE BRIV AFERR ISR [ 2EWHEBE] -

The notes on page 15 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.

PIENE 15 HEEF 60 EZMERAMBRR 2 -7 °
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

2013F 3 A31HHNGEEEAERX

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed Assets

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets
Deposits

Bank Deposits with Maturity over One Year

CURRENT ASSETS
Loans to Staff
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and
Other Receivables
Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months
Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 6 September 2013

M20135F9 A6 H o

M FIREESEERIBERR

Mr. Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEINRBDERE

BREE{=% 4%, SBS, JP

Note
BiaE

FREBEE

EE&EE 12
BIER 16
EEERNRBREE 15
Be

FH A BB —FMRTER

REEE

EBIER 16
FEWERIE » FARRUER

HitfEWERE 17
FEABE=EANRTER
BeRBELEEY 18
nEaE
FETERIE » EFtT R

Ht eI iR 19(a)
EEEFIZERE 19(c)
—ERNEEENER 20
EREW 21
REEEFE

EEHBERRBER

FRBEE
EEEFIZERE 19(c)
AW = 21
BEFE

FRHELE -

wEES 10
BERAERAEMES 11
B

The notes on page 15 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIENEE 15 X% 60 A2 MER AR BRER 2 —8D °
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2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,307,405 2,345,485
1,386 1,797
8,070 7,707
3,627 4,754
200,000 200,000
2,520,488 2,559,743
1,332 1,858
68,200 60,516
3,181,061 2,308,781
796,038 1,247,541
4,046,631 3,618,696
1,004,201 973,255
385,582 399,446
2,829 3,830
293,104 248,010
1,685,716 1,624,541
2,360,915 1,994,155
4,881,403 4,553,898
10,180 2,598
1,325,565 1,360,576
1,335,745 1,363,174
3,545,658 3,190,724
251,526 250,483
3,294,132 2,940,241
3,545,658 3,190,724




BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

2013 3HA31HNEEEER

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed Assets

Investments in Subsidiaries

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets
Deposits

Bank Deposits with Maturity over One Year

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to Staff

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and
Other Receivables

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable, Accruals and
Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits

Loans Payable within One Year

Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 6 September 2013
MR2013F9H6H
HEXIRFGESEMIRBEER

Mr. Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
B ARD E
PREE{ZSE4E, SBS, JP

Note
MsE

FRBEE

EEEE 12
HB L RMNKRE 13
BTER 16
EERKEANEE 15
we
FHRBBE—FEMNRITEN
REEE

BETIER 16
FEURERIE ~ FEAFRIBER

HifEWERIE 17
FHEBRE=@AAMNRTER
BEeRREEEY 18
nEaE
FE{SERIE « BRI

HfE (S BRIE 19(a)
EERFERE 19(c)
—ERNEEENER 20
EAEW 21
REEEFE

BEEMEBERARBER

FRBEE
EERFEE 19(c)
EREW 2 21
EEFE

FRREBELE -

e 10
BERERAEMES 11
BLBE

The notes on page 15 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JHRE IS EEFE 60 EZMERNMHHREKRZ—

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,295,457 2,338,109
1,386 1,797
8,070 7,707
3,627 4,754
200,000 200,000
2,508,540 2,552,367
1,332 1,858
60,600 48,655
3,181,061 2,308,781
775,988 1,218,193
4,018,981 3,577,487
1,330,054 1,253,963
384,293 398,771
2,829 3,830
292,019 247,442
2,009,195 1,904,006
2,009,786 1,673,481
4,518,326 4,225,848
7,355 1,983
1,325,565 1,360,576
1,332,920 1,362,559
3,185,406 2,863,289
251,526 250,483
2,933,880 2,612,806
3,185,406 2,863,289
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
BZE2013F3 A3 HLEEENGEELSRBRE

Balance as at 1 April 2011
Inter-Fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2012

Balance as at 1 April 2012
Inter-Fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2013

The notes on page 15 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2011 % 4 B 1 BH#EeR
REE S
NEERHEEHW S AR

2012%F 3 A 31 B4

2012F 4 A1 B&t4
RPESER
AEERHE2ENGAE

2013 3 A 31 Bk

PIFNE IS EEF 60 EZMERAMBIRER 2 —87 °
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Specific and

Other Funds
Reserves BEAERR Total
ES Hith &€ HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
140,914 2,751,081 2,891,995
(53,974) 53,974 -
163,543 135,186 298,729
250,483 2,940,241 3,190,724

(Note 10) (Note 11)

(KzE10) (PffaE11)
250,483 2,940,241 3,190,724
(239,510) 239,510 -
240,553 114,381 354,934
251,526 3,294,132 3,545,658

(Note 10) (Note 11)

(M 10) (MyeE11)



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BZ2013F3A31BHILELEENESLEHRR

Specific and
Other Funds
Reserves BEARRK Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2011 2011 F 4 A1 B8R 140,914 2,444,248 2,585,162
Inter-Fund Transfers AIPE SR (53,974) 53,974 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income FEERRR2HANREHE
for the Year 163,543 114,584 278,127
Balance as at 31 March 2012 2012F 3 A 31 BEE& 250,483 2,612,806 2,863,289
(Note 10) (Note 11)
(FzE10) (FfaE11)
Balance as at 1 April 2012 2012 4 B 1 A#&sk 250,483 2,612,806 2,863,289
Inter-Fund Transfers ABESHER (239,510) 239,510 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income FEERMRREZHEKREE
for the Year 240,553 81,564 322,117
Balance as at 31 March 2013 20133 A 31 &6k 251,526 2,933,880 3,185,406
(Note 10) (Note 11)
(HizE10) (MizE11)

The notes on page 15 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JIENE 15 EEF 60 A ZMERAAMBRR 287 °

Financial Report 81 # ¥k £:2012/2013 | 13



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BZE2013F3A31MBLEENGEHESRER

Note 2013 2012
(i HK$'000 HK$'000
Operating Activities REEH
Surplus before Taxation BRBLAI R Eh 355,316 298,872
Adjustments for: FEIER
Subventions and Donations for Capital Projects BRI ERIRIER (213,515) (160,634)
Depreciation of Fixed Assets EEEETE 280,334 262,530
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBTEEZER 1,123 29
Interest Expense FEXH - 3,627
Interest Income MEWA (63,172) (49,235)
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BRERZASER - (3,627)
Operating Surplus before Changes in Working Capital BEESRBR v KL B 360,086 351,632
Increase in Deposits and Accounts Receivable, BITEHER  BUGRE
Prepayments and Other Receivables BARER At EKERE ZEm (6,557) (16,459)
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable, FE{HERIE - R R
Accruals and Other Payables HAbREfERE 218,/ (D) 30,946 (25,722)
Decrease in Provision for Employee Benefits BERANEHREZRD (6,645) (74,937)
Increase in Deferred Income EEW S 2B m 10,083 52,590
Net Decrease in Bank Loan for On-lending to Staff BETFEIMNRTENFEZIRD (1,001) (2,612)
Decrease in Loans to Staff EIERZEYD 937 2,551
Cash Generated from Operations REMEEC RS 387,849 287,043
Hong Kong Profits Tax Paid BHEBAEH (382) (258)
Cash Generated from Operating Activities RETHREL RS  38r467 286,785
Cash Flows from Investing Activities RETHZHER
Payment of Capital Expenditure ERTHAR (243,732) (338,508)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets HEBEEEMBEIE 355 78
Interest Received 2 UHFE 63,172 49,235
Increase in Placement of Fixed Deposits with ROITHEREHBER
Banks with Maturity over Three Months =@ zEm (872,280) (608,781)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities REFBAEANREEE 0 (1,052485)  (897,974)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities RETBZHER
Subventions and Donations for Capital Projects ERIRMEEIRER 213,515 160,634
Repayment of Government Loan BEHNER = (106,560)
Recognition of Deferred Income on Loan from Government ~ BREBBFER 2 ELE W - 3,627
Unamortised Deferred Income REHE 2 EEW R - 3,746
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities AEEDEENRSTFE 213515 61447
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents BERACEE/BYZRD (451,503) (549,742)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1 April R4B1LENEERESSEY 1,247,541 1,797,283
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31 March R3A3BNEEREEEEY 18 796,038 1,247,541

The notes on page 15 to page 60 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SIFREE 15 HEE 60 A2 MR/ AU BHREK 2 —#7 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 & B

(a)

(b)

BACKGROUND

de B
=8

The Vocational Training Council (the Council) was established in Hong Kong under the Vocational Training Council Ordinance
(the Ordinance). Under Section 17(3) of the Ordinance, the Council has to cause to be prepared, after the end of each financial
year, a statement of comprehensive income of the Council during that financial year and a balance sheet of the Council on the
last day thereof.

BT D (AEEIIE) BB ZEIN R BRG] (BZRG) EE BRI o ZIRPIFE L7 Q)RR TE » BIIE ARS8 I
FEERE  GEBZFELAEBALNZAWRSER  URREEBNEEAER

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FEEFTER

Statement of Compliance
EREH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Council and its subsidiaries (collectively the Group) is set out below.

REBHERDZREBSTHMASAMAEBERANCEBMBREELN)  (BEABERZ@AMEBHHEREER)  (F
BEFTEARRE)  UREBARSTRADMERD - BIIBRENE AR (RBARE) RANTIESTHBERBENT -

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Council. There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial statements for
the current year and prior year presented as a result of these developments.

BRI ASAME THA REEITHCE B BREEN)  HEEREARBERBINEEA 2SHHBERER < It
LRPHUAKBENNUEISTHBNSHER LA BHEESE -

The Group has not applied any amendments, new standards or interpretations that are not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see Note 25).

REEI R AR AR RARSTTHRBERWEET - EARZE GBE2RHME25) °

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

MR RRELE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 comprise the Council and its subsidiaries.

HE2013F3 A31 ALFENRSMBRREERIBREMBLF -

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

R BHRERABEEUAERTEER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEK = EI-I-E& II,\

(b) Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
MR RNEREE (F)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
ERATE(EBVMBEREEN) 2B HRRE  EEEAFLENESHBRZERAREE - A6  WARIHZREH
ER IR ~ fhet RERER o &éﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁm%L&zM%&mﬁﬁﬁ@%RTEAEMEWI%WWE HERK
AHEHMRRTEAZENEEREENREBEELHENER - ERERTREEANZEME -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision

and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

z%m%&m%ﬁ&gﬁ@m:o% Hﬁ*tﬁﬂnh BT REEEETHETER - AMSITTERNEHER - B8
RAIFERNERUAREE BTSN ENRUEFERR

(c) Subsidiaries
MEQTR

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

MEARRESIAARBEFNER - ZFREAKBEREFHERNU B REBEIER » LREKPEBIF G  sHEEHE
i ZEEEAUTENEEREE -

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

HWBERARNRESHEEEFEFREIAGEMBRERAN > EEZHBRLERLE -BEBRARZENERERS U
REBRALRIZEERZMEENAREZRERN  SNERGESVBRRETULEIESE - BBARARZBARZAEEN
ARERBEENRERETKNERT @ LUEHEAREZRKEWAER AT UK o

In the Council’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (see Note 2(f)).

ERHIRB2EERBERA - HHBEQARANKREUAXRSTHRBEBERRESR FE2HEME2(f)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

(d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
R = EI-I-JBZ I\,\

Fixed Assets
BE&EE

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(f)).

BlEEEARAHRRINERBERSEST FSHME2

Land and/or buildings owned or held under a leasehold interest by the Council which are leased to subsidiaries are classified
as investment properties in the Council’s balance sheet. Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(f)).

BillREESAEZ2L R FEF  AUEETHEAR  ERBHIR2EEABERTIBEARENE - ZEEE UK
NMENMBRBFHERRERENTR (F2HME2f) °

The Group estimates the useful lives of various categories of fixed assets on the basis of their designed life, planned asset
maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
AHBRERERTEEZRITTEE  #EHAEREREALE  RAETHAUEAFH - TERRBEEEEENTE AI®E
RAER > MESEZREHMGFREEBE (NER) - AUEEERA - FHBUT !

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use are depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

BRAZEE T RZGTHAMAERE -

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of completion.

UAEEL EZBTF » REZBRTNWEBRHEIERFR - EFZHNEM A HR 0 F (MBEE) Rt ENE -

- Improvements works shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives of 5-7
BFHREIRE years

BT EBRETAIERFER (5-7F)  UREERE

- Furniture and equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7
RARRKE years

BENSESESEFAIERFR(4-7F)  UBEERE
- Computer equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7

SR E years
EHENFHERBRFETIFERFR (4-7F)  UBEER%E

Financial Report 81 # ¥k £2012/2013 | 17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
FTESE B (A

Fixed Assets (Cont’d)
EE&EE (&)

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different useful lives, each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

HEEEENSBINAFERAFRARE  SBINTEAEBHE -EEZTAFRRAFRGEGWER) IERESFE
THET ©

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
on the date of retirement or disposal.
iﬁﬁéﬁ%%@iﬁézuﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁwﬁ&%Fﬁ?%WA?%%E@EEEEEEEEEZ%%EEE%E C WARBSHEERIIAR
HUWRERA °

Construction in Progress
EEIR

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which comprises accumulated costs of construction, professional fees and interest
expenses, if any, capitalised prior to the completion of the respective projects, less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. These costs for work carried out are based on interim certificates certified by professional personnel, which may
differ from the actual future settlement. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred
to the appropriate category of fixed assets when the construction is completed and the asset is ready for its intended use.
ERIBERUNAHBRBEERBESR  BEFRHEARE  c A BEEFEEER EXBARIETHAMERLBFE
S (MER) BEUIERNARRBEZEASHEZRNPHESREEN - ELENRIEEERNEERNEREMEA - &
IR7RA EECAERETAERN  HERNAFEFLEEA L MERIRGUEBAEEEENEENERF -

Impairment of Non-current Assets
FREEERIE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired, or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
FEBEEBELERSZABIIIRNEE  UREUTEERBLERBETR  SIRUEEINHESETBEER
BEHD

- Fixed assets (including investment properties);

BEEE (BREREWX) ;

- Construction in progress; and

TEIR R

- Investments in subsidiaries.

HNBRRMRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

()

(8)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
TEEF PR (&)

Impairment of Non-current Assets (Cont’d)
FRBEERME (F)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of such an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
MEHBERESR  FEELEENTRESENGE cEEENRESESRTRESER  FEE2HKRERERR
BEE518 -

(i) Calculation of Recoverable Amount

AR EHENETE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where fixed asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
EENANEHEEREARBHNREENAEEREEMEFTNRSHE - RFMEREER  AFNARRRASRE
DBRAERRBEHSIGESHEREEZFERR ZHAIMRE  BREHRE EETEETEBE IR HEHA
EEELRERER BUEBYELRERENGE )N —HEE(WEERSEN) AEVEETINE SR -

(i) Reversal of Impairment Losses

BEBEED

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
EREREATRESENGTHREEESEN  EEREFESHER - MERNKEBEUBRREUATEE IR
RAEBEMECEENEERASEAR - FERNRESBERIAEBRENFERTAZERGER

Accounts and Other Receivables
PE U BR 18 I H fth FE U TR 1E

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

FEWRER HMEKRRIENRERAABERR  HERBEERAZEEERALTBRERRERNREEREDR - MHiER
MERETHELIRERSIEEEFTERINERRITEFLETK » ERRENSRAATNBREERZRNEHESES
iR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

(h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEK = EI-I_E& II,\

Accounts and Other Receivables (Cont’d)
FE Uk BR 18 % H fib FE W =R R (4E)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when there is objective evidence of impairment and are
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about events that have an impact on the asset’s
estimated future cash flows such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

EERENEERER  RERNHESEFSRER - RERNAEFEREREENRABEEMATRAREERENE
BoOMTRNFEEN > JEFR - BENTEREERE - SURNEE  ErEAEBRERELARBEENMFTRRR
TRE  WEBABMBEE -

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within accounts and other receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that the recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

PR BRIE & H Ath FEUL R IE A %“M@%ﬁmﬁ BXARYEZEBWRENRESESRENEGRE P - ERKE
RAEBFEREWEE+ 5B EQE&F@W$E¢ﬁ@ FREBREPHEETIEEE - WEDRHENEERE
FRFIEENZRE PEE o E@FEQEEZE ''''' SMUEEHRHNEEREEBRERTPER -

Cash and Cash Equivalents
RERBEZEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
RERBRESEYERBRTEARRE - FRARITNEMHMBREBNERER  UREHRSRBMENIRE - BLRE
ALUBEKRBREREANRSEE  EESBTENRARTA  UEBAZR=EAREIE -

Accounts and Other Payables
FE(SRRIBE R H B FIE

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

BAREREMENFIENRZRAABERR - HRUBERATIR - HEETRZER K BIBIRAIIGR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

(k)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
TEEF PR (&)

Loans and Borrowings
BERREE

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in the statements of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

ERREENREAARBEINRER 2R Z RAER - Hi » ERREEUEERASIE - RBEIEEREDEE2E
HRERETMEIMNNFNERER  REERERFPUBRRRFAE » WIREEFHER -

Employee Benefits
EEEF

(i)

(iii)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

e FERS  BHFR  BURDZARBIEFEEEINES  ELARBEEREEBRBNEEANANR © i
MENINHENFTLEEEEEHTLEBEA » IZESHBUHEREIER -

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

REFBCAFE B EMRIDNREFELHNBFEIBESHR  MRKEEERERAER o

The Group’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit retirement scheme is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine the present value, and the fair value of any scheme assets is deducted. The discount rate is
the yield at balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of
the Group’s obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
AHBATMNERATERENEZHFENTEL ZRMTEES T E HA LE B B 1R H AR5 0] BREUR R4E R &
B SHEHZEEANHEREUEERE  RNHREFAGFIAEENAAEBE - SAEREMANTERRREBEES
RABESFNEEANBEREE  I2EQARAESFNIRRBELARBH R EMN S RAGT EABRBNERRAES < 5t
ERASERBEMERTENEBREANELET

When the benefits of a scheme are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by employees
is recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested. If the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognised immediately in the
statement of comprehensive income.

MEr B RENERIE N - BFREEUNTRBENVEFIGME D  BERANAREREFANTEIEEA - LEHE
E2ERBERIE - BNKEINEEEF  ASEEHRN2ERERERRX -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

U

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEK = EI-I-E& II,\

Employee Benefits (Cont’d)
EEER (&)

In calculating the Group’s obligation in respect of a scheme, if any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss
exceeds 10% of the greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of scheme assets,
that portion is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the expected average remaining working
lives of the employees participating in the scheme. Otherwise, the actuarial gain or loss is not recognised.
EAEARBHRAERENSZER  WEARARERINEEREREL  BAATHRBBNREREFSEEN
AABEMEFRSHEN10% > BEBISESHETENEENEDRFYEBTIHAFHR > E2HKRBERER ;
(=) /\uTéﬁEwu*’i'ﬂvu&ﬁ_ﬁ?ﬁ% ©

Where the calculation of the Group’s net obligation results in a negative amount, the asset recognised is limited to
the net total of any cumulative unrecognised net actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value of any
future refunds from the scheme or reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
MEFEAKBNERFENLHREH  BFEINEETSBREUT= @%%m$wﬁ ARG ARERNBE
BXRFE  FURFARERNWUERBEEAE - R AR EMENEMRRSERTRDHENIRE -

(iv) Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

BRRLHERSEARBEES - ARERGE GFERERENEE M)  THRBRXRTERALEESIH
EBEREAMGTEMA LEBESNMEF L MERER -

Income Tax
g8t

Income Tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit and loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

REEHEHEEAFHR - EEREAEERAENEE - RELAHGEEVSRIANETEEANEERINIAE 21868
MBET RS BRAHMEEREREREEANEERRN  BUAFEREREEREEEREENEB ARG RER
HERR o

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
AEEHBEFARERBBRAREEACENSEE LEERMBRFTE2FEHEMNHRIE e BREUEFERSHIE
AR REE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R ak B

U

(m)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
R = EI-I-JBZ I\,\

Income Tax (Cont’d)

Fﬁ %}E(II;)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the difference
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets
also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from differences which arise on initial recognition of assets
and liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.

EEMEBEEENEEI BTN RERHENEZEELY MENERENEEREBEEERRLNEEEHRELEER
EENABERMECEZR - EXEMEEETAIRBAREANBEESBRAREANTIEERSR - BRE TERNSFFIERI -
FrIEEERIEEE » URARRAEERERN A AT HIERNERELEHBEEY THEA

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying

amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

ﬁwLLﬁﬁméﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁmEEEZE%“E&FEET REABACENIES LB ERMBIRS
ELEBBEEERBEYFERTE -

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
EERIBEE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the Council has a legal or constructive

obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

MEAHBIBIE AN CBRENEHAELIEAIHRERY  METZEZREANSEISELBERENERIMNR » £

%Txﬁﬁgﬁ THBEFESRZNESIBETENEETRERS WRERKEEEEXR  ARBEFBTEHEMEI S
RET5IERE -

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
HMESHERBENENERMRVATEERE  XIRELZHEEHBELTENMG  FERZEBEREATEAE  BR
WEFEERIMROATREMEREARI c MRAKBNERERTFERIZRAAREARERETEREFEHES > FERK
BAREEE  BRUOEEERINRNATEEEBEKRERI o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEK = D-I-J——t& n,\

(n) Income Recognition
PN

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the Council and the income and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

W IIREWRERREZ AREETE - ﬁu%?@@du?%%ﬁ)\ﬂ&%%&% AE - MUAMBA (203E A ) X gE4A] 5
W ER  WAEESRETIEEEZHRRRAER

(i) Government Subventions

HFmeE

Government subventions consist of recurrent subventions, non-recurrent subventions and other specific grants
received from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the Government). Recurrent
subventions are recognised as income in the statement of comprehensive income when there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the subventions will be received. Non-
recurrent subventions are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditures incurred during the year.
BRSPS EFEREEBENTHRERSN (BBEBA) WEEHE - #REFDRAMBERRBN - EWNSER
EXARBREETEEMTRERESHICEFDERNE  EELHYSESELHUREREIBWA - FEE
HHEUFARENEBEIHESHARAREIRARA -

Subventions and grants earmarked for capital expenditure purpose are initially accounted for as deferred income (see
Note 2(0)) and are subsequently recognised as income over the useful life of the related assets when the assets are
put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.
EEARERIENFEDSRERVDASRIARELE RS (F2EHME20) HAEZEERFEAR > BPER
BREREEEEZTRAFHRAZE FﬁE’J*ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ%iﬂjéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ;’&%ﬂﬁu °

Other specific grants without a condition for refund of any unspent balances are recognised as income in the statement
of comprehensive income when received, while for those specific grants that contain a condition for refund of any
unspent balances are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditures incurred during the year.
REMFHEERENBSEAREN  BERUEREZAKRER LEIB/WA - BLEERERENSTERARRR
BUFRBENETEFRZISERRNFRABRBWA -

(ii) Tuition Fees and Training Charges

BENREZEARA

Tuitions fees and training charges are recognised as income on an accrual basis over the duration of the courses and
unearned fees and charges are treated as receipts in advance.

BERREEASRRRERERBEUETFIAR  BHE2ERBEBIAFHERKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

(n)

(0)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
R =] E-I-Eyﬁi I\,\

Income Recognition (Cont’d)

A

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

o (nﬁ)

Interest Income

FEUA

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

RITERAERNERUBRRREFELHER

Donations
B
Donations are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the Group becomes entitled to the

donations and it is probable that they will be received which is generally upon receipt of cash.

SNRIBEIA A B AR A NEZIRRE - BERUBRESHEZERSR LEIA/BWA -

Hire of Accommodation/ Facilities from Operating Leases

REMENTES Rtz

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the Iease term.

ReHENRUHESBATHSEHMRENSHHER - USHEE2ERERER -

Services Income

ARAE UL A

Services income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the related services are rendered.

REBALEBBERBRAEREZEWERBEID/EA -

Deferred Income
IEFE N &=

Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as revenue to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets incurred.

BERZENBRAEBDENEERIARELERLS - ERUEABERXIAREENTEHSBRMRBRARA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

(p)

(r)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
FTESE B (&)

Operating Lease Expenses

REBEXH

Where the Group and the Council has the use of assets held under operating leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group and the Council, payments made under the leases are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to statement of comprehensive income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

THERBIREZBLEHE (KEHEEREEHENEDR  RERBERN s HEEREH AR K RMEZE T KIS
RBHE) EREE  ARFEREHEEECELNREAFARRM S —EE  SRERBEHESFEENAR > EREAM
RENSTHBR  UEEE2AKRERNG - ISNEESBER  DEARBTFHEENREN—B2  E2EKRER
R -SEHEREEEZSTHHRE  E2XHKERPER -

Borrowing Costs

BERA

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

i BRRLEEE (A -—RREEREEZHEEARI TUHENEE) TEENERBE ZEERSTIFTAZRSE
BEZERA - HbEERAREL 2 BBRRAD/ZE -

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

MEEEBYAX  AENARETREAZRRTFUHENEEMENTE  EELNEEREASHRACEREENE
DA - BREEERRLETHLAMEEETARKHEER  FLEZEERTEEL -

Related Parties

BES

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

HBUAT AL  BRATHERENIRRE LS EETHE:

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

R E I B HEAE

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

HEARBEEAZE =

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

RAERBNIEEERAS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

(n

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
R =] E-I-Eyﬁi I\,\

Related Parties (Cont’d)

BREY (%)

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the foIIowing conditions applies:

i fF & T IUEM —IRIRG - BIXERERREEHE

(@)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

ZEREARBER -—HBRE (AZFQTE - MERRARNERKE QA KIEFE

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

H-BRASERNEEQATIIGELE(AE BERANERRAIZHBETHECHEARREEDR
%) -

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

MEBRIBE—E=F 288 -

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
—BERAS-FERCSELE ME-—BRAFE=FERIHENT

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

ZERATHBREAKEERERNESENMRVBERRENTE -

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i).

2B () EA TR HEES -

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

R(i)a) BEATAIHERBEALENRBEZER (FZEREIRE) TEEEAR -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

BRATHREOARKERERERETRE N  RPTRSEZENA LRI ZERIATHENRERS °
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GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS
TS

Recurrent Subventions
Non-recurrent Subventions

— Capital Works Reserve Fund

Major Capital Projects

Minor Building Projects
Non-recurrent Subventions

— Capital Accounts

Major Capital Items

Plant, Vehicles and Equipment

Capital Items for Skills Centres
Grants from Government Agencies
Matching Grants (Note 3(a))
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government

Recurrent Subventions
Non-recurrent Subventions

— Capital Works Reserve Fund

Major Capital Projects

Minor Building Projects
Non-recurrent Subventions

— Capital Accounts

Major Capital Items

Plant, Vehicles and Equipment

Capital Items for Skills Centres
Grants from Government Agencies
Matching Grants (Note3(a))
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

KEREhe
FREREE
—EBRIEREES
REEETRE
NRIER TR
FREREE
—ERIRE
RAERIEE
BE - B RE
ReesRERPOEREE
BT HEAB B TR
i@ Bh € (F3E3(a))
BN ERZ R 2028,

EERES
FEERHI S
—BRRTRMEEES
REER TR
DR TR
EERHS

— @RI
AB R E R

B - EWRRE
SRS RO R E
BAF AR
BYHRES (3 3(a))
BAFE R > 828

Consolidated

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,226,371 2,109,727
21,776 19,299
133,889 119,864
4,966 9,057
38,689 8,119
4,947 4,295
124,095 152,787
30,348 -
- 3,627
2,585,081 2,426,775
The Council
B3 &
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,211,545 2,082,348
21,776 19,299
133,889 119,864
4,966 9,057
38,689 8,119
4,947 4,295
119,539 152,688
30,348 -
- 3,627
2,565,699 2,399,297




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B

(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)

B@EE (&)
Matching Grants
E ¥t B &
The matching grants comprise of:
B M€ aE:
Consolidated and the Council
mERBIE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for H FBERithiEE ks ELtE
Post-secondary Students (Note i) (FE#RI) 2,869 =
Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Note ii) FEREROE S5 E
€=3:31)) 27,479 _
30,348 -
Note i:  Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

HEE i BELEB4RERtEE

A Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students was launched in the 2011/12 academic year onwards
to subsidies post-secondary students participating in short-term internship or learning programmes in Mainland China on a
matching basis. The Government matching grants and the related donations are separately disclosed below in compliance with
the requirement of the Scheme.

H2011/12 28 8 - BUFHETNELSERNMBRAENE > URSFEXEHE 243 PERESMERETHEEE
B o BTGB & R AN ERFBRETENEEAZ RS BEIEHNIBHRER -

The portion of the grants received during the year which has not been utilised was recorded as government subventions under
deferred income. The grants are recognised as income upon utilisation to the extent of the amount of related expenditures
actually incurred. During the financial year 2012-13, HK$2,869,000 (2012: nil) was recognised as the grants income and
HK$10,645,000 (2012: HK$5,251,000) was included in deferred income.
FRFBIPEWZBREESRERUIARELERZ - ZBRNEAFUBERBENERILEESERREIZABWA - 2012-
1I3MBEFE BRTHRARBEE286.98 T (2012 : ) - B 1,064.58 7T (2012 : BH#525.18 ) AR ARIEL
s o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)
BT ()

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
[EaECEUEAC )

Balance as at 1 April 2011

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Scholarships and Prizes
Other Student Development Activities
Equipment and Facilities

Balance as at 31 March 2012

Balance as at 1 April 2012

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Mainland Industrial Attachment Programme
Students Exchanges Activities

Students Training Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities
Equipment and Facilities

Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2013
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20114 B 1 Hz &8k
'ON

[SAL L 1 - i=E
FEWA

KBS RN
HYIEREE A
REBEFREE
HitbBEBRRZE
%28 MRt

2012 3 A 31 Az &8k

2012F 4 B 1 B 246k
WA

(SR 1l - =E
FIE WA

RRFBIE RBRAA
HYAEEAE A
Wi BB 5T &

B FEE
B BEE
REGNRS
HttEB LB REE
1%e8 MR
HitbE

2013 3 A 31 H 2 &8k

Consolidated

2 A

wh 3
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[k [ITE-EE=EAN
HK$’000 HK$’000
5,229 5,229
22 32
5,251 5,261
- 2,069
- 228
- 67
- 2,364
5,251 2,897
5,251 2,897
8,197 8,197
66 83
8,263 8,280
325 -
2,414 -
130 -
- 6,030
- 1,286
- 882
- 820
2,869 9,018
10,645 2,159




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B

(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)
BT ()

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & (48)

Balance as at 1 April 2011

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Scholarships and Prizes
Other Student Development Activities
Equipment and Facilities

Balance as at 31 March 2012

Balance as at 1 April 2012

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Mainland Industrial Attachment Programme

Students Exchanges Activities
Students Training Activities
Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities
Equipment and Facilities

Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2013

20115 4 B 1 H 2 &8k
KA

BB BEEIER
FE WA

KRB B
HYMEBAE A
RBGRRE
Hith B EBRITE
1R )R

2012 F 3 A 31 H 24k

2012 4 B 1 Hz &6k
KA
Bl zmBie BEEBR
FEUA

RAFWBIE BN
HYAERAE A
Wit 8 H 5T &l
BEREE
BAHREE
RESNRE
Htt B B RITE
& MR
HitbE

2013 3 A 31 Az &tk

The Council
BB

Matching Matched
Grants Donations
(e [IEEEEEN
HK$’000 HK$’000
5,229 5,086
22 31
5,251 5,117
- 2,069
- 228
- 67
- 2,364
5,251 2,753
5,251 2,753
8,197 7,590
66 78
8,263 7,668
325 -
2,414 -
130 -
- 5,485
- 1,286
- 882
- 820
2,869 8,473
10,645 1,948
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M aE

3.  GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)
BT ()

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
[EaECEUEAC )

Note ii:  Sixth Matching Grant Scheme
AR BRWEHHEETE

A 6th Matching Grant Scheme was launched in the 2012/13 academic year onwards and covers both operations funded by
the Education Bureau (EDB) and self-financing operations of the Council on a matching basis. The matched donations and
government matching grants are classified as EDB-funded and self-financing operations in compliance with the requirement of

the Scheme.

FH2012/13 8F#E » BUFHETE W HAEESHE  UEHFEARERRHBEREDRAELENTF - CRH 21
FEBAEHEPDESRETANERAESR  UHBEREVEELNARBAELELF XD FRIIERMBEHREA -

Consolidated

EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total
YEREHEERS BREFEEST At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
[TRapTE [ EHfse R R4fbe REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2012 01254 A1 RZER - - - - - -
Income WA
Grants Received/Matched Donations ~ EWz @82 /EaEET 18444 18444 9,035 9,035 27479 27479
Interest Income FEWA 69 90 41 54 110 144
18,513 18,534 9,076 9,089 27,589 27,623
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations ~ m#EBIE /BRAT%{T
MEHER
Teaching and Research Enhancement ~ MEXERHE - - - - - -
Internationalisation and BB RELRAED
Student Exchange Activities - - - - - -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRES - 5,606 - 465 - 6,071
Bursaries peS N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development BLRRE - 27 - 29 - 56
Capital Projects 2%EE N/A - - = = -
Others Hit - 501 - 65 - 566
- 6,134 559 - 6,693
Balance as at 31 March 2013 01353431 AZER 18,513 12,400 9,076 8,530 27,589 20930
Expenditure (by level of study) THABEEELE)
Sub-degree Operations FELHUTRE - 6,134 - 554 - 6,688
Degree and above Bl LEE - - - 5 - 5
- 6,134 - 559 - 6,693
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)

BF@EEE (58)
(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
Pt miBh & (&)
The Council
B/
EDB-funded Operation Self-financing Operation Total
YEREMEERS BREEEERT fit
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
[ a1k EERH [kt Ee REEH [tk EEEN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2012 2012F 4R 1B 2E - - - - - -
Income WA
Grants Received/Matched Donations Sz #E% /BEEEH 18,444 18,444 9,035 8,530 27479 26,794
Interest Income FBWA 69 90 4 51 110 141
18,513 18,534 9,076 8,581 27,589 27,115
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations ~ &XH#EBIS /REFL{
MIEEER
Teaching and Research Enhancement  MEXERHR - - - - - -
Internationalisation and ARt REER TR
Student Exchange Activities - - - - - -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRRSE - 5,606 - 460 - 6,066
Bursaries fEs N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development BERRE - 27 - 29 - 56
Capital Projects #ian N/A - - - N/A -
Others Htt - 501 - 65 - 566
- 6,134 - 554 - 6,688
Balance as at 31 March 2013 2013F3A31 AR 18513 12,400 9,076 8,027 27,589 20427
Expenditure (by level of study) TH(NEBRESE)
Sub-degree Operations BIELHUTRE - 6,134 - 554 - 6,688
Degree and above BN RE - - - - - -
- 6,134 - 554 - 6,688
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M aE

4.  TUITION FEES AND TRAINING CHARGES
BEKREEHN

Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

Non Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

Non Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

(5}, DONATIONS

B

Designated to Student Development Foundation
Capital Projects

Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Activities
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B R
25
ARER

SR BB
Y

iz 8 A

BT & BIRIE
25
wizE A

FEBFE BRI
25

EEd- 4

BLRRES
ZRIEE

RBEGRRS
HtBEES

Consolidated

2 A

LA =
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
563,977 524,585
13,538 6,925
798,172 821,118
37,298 36,701
1,412,985 1,389,329

The Council
BB
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
563,847 521,161
13,594 6,944
167,466 191,882
36,971 36,720
781,878 756,707
Consolidated

2 A

wh 3
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
24,399 -
9,248 -
14,221 8,427
8,583 5,586
56,451 14,013




DONATIONS (Cont'd)
B ()

Designated to Student Development Foundation

Capital Projects
Scholarships and Prizes
Other Student Activities

OTHER INCOME
H AU A

Application and Sundry Fees
Examination and Trade Test Fees
Sales of Goods

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities
Services Income

Miscellaneous Income

Application and Sundry Fees
Examination and Trade Test Fees
Sales of Goods

Hire of Accommodation/Facilities
Services Income

Miscellaneous Income

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B

BLERRES
ZRIEE

RESNRE
HtEE RS

RREANEERE
ZHARKEERERKLE
HESRWA
BERiEHEWA
ARES WA

HpA

RRERANEERE
ZR R ERBRNE
HEERBA
BEREEESRA
ARFEULA

HAWA

The Council
IS

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
24,399 -
9,248 -
14,221 8,427
7,800 4,610
55,668 13,037

Consolidated

we
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
27,249 15,457
27,872 31,211
12,800 10,874
15,009 12,420
14,801 7,675
6,418 9,922
104,149 87,559
The Council
BIE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
20,951 14,740
27,887 30,816
12,817 10,874
71,167 73,483
170,795 203,269
7,609 10,224
311,226 343,406
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

7. STAFF EXPENSES

ETHX

Salaries and Other Benefits Fe Rk HMER
Contributions to Retirement Schemes BRIRETEIHERR
Salaries and Other Benefits ek HMER
Contributions to Retirement Schemes ERETEIHR

8. SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION

BRF A B8R

Surplus before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRBABERCHIBRUATIER :

Interest Expense (see Note 20) FMEZ i (FF2EME 20)
Depreciation e

Rental Expenses HeT

Auditor’'s Remuneration ZEETE &

Net Foreign Exchange Loss HNE RSB

Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBREEEZEE
Interest Expense (see Note 20) FMEZ i (B2 EMEE 20)
Depreciation e

Rental Expenses HeTH

Auditor’'s Remuneration ZEETE €

Net Foreign Exchange Loss SNE RSB

Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBREEEZEE
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Consolidated

2 A

70 = |
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,629,591 2,494,016
203,201 197,710
2,832,792 2,691,726

The Council
B E

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,234,303 2,143,271
202,075 195,014
2,436,378 2,338,285

Consolidated

2 A
wh 3
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
- 3,627
280,334 262,530
40,734 49,408
630 583
988 1,455
1,123 99
The Council

B S
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
- 3,627
275,499 259,739
40,541 49,220
457 416
90 690
786 99




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B

10.

TAXATION
BiIE

The Council and certain of its subsidiaries are exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

RIBEBHBIRGIZE 881% BB RERLHBELTAIHRRBANEBRIERK -

Taxation in the consolidated statement of income and expenditure represented Hong Kong Profits Tax payable by a subsidiary
of the Council, which is calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the subsidiary’s estimated assessable profits for the year.
MEZHWSERPNHEZIHAS —BBIBHELARAEEXNNEBREH - HIBDRFERHE QB ERBURR
9 16.5% (2012 : 16.5%) 51 & °

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in the financial statements as the effect of all temporary differences is
immaterial.

HRRBEANERMHER » APBHRRILBDBIELEFIAFELERE -

RESERVES
fEE
Consolidated and the Council
meakBilE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance at the beginning of the financial year BB E R A58 250,483 140,914
Amount transferred to Specific and Other Funds REBEZRETEHESN
during the Year (Note 11) HitE S (st 11) (239,510) (563,974)
Surplus transferred from Statement of BEREHEKRRRMAER
Comprehensive Income 240,553 163,543
Balance at the end of the financial year BFEF RS 251,526 250,483

Reserves are any savings from the recurrent government subventions for activities (other than those in respect of the Shine
Skills Centres) arising from any reasons other than a curtailment or cessation of activity in the Annual Plan, a surplus in tuition
fee income where the fee levels are approved by the Government and which is required to be returned to the Government, or
reduction in remuneration for its staff as a direct consequence of changes in the civil service. The level of reserves shall not, at
any one point in time, exceed 15% of its annual recurrent subvention in the financial year. Amount in excess of the limit should
be returned to the Government in the following financial year.

FEEREILFEEHBALSELHE (REFREZRRPORBRN) WEMNREHE (HR2FEITFEFEME IFEBBUES
ERMEENREHRE  CRAREZZERANBHRMXEERERANAEIETHEERA LK EE ARG EE
FIR D BRI - TREEAEE  RESNWEFI T SEERIBEFELEHYEMN 15%  BEIAEE T — @i
HEERETHA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

11.

(a)

38 | Vocational Training Council 5 2 3l 48 /&

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS

BEAZERAMES

Fund Balances

Non-recurrent Subventions
(see Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund
Non-recurrent Subventions
(see Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Accounts
Projects Funded by Government
Agencies
Projects Funded by Reserves
Selffinancing Activities
Donations
Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions
(see Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund
Non-recurrent Subventions
(see Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Accounts
Projects Funded by Government
Agencies
Projects Funded by Reserves
Selffinancing Activities
Donations
Other Specific Funds

FRERBE (F2H
BEEE 2(n) i)
-#; IM EEE
FRERBE (F2H
BEEE 2(n)(i))
—EEQ,EEH
HHBERER

fRESEREE
HEREES

B

EtEREEE

FEERHE (ESH
WiEE 2n)(i))
-BRIEREES

3#«‘%%% EEL
HizE 2(n)(

—EE&EEH

BB EeER

B2 EHEH
BEREES

B

HRERRES

Consolidated

=PAN
Y=
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund
Balance as at 1.4.2011 Comprehensive Income Transfers Balance as at 31.3.2012
1154510448  BE/(2)2EKER  APELER 2012F3fA31 AEH
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
51 (51) - -
13,986 9,240 (30,162) (6,936)
863,063 (194,590 113,472 781,945
1,824,092 310,802 (9,828) 2,125,066
30,965 (2,148) (438) 28,379
18,924 11,933 (19,070) 11,787
2,751,081 135,186 53,974 2,940,241
Consolidated
)
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund

Balance as at 1.4.2012 Comprehensive Income Transfers Balance as at 31.3.2013
012F4A1A%%  BE/(B)2EWER  hFELER 201353 A 3L ALH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(6,936) 25,511 12,730 31,305
781,945 (73,505) 254910 963,350
2,125,066 113,866 (12,730) 2,226,202
28,379 33,046 - 61,425
11,787 15463 (15,400) 11,850
2,940,241 114,381 239,510 3,294,132




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 & B

11.

(a)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont’d)
BHEMZREMES (B)

Fund Balances (Cont’d)

o5 (E)

Non-recurrent Subventions
(see Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund
Non-recurrent Subventions
(see Note 2(n)(i))
-Capital Accounts
Projects Funded by Government
Agencies
Projects Funded by Reserves
Selffinancing Activities
Donations
Other Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions
(see Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund
Non-recurrent Subventions
(see Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Accounts
Projects Funded by Government
Agencies
Projects Funded by Reserves
Selffinancing Activities
Donations
Other Specific Funds

FREHBE (FSH
BEE 2(n)(i))
-BERIERERES

FREHBE (FSH

M 2(n)(0)
-ERRE
BRHEERER

fREEERAR
HEREER
B
EfuiEREas

FRERYE (F2H
BEE 2(n)(i))
-BRIERERES

FRERYE (F2H
BEE 2(n)(i))

-ER&A

BRHEEEER

RESERER
HEREER
B
EfeiEREEs

The Council
BiFlR
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund

Balance as at 1.4.2011 Comprehensive Income Transfers Balance as at 31.3.2012
011F4R18%4%  BR/(2)2EKER  AHELER 201243 A 31 ALH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

51 (51) - -
13,986 9,240 (30,162) (6,936)

860,408 (194,590) 116,127 781,945

1,359,931 290,200 (12,483) 1,637,648

190,948 (2,148) (438) 188,362

18,924 11,933 (19,070) 14,787

2,444,248 114,584 53,974 2,612,806

The Council
BB
Transfer from/
(to) Statement of Inter-Fund

Balance as at 1.4.2012 Comprehensive Income Transfers Balance as at 31.3.2013
002F4A1A%K 8 /(2)2EKER  APELER 20133 A3L ALH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(6,936) 25,511 12,730 31,305

781,945 (73,505) 254,910 963,350

1,637,648 81,049 (42,730 1,705,967

188,362 33,046 - 221,408

11,787 15,463 (15,400) 11,850

2,612,806 81,564 239,510 2,933,880
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11.  SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
HEMZREMES ()

(b) Nature and Purpose of Specific and Other Funds
NEAZRRHEMESZHERBEN

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Non-recurrent Subventions

FEEMYE

The non-recurrent subventions are one-off funds approved by the Government earmarked for capital expenditure
purposes relating to building projects, capital projects and capital items.

FEEMPERBF —AMENER  ZHPSAEEFIRE ERIENERBEMNELIH -

Projects Funded by Government Agencies

BB EEE

In addition to the Government subventions, specific Government grants have been obtained to support the
development of specific education projects.

BRTBAMBEN  BERABRNBARRTREREXERERBRE 28R -

Projects Funded by Reserves

EEEERIEE

Projects funded by reserves are projects financed by the Council’s reserves, which are savings from the recurrent
subventions (Note 10).

RETERERBARNRECENN  ZRETEEEHEHYESHREHE (HEE10) -

Selffinancing Activities Fund

BEBEEE

Selffinancing activities fund represents accumulated surpluses generated from the self-financed programmes and
activities.

BEEBEEANEHREEZTEIREHTRERBNRL
Donations

B

Donations fund is used for the purposes specified by the donors.

BRENESERBREEME THWARRERL -

Other Specific Funds
HittSERRES

Other specific funds are subsidies obtained from organisations other than Government bodies designated for specific
purposes.

HtBEMRESRHAFBUTAFINABERN  ZEESEANEEERN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11.

(c)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont’d)
BHEMZREMES (B)

Capital Management
BEXERE

The Group is a not-for-profit organisation aiming to provide vocational education and training in the region. The Group defines
capital as including reserves and specific and other funds. These funds, including inter-fund transfers, are managed in
accordance with the Group’s financial management policies and procedures and the relevant funding conditions, where
applicable. The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a strong financial base to support the development of the Group.

THBRIELTKE  SERUHEANSEEHEEZI - AHBNELAERERBEEREEAZREMES - ELXESEER
DESER > EREAKENVEREEBR  BFI RIEEESHOMHRG (ER) REEMN - AEBEERERE
FTEARARRIRBEEFENKERD  REBRENMBERUIISTIEBNEE -

There has been no change in the Group’s capital management practices as compared to prior year. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirement.

BEEFELRE  AHBYRAERNBERAETENME - AMBEFTETEAIMNELRRE -
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12. FIXED ASSETS

Consolidated
&4
Construction in Improvement Fumiture and Computer
Buildings Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
¥ ERIE HEIR FARRE gk szt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost S
At 1 April 2011 2011F4B81H 1,601,775 64,169 874,299 193,817 261,846 2,995,906
Additions gE 62,784 36,194 159,239 52,353 27,936 338,506
Transfer to Buildings upon FERRNEEERZET
Completion of Projects 64,169 (64,169) - = = =
Disposals HE - - - (1,132) (8,399) (9,531)
At 31 March 2012 2012€3831H 1,728,728 36,194 1,033,538 245,038 281,383 3,324,881
Accumulated Depreciation 2itiE
At 1 April 2011 2011F4718 62,178 - 376,704 91,655 195,683 726,220
Charge for the Year AEEHE 38,716 - 153,616 32,511 37,687 262,530
Written Back on Disposals HERER - - - (981) (8.373) (9,354)
At 31 March 2012 2012€3831H 100,894 - 530,320 123,185 224,997 979,396
Net Book Value FEFE
At 31 March 2012 2012%3A31H 1,627,834 36,194 503,218 121,853 56,386 2,345,485
Consolidated
&e
Construction in Improvement Furniture and Computer
Buildings Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
BT ERIR YEIR ZEVET Bl h
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Cost A
At 1 April 2012 2012%4 718 1,728,728 36,194 1,033,538 245,038 281,383 3,324,881
Additions e 913 60,458 126,589 27,896 21,876 243,732
Transfer to Buildings/ FETHNEREEE
Improvement Works upon BT/HEIR
Completion of Projects 16,038 (22,825) 6,787 - - -
Disposals i3 - - (4473) (7.487) (24,395) (32,755)
At 31 March 2013 201338318 1,745,679 13821 1165741 265,747 284,864 3,535,858
Accumulated Depreciation E gt
At 1 April 2012 2012%4710 100,894 - 530,320 123,185 224,997 979,396
Charge for the Year REERE 45,220 - 169,157 37,844 28113 280,334
Written Back on Disposals HERER - - (735) (6,733) (23,809) (31,277)
At 31 March 2013 201338318 146,114 - 698,742 154,296 229,301 1228453
Net Book Value RERE
At 31 March 2013 201338318 1,599,565 13821 466,999 111,451 55,563 2,307,405
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12. FIXED ASSETS (Cont’d)

EEE (&)
The Council
Bl
Investment Construction in Improvement ~ Furniture and Computer
Properties Buildings Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
RENE BF kRIR EIR  HKARZR e ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost A
At 1 April 2011 01154818 207,242 1,394,533 64,169 872,620 187,274 247,489 2,973,321
Additions BE - 62,784 36,194 159,537 49,482 25,748 333,745
Transfer to Buildings upon FETHRNERBREET
Completion of Projects - 64,169 (64,169) - - - -
Disposals HE - - - - (997) (8,199) (9,196)
At 31 March 2012 2012%3p318 207,242 1,521,486 36,194 1,032,157 235,759 265,038 3,297,876
Accumulated Depreciation ZiHrE
At 1 April 2011 201154518 29,416 32,762 - 376,555 86,136 184,178 709,047
Charge for the Year REERE 4,905 33,811 - 153,497 31,531 35,995 259,739
Written Back on Disposals HEZDE - = - = (846) (8,173) (9,029)
At 31 March 2012 2012%3831H 34,31 66,573 - 530,052 116,821 212,000 959,767
Net Book Value FEFE
At 31 March 2012 2012%3831H 172,921 1,454,913 36,194 502,105 118,938 53,038 2,338,109
The Council
BillR
Investment Construction in Improvement  Furiture and Computer
Properties Buildings Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
REn= BF HRIR YEIR  GARRE Bl @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost A
At 1 April 2012 201254718 207,242 1,521,486 36,194 1,032,457 235,759 265,038 3,297,876
Additions BE - 913 60,458 126,589 21,083 24,945 233,988
Transfer to Buildings/ BETRAEEERE
Improvement Works upon BT/HEIR
Completion of Projects - 16,038 (22,825) 6,787 - - -
Disposals HE - - = (1,417) (4491) (17,674) (23,282)
At 31 March 2013 2013%3A31H 207,242 1538437 73821 1,164,416 252,351 272,309 3,508,582
Accumulated Depreciation ZiHrE
At 1 April 2012 201254818 34,321 66,573 - 530,052 116,821 212,000 959,767
Charge for the Year REERE 4,905 40,315 - 168,897 34,920 26,462 275,499
Written Back on Disposals HERERE - - - (735) (4,063) (17,343) (22,141)
At 31 March 2013 20133A31H 39,226 106,888 - 698,214 147,678 221,119 1213125
Net Book Value FEFE
At 31 March 2013 20133A31H 168,016 1,431,549 73821 466,202 104,673 51,190 2,295 457
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12.  FIXED ASSETS (Cont'd)
BEEE (&)

Interests in Leasehold Land
HE TR

The Council holds interests in leasehold land and buildings associated with the following properties, the cost of which were
financed by government subventions or other sources of fundings, and were fully written off in prior years.

BIREEUATREHELHREFNES - HRAHABFEHEIEMESRKIFMEY  YERUEFETEEH -

(i) Campuses completed prior to the setting up of the Council and taken over from the Government by the Council at nil
value which include the five campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill, Kwai Chung,
Kwun Tong, Haking Wong and Lee Wai Lee*), Haking Wong Seafront Complex and Shine Skills Centre (Kwun Tong and
Tuen Mun).
BRREBATHIERABIBRIAESERNREEE  ABEEEXRELER (BRERR) 2RE - BEE
208 BE - ERBAEERY - ERBEEREERERERREERERDO (BEREM) -

(ii) The VTC Tower, four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi, Chai Wan, Tuen Mun
and Sha Tin), the VTC Kowloon Bay Complex, VTC Kwai Chung Complex, VTC Pokfulam Complex, Maritime Services
Training Institute, Shine Skills Centre (Pokfulam), and the annexes of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education
(Kwai Chung and Kwun Tong) which were constructed after the setting up of the Council and financed by government
subventions.

BEIRBAE OERER R RS —FR - & - BRANYPH  BEXRIRBAEERE  BEIRFZBAE
BEIREERM AR - BBIRER - RREEHEEDRO CEHEMN) REBNEREZEL G MEIINBEINE R L EE
BRI BB & & B o

(iii) Haking Wong's Jockey Club Student Centre, Fok Ying Tung Hall of Residence, the staff quarters at Chai Wan, the
premises at Billion Plaza, school building of VTC School for Higher and Professional Education (SHAPE), and annex of
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tuen Mun) which were financed by loan facilities, donations, and other
funds.

ERGERSEREPL BRARE - URKENBERS YRERESNYXE - 7EB5SRAERREREME
BEWEIHER - BRREMESEY -

Most of the interests in leasehold land are restricted to own use by the Council.

Ao HELHNESIHBIRER -

@ The old campus located at Kowloon Tong was surrendered to Government in September 2012.

WRAEENERECN2012F 9 AREIBAT °
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Br 7% AR MY aE

13.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HMBARWRE

Unlisted shares, at cost

FEMRD » A

The particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

MEARNFENT

The Council

LEllS)
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
100 100

Proportion of Ownership Interest

RERR M E
Place of Incorporation ~ Particulars of Issued and
Name of Company and Operation Paid Up Capital Held by the Council Held by Subsidiary  Principal Activity
AR AMRIREERE  ERORANRARE BiREE WEAENE IEED
VTC School of Business and Hong Kong Limited hy Guarantee 100% - Provision of vocational education
Information Systems B ERERAR and training
BXIRRIBERER RUBRELRIRRS
Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School Hong Kong Limited hy Guarantee 100% - Provision of education at
School Management Committee Limited &b ERERAR senior secondary level
BINBTERRESRRAR RUBHEEHERE
Technological and Higher Education Institute Hong Kong Limited hy Guarantee 100% - Provision of career-oriented
of Hong Kong &k ERERAT degree programmes
BRRSNEHAER RINERAKR
STEMRR
VTC Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% - Investment holding
BEIRRLEERAA &k SREERE 1R 100k REER
VIC Training Company Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of vocational education,
BEEIERAR B SREEBS1T2RA 100K professional training and
development services
RUBRES
EXIRRERRH
* Apparel Product Design and Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of fashion design and
Development Centre Limited Bk SREFEBE 1T related products and senvices to
BEERRHARERTOERAR R 1008 the apparel industry
iR RARERA
BHTARIZ
VTC School for Higher and Hong Kong Limited hy Guarantee - 100%  Provision of continuing education
Professional Education (SHAPE) &k ERERAF and training
EeSHEER RUSBEL IR
**The Institute of Professional Educational Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100%  Provision of continuing education
And Knowledge (PEAK) B ERERAR and training
REEEER RUSREE RIS
& Apparel Product Design and Development Centre Limited was deregistered on 3 May 2013.
fREERZFTRERPOBRABENR 2013 F 5 A 3 HFsHEM o
D With effect from 15 April 2013, the name of the company was changed from Interact Learning to The Institute of Professional

Educational And Knowledge (PEAK).

H20135 4815 A¥  AREZBALHETLERSIEEBSSME
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14.

15.

LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY
HI B DR ERK

The Council has granted a revolving credit facility amounting to HK$6 million to VTC Enterprises Limited. Pursuant to the terms
of the facility, such facility is unsecured, bears interest and is repayable no later than 15 July 2013. As at 31 March 2013 and
2012, the line of credit was not utilised.

BINBEFRENINRSLESRLATINBAELEEBEAERLIEABEG00E T - REKFR  ZERUEER  HEFRE K
BAMN2013F 7 15 8EE - R2013F 3831 AK2012F 38318 BREWLSEWER -

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS ASSETS
EERKEFEE
The Council makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan. The plan is administered by trustees with their assets

held separately from those of the Council.

BIRAD—ERENDZRATEMFEHHER - TR T ZEEAXTATE  WERTAZEESHERE -

The plan is funded by contributions from the Council in accordance with an independent actuarial’s recommendation based on
actuarial valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuations of the plan as at 1 January 2013 was undertaken by qualified
staff of HSBC Life (International) Limited, who are members of the Actuarial Society of Hong Kong.
BAlEMEBLEEMNER  UEEMAEFAEROFEMFHMER - 2013F 1A 1 ABRFNBEYREAERHEBREE
E2ees - NWEEASRKE (BER) BRARETIGEN -

The amount recognised in the balance sheets are as follows:
EEESERTPEINBHENDT :

Consolidated and the Council

RERBIR
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
Present Value of Funded Obligations ENESERNHE (1,026) (903) (1,409) (1,291) (1,473)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets FEEENDAEBE 10,106 9,994 10,637 10,578 10,729
Net Unrecognised Actuarial Gains AERNEE R FE (1,010) (1,384) (2,039) (2,686) (3,300)
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EERFEE 8,070 7,707 7,189 6,601 5,956
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Br % AR MY RE

15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS ASSETS (Cont’d)

BERKENEE (&)

(b) Scheme assets consist primarily of bank deposits.

AEEEETERERTENENR

(c) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations:

RENBZRBE2RESBHOT :

Balance as at 1 April
Benefits Paid by the Scheme
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost

Actuarial Losses

Balance as at 31 March

(d) Movements of the fair value of the scheme assets:

FTEEE2ARESBWE

Balance as at 1 April

Benefits Paid by the Scheme Assets
Actuarial Expected Return on Scheme Assets
Actuarial Losses

Balance as at 31 March

4 B1B%
EHE LR
R E IRAS AL AN
B R A
BEEE

3 A 31 A#EER

4 B 1 B&eR

Bt EEER
FFEIEEMNBEREER
BEEE

3 A 31 H&ER

Consolidated and the Council

HRERBIR
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000
903 1,409
- (734)
57 53
18 28
48 147
1,026 903

Consolidated and the Council

meakBilE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
9,994 10,637
- (734)
200 213
(88) (122)
10,106 9,994
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15.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS ASSETS (Cont'd)
BERIKENEE (&)

(e) Income recognised in the statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

EEZERERPEZHVRADT

Consolidated and the Council

FERBIE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Current Service Cost ARF BRI AR 57 53
Interest Cost R B R AN 18 28
Expected Return on Scheme Assets sFEIEEMTEHIEIR (200) (213)
Gain on Settlements EEW R (237) (386)
Total Income L ONEC (362) (518)
Actual Gain on Scheme Assets STEIEEMNER K 111 91
The income is recognised under other income in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.
WARAZE WSRO EA A TR
(f) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 (expressed as weighted average) are as
follows:
R2013F3 831 HK2012F3 31 AEANTERERR (UMEFGHERT)WOT :
2013 2012
Discount Rate IR = 2 %p.a. 2 % p.a.
Long Term Average Expected Return on FrEIEENRBTY
Scheme Assets FERAEI = 2 %p.a. 2 % p.a.
Long Term Salary Increase Rates RRF & FHiE 2 % p.a. 2 % p.a.
Within 1 year —FR
Thereafter H#% 2 % p.a. 2 % p.a.
Average Future Working Lifetime of sTEIKEN
Scheme Members FEHIFH TEEHR 1 year 2 years
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16.

17.

LOANS TO STAFF

= A3 =
ETEM

In conjunction with Hang Seng Bank Limited (Bank), the Council launched in April 1996 a Staff Loan Scheme to provide
financial assistance to members of the Council’s Provident Fund Scheme, part of which has subsequently been restructured
by setting up a new scheme called Vocational Training Council Provident Fund Scheme (1999) (collectively known as the
Schemes). An unsecured loan facility of HK$30 million has been arranged with the Bank for on-lending to qualified staff
members. The loans to staff are repayable in accordance with repayment schedules of which HK$1,332,000 (2012:
HK$1,858,000) is repayable within 1 year.

BB EBEERITAERAR (BBIRIT) &1 N1996F 4 AARINBABETE (E/IMEL - TR THEINIREA
BEstE(— i) SR ARETE)NHERMETIERGE  RUEMBIEE - RITSRMEZSEBY 33,0008 TH
%;ﬁ/ﬁ\ﬁ%%ﬁ BBIIRBEETEERET - ZETEMEAERNEE MHEPBY 133.28T(2012F : Bl 185.88T)
BR—FERFE

The loan granted to each staff member is limited to 60% of the individual’s provident fund benefit entitlement at the time of
application. In case of default on repayment, the Council can exercise its right to request the Trustees of the Schemes to retain
an amount equivalent to such indebtedness out of any benefits payable to the individual under the Schemes.
BHEIAENERE  THBBRHEPBFEFIZEARESHEEAMNGCOR - EE T REMIIERN  BIIFERERAREG
SNZEA  REBEIELARESTEESNENF  HIREERMEENEEE -

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEWERTE ~ FA AR R H AR IRTE

Consolidated

2 A

wh 3
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Accounts Receivable (Note 17(b)) FEURBRTE (B4R 17(b)) 4,073 3,240
Other Receivables H ek BR1E 40,436 30,907
Prepayments FERIE 22,126 24,630
Utilities and Other deposits KEREMRS 1,565 1,739
68,200 60,516

The Council
BIlE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Accounts Receivable (Note 17(b)) FEUWRBRIE (FIEE 17(b)) 3,036 2,390
Other Receivables H ek BR 18 40,034 29,750
Prepayments FBFRIE 15,990 14,801
Utilities and Other deposits KERHfttizE 1,540 1,714
60,600 48,655

Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments, utilities and other deposits are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

FEWARIR ~ EMBEBWIRIE - ANFE - KEREMEZES  FHER -—FARORERRFHX °
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17.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEURARIR ~ TR FAE R A AU ARE ()

(a) Impairment of Accounts Receivable
PE W AR IR Z iRl {E

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group and the
Council are satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against
accounts receivable directly (see Note 2(g)).

FEWRIE AR E B A SR HEMBIRIRS - RIEARBREBIIER AW RUIRRNEE T 0BT - BIREEBXSEELE
W RIE P EE (B2 BN 2(g)) °

At 31 March 2013, none of the Group’s and the Council’s accounts receivable (2012:Nil) were individually determined to be
impaired.

MR2013F 3 A31 8 AEBREBIIBNEVRRENEERRERE (2012F : #&) -
(b) Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired

TAERE 2 FE W AR TR

Accounts receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s and the Council’s
credit policy are set out in Note 22(a).

FEURBRTE — AR e 24 B B BAEST 30 H R EIH - A R R EEBERFBE H I NMEE 22(a) °
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

W RREERER R ENMERE - AIREDTOT :

Consolidated

2 AN

107 = |
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired RAEBENREE 1,501 1,205
Less than 1 Month Past Due BEADKR—@EA 1,601 941
More than 1 Month Past Due BHZR—EA 971 1,094
4,073 3,240

The Council
B3I =

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired REBHANREE 993 1,013
Less than 1 Month Past Due BHLR—EAR 1,280 776
More than 1 Month Past Due BEZA—@A 763 601
3,036 2,390

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of individuals for whom there was no recent history
of default.

RAEBHANBERNEYGRERRE - R B O RERELNENALHEA -
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17.

(b)

18.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEWRARIR ~ TR TR R H A YR ()

Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired (Cont’d)
TMERE 2 EWARE (&)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent individuals and organisations that have
a good track record with the Group and the Council. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Council does not hold any collateral over these balances.
ERBERERENERRERE —HEAMERBIIEERFLCENELEARNATFAMBRAN - RIBBETLER 518
BRARBEREEENEE HAACEERRIFEANE BEERAMEAUZZNE - AEERBIIFRERRIBER
BRI #H @ o

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBFEEEY
Consolidated
= A
12 =]
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Deposits with Banks with Maturity FHALR={EA
less than Three Months RITERER 775,000 1,127,000
Cash at Bank and in Hand RITERRES 21,038 120,541
Cash and Cash Equivalents in FERERERMTH
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement RERBEEEY 796,038 1,247,541
The Council
BAE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Deposits with Banks with Maturity FHALR=1EA
less than Three Months IRITEHER 770,000 1,127,000
Cash at Bank and in Hand RITFEREES 5,988 91,193
Cash and Cash Equivalents HEeERBESEEY 775.988 1,218,193
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19.

(a)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
FESERIA ~ BRI » BN RERESENER

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

FENBRTE ~ R R EMEM R

Consolidated

we

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$’000

Accounts Payable FE{SBRIE 166,881 143,737

Accruals FEST X 236,236 290,361

Deposits and Retentions Withheld RERRESE 25,421 30,078

Receipts in Advance FEW A 564,338 502,098
Subventions Repayable to Government ESEZEBNNHEE S

(Note 19(b)) (FfFaE 19(b)) 11,325 6,981

1,004,201 973,255

The Council
B3 E

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$’000

Accounts Payable FE{SER1E 119,724 126,939

Accruals FEFT S 236,207 277,509

Deposits and Retentions Withheld RERREE 25,329 29,964

Receipts in Advance FEWFRIE 292,718 248,268

Amounts Due to Subsidiaries iR NGIE R 644,751 564,302
Subventions Repayable to Government EEEBFN@EENE

(Note 19(b)) (FfFaE 19(b)) 11,325 6,981

1,330,054 1,253,963

Accounts payable, accruals and other payables are expected to be settled within one year. The contractual undiscounted value
of accounts payable, accruals and other payables as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 was the same as their respective carrying
values.

FESERIE - ST R EMEMIREEREA —FRAZT - R2013F3A31AK2012F3 A31H » FEJIRIE - EFtXH
REMEMRES B 2 REEHEZNFEERFTREER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B

19.

(b)

(c)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEAYRRIR ~ AT » HMENRERESENERS (&)

Subventions Repayable to Government

FESRERFHMEIE

Balance as at 1 April
Less: Amount Refunded to Government
during the Year

Subventions Refundable to Education Bureau
— Capital Works Reserve Fund

Subventions Refundable to Labour
and Welfare Bureau
— Recurrent Subventions
— Capital Accounts

Balance as at 31 March

Provision for Employee Benefits

BEERNER

4 B 1 B48k
A AEECREBA
KB

ESRERERNEE
—ERIRERBES

EREBYE T REFE
KB &
-~ KEEE
—#%IRE

3 A 31 A&e

Consolidated and the Council

SAREIE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
6,981 7,792
(6,981) (7,792)
772 | | -
772 -
9,673 6,397
880 584
10,553 6,981
11,325 6,981

Provision for employee benefits relate to various allowances and benefits, mainly unutilised annual leave, payable to

employees.

EEEMNEFBETAEENZERERN T EEEAAZERRENEE ZHIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M aE

20. LOANS
B
Consolidated and the Council
GaRkBAR
2013 2012
Bank Loan for On- Bank Loan for On-
lending to Staff lending to Staff Loan from
(Note a) (Note a) the Government
EEFEIN BEETEIM (Note b)
RITEN RITER HRER Total
(#-) () (#>2) ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 4B 1BER 3,830 6,442 99,187 105,629
Add: Amortisation of m: AEE#EL
Deferred Interest Expense ERLRE X
for the Year - - 3,627 3,627
Unamortised Deferred REEZEENETH
Interest Expenses - - 3,746 3,746
Loans Drawn Down FEREANER
During the Year 1,360 880 - 880
5,190 7,322 106,560 113,882
Less: Loans Repaid B EREBENER
During the Year (2,361) (3,492) (106,560) (110,052)
Balance as at 31 March 3R 31 B4 2,829 3,830 - 3,830

Note a: The loan relates to a revolving credit facility for on-lending to staff and is unsecured and bears interest at 3% per annum (2012: 3%

=5

Note b:

per annum). The interest expenses incurred are fully borne by the staff. The loan is repayable on 28 February 2014 and renewable
annually subject to Hang Seng Bank’s consent. The amount of the facility is HK$30 million (2012: HK$30 million). The contractual
undiscounted value of the loan as at 31 March 2013 was HK$2.8 million (2012: HK$3.8 million).
EBEEFETINEAEEEREBEERKBER  NBENWEFEE3%(2012%F : 3%) - AIAFNESZHIIHERE THAE - EREAR
20145 2H28RFE » WA EEERTEBTEFEL - BREREIERBEI 0008 T (20125 : BHE3,00087T) ° K2013
FIABLHNEZNREZARTRERBE 2808 T (2012F  B¥3808BTT) ©

In 2011-2012, loan from the Government (the Loan) was an interest-free loan under the Providers’ Loan Scheme, for the
construction of a permanent campus for School of Business and Information Systems (SBI) at Tsing Yi. The Loan was secured
by a fixed charge on all the future income from the SBI operation and a floating charge over all the Council’s other undertakings,
properties, assets and rights other than real property. The Loan was fully repaid in March 2012.

MR2011 2012 FEREETHEMERNVABTRRESANKARE » BIFEBE L HEKBERTEMBUFEREEER(E
BEER) > WHRUTEHERBRAERRNSCERARBINENEMER - BiE  EERES (BERMN FEERZEBE
FBEIEA - HERER2012F 3 2IEE ©

The interest expense represented the amortisation of the difference between the carrying value and the redemption value of the
interest-free loan using effective interest method at a discount rate of 5% per annum.

MEXHIERBF SR ITRENERNRZRFE RS ERNREERELE 2 £5 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B

21. DEFERRED INCOME

IEFE N
Consolidated
e
2013 2012
Government Grants from
Subventions Government
(Recurring and Agencies and
Non-recurring) Matching Grants
BRBE HRREET Total Total
(EERF#EE) RELHHIE fam ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 4R 1 B£8R 1,586,997 21,589 1,608,586 1,555,996
Subventions Received/Receivable 21/ FENEB) 2,398,141 197,023 2,595,164 2,483,111
Recognised as Income in the Year AFREZHUA (2,430,638) (154,443) (2,585,081) (2,426,775)
Unamortised Deferred Income P i 4146 - - - (3,746)
Balance as at 31 March 3B 31A&E 1,554,500 64,169 1,618,669 1,608,586
To Be Recognised as Income Bl AN
Within One Year —FR 228,961 64,143 293,104 248,010
After One Year —E% 1,325,539 26 1,325,565 1,360,576
1,554,500 64,169 1,618,669 1,608,586
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M aE

21. DEFERRED INCOME (Cont’d)

EREW R (4E)
The Council
BAR
2013 2012
Government Grants from
Subventions Government
(Recurring and Agencies and
Non-recurring) Matching Grants
BRfBE HFHERR Total Total
(EERFEE) RES#HE Lk e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 4R 18£8 1,586,997 21,021 1,608,018 1,555,945
Subventions Received/Receivable 2l /W EE) 2,383,315 191,950 2,575,265 2,455,116
Recognised as Income in the Year ZARFERHEZHUA (2,415,812) (149,887) (2,565,699) (2,399,297)
Unamortised Deferred Income R BT W - - - (3,746)
Balance as at 31 March 3831 A&R 1,554,500 63,084 1,617,584 1,608,018
To Be Recognised as Income BRI AN
Within One Year —FR 228,961 63,058 292,019 247,442
After One Year —&E% 1,325,539 26 1,325,565 1,360,576
1,554,500 63,084 1,617,584 1,608,018

Note: Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as revenue to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets incurred (see
Note 2(n)(i)).
%gﬁﬁﬁ?%E@E&Jﬁ?ﬁﬁbﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁ%?&ﬂk%iﬁﬁﬂ&fﬁ HEUEERISEREENITEIHSEARBERAWRA GE2EMEE2(n)
(i) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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22.

(a)

(b)

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
TREREER A REE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, foreign currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s operations. The
Group manages and minimises these financial risks through its financial risk management policies and practices described
below.

THBNRBELEBREFIREE  RBES  IMERFERAR - AEBEB T 2 BRAREBIRREB I £
ZREBUEBE R

Credit Risk

AR

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to tuition fees and training charges receivable from individual students or sponsoring organisations.
Management manages this risk as follows:

EERBRESIEAFERELREBFEINTIE - AMEZGFERARTIERBBLEMARIEYRBIIHTNEERRESE
A-EREEEEEERKRNT :

In respect of tuition fees and training charges receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These take into account the customer’s past payment history, financial position and
other factors. Tuition fees and training charges receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

NBEANREERIH SHER T2ENEEFFETEAAGENM ZETASZTEEFFBENNRTEE - MR
MEHMEZ BERFEEA RSN BEAHET30BREE - AEBE—RITSERTFIRMHERR -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure arising from accounts receivable and other receivables are
set out in Note 17.

AHEBHEUIRERMERRENECESIFMNMELT
Liquidity Risk
REE SRR

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that funds are not available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserve of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group invests surplus cash in bank deposits not exceeding an average horizon
of three years.

NBECREBRIELIEEHESRENEBNERE - ARBHNERATHERRRRFAHZRBESE R » UBRERSRE
HINERE AUBNERRRARBESER - AHBRERNSNESERRNRBITEEEITZR=ZENEHRFR °

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities at the balance sheet date of the Group and the Council are
disclosed in Notes 19 and 20. The contractual maturities are calculated based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group and the Council are required to pay.
THBRBIENEEEERTHNMBEEZEZNRENRTIEHE - SRMEL19OM20HFHEE - ZNREMNERTIHER
BEZAREATREZRER (BRERUZAREZNZREEAEREANMNZNZIHERZMAEZFEI L) » URAHK
BHBIENEFREERBRTEN -

Foreign Currency Risk
SN R B

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

REBRZHPUBENE  BARIIMNEREERER
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22.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Cont'd)
TREREEN A A EEE)

(d) Interest Rate Risk
FI= @B

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its borrowing activities. The Group considers that it is not exposed to any
significant interest rate risk arising from its borrowings as at 31 March 2013. The bank loan obtained is for on-lending to staff
who will reimburse the same amount of interest to the Council.

AEBNFERRRFERBEETEH - AEERAWIEANR2013FIAILANEBEEREERNFIRRAR - RITERZE U
RERABNENZEETFEL o

(e) Fair Values
AREE

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

BT EMN2013F3A31HK2012F 3 A3 1 HNREEHEEAREBETEETEARERE -

23.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BERRS

Due to the nature of the Group’s operations and the composition of the Council members of the Vocational Training Council
(being drawn from private and public operations), it is inevitable that transactions may take place with organisations in
which a Council member may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a Council member or senior
management of the Group may have an interest are conducted at an arm’s length basis and in accordance with the Group’s
financial regulations and normal procurement procedure. Donations received from Council members, senior management or
companies controlled or significantly influenced by them had been approved and reported in accordance with the Group’s
financial regulations.

HAAREENEERN  REBIISNESERENAR (RILAERAEKBRE)  AEBETRANEEEENEEGTEE
BHRBETRS - MBS RESENEREESENXZUIRBAFRARBINEHERAIREFNRBREFET o £
BEENE EESERZHEFSIEEZELEMN A A FWEMN BRI RBEIIE MR AR RE -

Remuneration for key management personnel is as follows:

TEEEERENMEFENT

Consolidated

= A

wh 3
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Short-term Employee Benefits EHEERER 34,632 35,778

The Council
BB

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Short-term Employee Benefits EHEERET 30,013 31,282

The above remuneration is included in “staff expenses” (see Note 7). The Group’s contributions to retirement schemes are
also set out in Note 7.

FAMEEH AETRXA (FERMEET) B 2RI BRI HRMEET -
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24,

(a)

(b)

COMMITMENTS
TEIE

Capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment outstanding at 31 March 2013 and 2012 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

MR2013F 3831 HK2012F3A31AZY%¥ BERREARUKRRBE2ERREWNT !

Consolidated and the Council

meakBlE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Contracted for EHED 18,409 6,626
Authorised but not Contracted for EREELRETY 1,713,895 342,267
Total #et 1,732,304 348,893

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the total future minimum lease payments under operating leases in respect of
properties are payable as follows:

M2013F3H31HK2012F3 A31H ' MEULKEHERRA 2 ENRERENHREENT -

Consolidated and the Council

mERBIE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Within 1 Year —FR 7,575 8,414
After 1 Year but Within 5 Years —FHREFZHRSFE 10,154 17,683
17,729 26,097

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three
years, with an option to renew the leases when all terms are negotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
THRBUKLHESHEHA- L% - —REEHNFERKRASEZ=F  EfERREERE  RBEEERAZYE - 1B
HETBEREEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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25.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
B £ 201353 A 31 HILFEE A MEEREMMEETT RIBER R 2RETEERNEE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2013 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
BEAMKEBRETERD  EBSTHMASE AMEELEITIRINEER » EREBE2013F3A3LIBLEZFERREN @
W RN ERKPERA ©

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.

THBIREREL KBTI RIMEEANHRINREAZHBENEEELTM - 2SBHNERARABLER  REEAKEN
EEXERVBRRELEEATE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL
TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

FRFIRFABETI(—AAN) (BREFE) IRANBLLZBARE

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme set out on
page 63 to 75, which comprise the statement of net assets available
for benefits as at 31 March 2013, and the statement of changes in
net assets available for benefits and the cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Trustees’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trustees of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such internal control
as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion based on
our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purposes. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

ARHE (AT EHBEM) EEAIHENEIEEE 75
Bt BB Bk - BN 2013F 3 A 31 HAJHER
NRNFEERR  URBEZH L FERTEER
FNFEESDRRARERERARTESHBRS
ERHMHEREER -

ZREARMBHRRBAAENSE

BREZB)ERGBRE - USHBRRFLART
APHRBREELIAERIBRENLEORBE
B AEHBRETFERRRERERTE RN ER
AL ©

REENEE
EMNEEERBEEMNEAHUZSHBERRELR
5 WERZFEAMRIBHERE LIRS o BRILZ5
HMORETTAERLMAR - KM AREARENA
B HEMEMATEERAEERERE -

EMERBEEBSTMASEMN(EBFER)
I 2 IRCE B )5 860.1 5% [RGBV FST | T
il o ZREEABREAMETEERE - WRERIAT
Fi 0 LAEREMBRREREE T FEEMNEXBRR
3& o

F S RATREFUEDNREMBRRATRSERIKE
BRNFTRRE o A E R FBUR R BED 89 &
BREFEHRRFERERMERY BHRRFEEAER
PULEERR - GRS AR  REMZREZTA
MR RUELEEN AT RRAERBH R E
# o UREHEENFNREF BENAERHZTAN
REEHINBEREBERER - EATEETEZITAR
ERASTTBRNAEERFHEENEEM - UK
AEMBHRERNEERIHLN -

HMHEE  BRAMESHENRREAENEZ AR
FMHEFT R RIEMHER
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 31
March 2013, and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8" Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE TO THE TRUSTEES OF
VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

HERIRRARESHTE (—ANN) (FRAE) XTANBUZAMEHHE

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year
ended 31 March 2013 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA), and have issued an unqualified
auditor’s report thereon dated 28 June 2013.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (ORSO), we are required to report whether the
Scheme complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Respective Responsibilities of the Trustees and Auditors
The ORSO requires the trustees to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme;
(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,

charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

It is our responsibility to report solely to you on the Scheme’s
compliance with the above requirements based on the results of the
procedures performed by us and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Basis of Conclusion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial
information” and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit
of retirement schemes” issued by the HKICPA. We have performed
such procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose of
reporting on the Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements.

AZEE (U TEBRM) CRESESHEASEMRN
(BBETTER)  URSRB(EBHBIES60.155 BRI
STEIMERT | B8R E 201353831 HIEFEW
B ERER - WHR2013F6 A28 HB HEREZ R NX
SRS

BREB(RRR AT BRG) (BRBIRDI) 55 20 R1VR
o RAFENEEEERERKAFTETREF

] o

ZRARZEEEBNEE

IRGIZRZFEATER
() RN BEEE  RERMBRZUEER
EMERE RS

(2) FrEIEREBETEFTRT R IRFBAER

(A)  BRIRBIZEE203)(b)([i)VFFTRES » sTEINEEL
REETMEZE - KF SHIZTHMERES
ERBRRE &

(T) SIEIGHEFRIZE 27(2) RAVRTE o

RANEERREXRMMETEFNGR  HitElE S
BF EAARGIRE - ERZFEAELRS - RO
BAREZARHEMEMBA LT EERFIEERESE -

i am MY EL AR
BMECEREBESFM LS OMAE BEREERSE
#ERI30005%) [BREFETHEFHE LM BERINNERT
181 AR 2 BR(E B B)5E860. 155 RINGH BT
ETRMANIE - RACSETEMARBAFNEF - KU
ERTAERET LR ERRHRSE -
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Conclusion

Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(1)

KPMG

proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 31 March 2013 as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

contributions have been made in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2013;

at 31 March 2013, there was no shortfall between the
Scheme’s assets and the Scheme’s aggregate vested
liability;

at 31 March 2013, the assets of the Scheme were
not subject to any assignment, charge, pledge or other
encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii)
of the ORSO; and

at 30 June 2012, 31 October 2012 and 31 March 2013,
the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been
complied with.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2013
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AVAILABLE
FOR BENEFITS AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

R2013F3A31 HAUHEBANITRBNBEFEERR

Note 2013 2012
FiaE HK$’000 HK$’'000

INVESTMENT ASSETS REEE
Investments Managed by Investment Managers REKLEEEMWREEE 2(c) & 3 3,926,276 3,547,751

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Accounts Receivable FEUREBRE X 259 6,141
Cash at Bank IRITIFR 2(i) 17,370 20,080
17,629 26,221

CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts Payable FE{TBRFR 208 213
Benefits Payable FEFTER 2(g) 4,375 13,922
4,583 14,135
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 13,046 12,086
NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS AHEMNTRNBEE 3,939,322 3,559,837

REPRESENTED BY: FHFRESE

CAPITAL ACCOUNT BERERFE 5 3,939,322 3,559,837

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Trustees

on 28 June 2013

M 2013%F 6 A28H
HETZESHRRERRK

Mr. Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP
Chairman

Board of Trustees
BRRZI% 4, BBS, JP
ETZESEE

The notes on pages 68 to page 77 form an integral part of these financial statements.

E68HEE 7T HNMFBARUKEREN D o
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BE2013F3ASTBLEFETHEHBNITRNEZEES B HRR

INVESTMENT RETURN

Interest Income

Net Realised Gain on Investments

Dividend Income

Net Movement in Unrealised Gain/
(Loss) on Investments

INVESTMENT EXPENSES
Investment Management Fees

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Administrator’s Fees
Accountancy Fees

Audit Fees

Investment Consultancy Fees
Miscellaneous Expenses

NET GAIN/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from the Council
Contributions from Members

BENEFIT PAYMENTS

Benefits on Termination of Service
Retirement Benefits

Death Benefits

FORFEITURES
FORFEITURES RE-INVESTED

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR

The notes on pages 68 to page 77 form an integral part of these financial statements.

EE8EEE 77T ENMEBAMBHMRA—FD
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REE®H
FEWLA
CRBENRERRE
ST ON

RBENREWD (EIR)

REER
REEHEEH

THER
ITHRIEE A
SETEA
E2EH
REEEER
FEIRF X

FRusE(BR) FE

{/\;—_?A’
B F R B R

B

B
BERAE A
RIS R
A 8

F D&k W
FO&s®RKBRER

A5 A AR R TR
BEERMORD)

BEJRBRAESFE (—AAN)

1(b) & 2(f)

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,503 1,614
60,232 121,378
116 =
221,018 (199,290)
283,869 (76,298)
483 521
483 521
924 993
112 121

42 41

108 108

23 28
1,209 1,291
282,177 (78,110)
154,531 155,012
50,414 50,497
204,945 205,509
8,332 19,281
99,305 416,993
- 6,219
107,637 442,493
- (161)

- 161
379,485 (315,094)




CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BE2013F3 A3 BLEFEFENRERER

Note
MIEE
Operating Activities EETE
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets AMEERNARFEEE
Available for Benefits =, C2)
Adjustments for: FEEIER -
Interest Income FEUWA
Net Realised Gain on Investments ERENREFWE
Dividend Income ST PN
Net Movement in Unrealised (Gain)/Loss REBFWIRE
on Investments (W), 58
Investment Management Fees REEEEH
Operating Result Before Changes in BELESBTA 2L BEEE
Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable FEWBRFOR A, (1240)
Decrease in Accounts Payable FE{S BRIBIR A
Decrease in Benefits Payable SRR
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) ReSEBES(EH)
Operating Activities ZEEHRE
Investing Activities RETE
Interest Income Received from Scheme’s TEIRRITRI WA
Bank Account
Proceeds from Disposal of Investments HEREEBE FIERE
Payments on Acquisition of Investments BEREEBZ2ZH
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from RETE (FER) FIEE
Investing Activities ZHREFHE
Net (Decrease)/Increase in HeERRESEEYF
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rm4),/ &
Cash and Cash Equivalents FUOHRERREEEY
at the Beginning of the Year 2(i)
Cash and Cash Equivalents FRESRRESEEY
at the End of the Year 2(i)

The notes on pages 68 to page 77 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FESHEFE 7T ENMFBAUERERN—I D o

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
379,485 (315,094)
(2,503) (1,614)
(60,232) (121,378)
(116) -
(221,018) 199,290
483 521
96,099 (238,275)
5 (6)

(5) (17)
(9,547) (269)
86,552 (238,567)

- 1
257,215 574,466
(346,477) (334,141)
(89,262) 240,326
(2,710) 1,759
20,080 18,321
17,370 20,080
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

(b)

STATUS OF THE SCHEME
st &R

The Scheme
HE |

The Vocational Training Council Provident Fund Scheme (1999) (the Scheme) was established on 1 March 1999 under a Trust
Deed dated 12 February 1999 as a successor scheme to the Vocational Training Council Provident Fund Scheme. The Scheme
is a defined contribution scheme with member choice. It has been registered under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (ORSO) and exemption has been granted by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.
BB AEEE (—hh) (BREEE) RIBE 1999 F 2 B 12 HAKEERKN) » W1999F 3 A 1 B Y » KER=
JNRBRAEEE - AFEBREMIN - HERERETE - RIS RBEBEFERARTERG) (FBRH) M AR A
RAEETE > WEERFIMARETEEERHE

Funding policy

Contributions are made in accordance with the Trust Deed. The Council contributed at 15% of the basic salaries for all scheme
members other than the Minor Staff Members and 11.5% of the basic salaries for the Minor Staff Members. Members other
than the Minor Staff Members contributed at 5% of their basic salaries while Minor Staff Members made no contributions.
ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁi@%ﬁﬂ%@1ﬁﬁk o FIEFTEIKE (\Fﬁ?ﬂ%&ﬁéﬁiéﬁl\) WEHT#?X%J&EEZIK%EE@ 15%  MIREERE 2/ #
REREEREFEMN11.5% c BRIIFIEERNEBZTHIIN MEKEITURERESH 5% EMHTR ©

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
EESRTER

Statement of Compliance
EREH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong as applicable to retirement schemes and the requirement of ORSO. A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Scheme is set out below.
AHMBHRRIRBEBSTTMASAMABEEANERMBREER) (BEAEERZENEBHBEREEL) - (BE
SHEIRRE)  BARBRARESTERGHNEBARSTHRR) WERMFES o XeTERANETESFTHRERBMAT

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Scheme. However, none of these developments are relevant to the Scheme’s financial statements.
BEBSTMASC AMRASHHBEXENS ATRAKANELIIER SETHIKE BB B REED) o L EWERIIGE
ARETEIN B BIRRLEMEE -

The Scheme has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
Note 8).
REFEARRAERS T HBNARERNITEL S 72 (GBS HEMEES) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 & B

(b)

(c)

(d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
TEEF PR (&)

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
M |R AR AEERE

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost except investment assets are
stated at fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out below. The net assets of the Scheme, as disclosed on the
Statement of Net Assets Available for Benefits, are shown before the deduction of any obligations to pay retirement benefits
in the future.

FRRBEBEERRIZT S E St BORAT LR A R EESIIRSD - R BRER R UE L RAERRERER - R AHBNIRNFE
ER&|FIEBEFENEERE  ATRABIARREIMEAERATNVEEE -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
MRBRVFEEF(EFBVEREEL) EREEBFLEFERREAREE 868 WAHEBINBRSHENH
B At RBENAE - i REBEBREZIDBREBEILREZEECERRABATESENEMEEMmMEL HERKA
HEAMRRLFAEAZ FNEERSEREBEELFAANER - ERERUTEEENZE MG -

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

A REEBREEFERS c HETHEFETERE > SERIAFEZHE > ISEBREFTNHEAAER  SERFE
EIEHRARREAE - BITE SR RARREAEHER -

Investments Managed by Investment Managers
RELEEENKREEH

Investments held and managed by the investment managers at the year end date are included in the Statement of Net Assets
Available for Benefits at fair value. Fair value of unit trusts are based on the latest bid prices quoted by the investment
managers. Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Available for Benefits.
EZFEARBE HRELETENRERRE YUAREBEMATHEFCSRNFEERRR - BEUSITEESNAR
BERRRELCERENEHEAETE - AABEZHEAHBANZRNFEESHRRALEK

Foreign Currencies
IhiE

Foreign currency balances are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the year. Foreign
currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates prevailing at the transaction dates.
Differences arising from transactions in and translation of foreign currencies are dealt with in the Statement of Changes in Net
Assets Available for Benefits.
IEERERREEANERAEZRREASRE - FANMRZAUARRZANERERRERBYE - IMNEXZNBRERELE
MEFRIEAIHERTREBRERAEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(e)

()

(8)

(h)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
FTESE B (A

Investment Income

REWA

Interest on bank deposits is recognised on an accrual basis. Realised gains and losses on disposal of investments are
calculated as the difference between the sale proceeds and the weighted average cost of the respective investments.
Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the difference between the original cost and the year end valuation of
investments. Both realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments are dealt with in the Statement of Changes in Net
Assets Available for Benefits as they arise.

RATFRAS WA BT EEFE - HERBHANSBRRa » USRHEREMERBREMEFIGRARERAH
MAZBRWIRERR  BIURENFEFRGENEZETE - MEMELENBERYEAIHENNRNFEESBRRAE
I o

Contributions

338

Contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis.
HARUBET B AT -

Benefit Payments

BAIXH

Benefit payments represent all benefit claims determined by the Trustees to be valid in respect of the Scheme during the year
in respect of members who have left the Scheme.

BAXHIEEZEARRE  XFARRET RSB ERRE -

Forfeitures
F ORI

The forfeitures of the account balances from leaving members are retained in the Reserve Account to meet the operating
expenses of the Scheme. The Trustees shall distribute any balance remaining in the Reserve Account at the end of each
financial year (after making an allowance for Scheme expenses at the discretion of the Trustees) amongst the members’
employer accounts.

BBRENFOASRSIKNERBEERELPORN  HEERIAR - SEARSEVMBRFEELERE - BHBEREFEETE
WX  BEBRREMRAKNREF OEAFREIERENENEEIERFR -

Cash and Cash Equivalents

REeRBESEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank.
RERBSLEVERERTER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

(k)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
TEEF PR (&)

Obligations to Pay Retirement Benefits in the Future
A& RABANNEE

Details of the Scheme’s obligations to pay retirement benefits in the future are set out in Note 6. No provision is made in the
financial statements for these obligations except to the extent indicated under Note 2(g).

ATEIAE B RN RABNNEEFE - BMRHMEE6 o BRI 2(e) IR - WRBARELEEEEMBRRTIZEES -

The terms “aggregate vested liability” and “aggregate past service liability”, as used in Note 6 have the same meaning as
defined in section 2(1) of ORSO. In accordance with that section, vested liabilities relate primarily to those benefits that would
be payable if an employee had voluntarily resigned and thereby ceased to be employed on that day; whereas the past service
liabilities of a defined contribution scheme represent the aggregate of contributions paid and payable by the relevant employer
and the members, together with any declared investment return on those contributions at the end of the year. For the full
definition of these terms, reference should be made to ORSO.

Mo I EREE IR BERBELEEINES » BEFFAIE2(1) FRAMRENHER - RIBEZKRM > BEEGERIEEES
BREBE  TEZER  FENZARXNITZEREENET - RAEMIRFENBERBEGRIEHBERERKNENMHK
R BEEAFRAREZEERRBENO®R - SR L EMERZNTEESR - 7J28EM -

Related Parties

BRETS

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Scheme if that person:

BEUATEUTHER  ZATHERENIRREREAEFHE !

(a) has control or joint control over the Scheme;

BEH R EESETE

(b) has significant influence over the Scheme; or

HABBEAKE X

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the Scheme.

REITEANEEEEAS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 o MY

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FESBER

(k) Related Parties (Cont’d)
BER (&)

(i) An entity is related to the Scheme if any of the following conditions applies:

ENEUTEMER - MZEREEAEBREE

(a) The entity is a sponsoring employer of the Scheme;

ZEBRETANEREE

(b) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i); or

ZERZHR() RO ATHZEARES %

(c) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

R()a) I AT HZEREEAZEHIIBEZER (AZERNWE AR TEEEBAE -
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,

that person in their dealings with the entity.

BRATHRELREAEENERERETREN AP TREISEZERALTRNZZEIATZENRERS °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

3. INVESTMENTS MANAGED BY INVESTMENT MANAGERS
KREKBEEENIREEE

Assets of the investment funds of the Scheme are invested in unit trusts managed by Schroders Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Ltd (Schroders), INVESCO Hong Kong Ltd (INVESCO), FIL Investments Management (Hong Kong) Ltd (FIL) and
PIMCO except for the Hong Kong Dollar Deposit Fund which are managed by Schroders and INVESCO. The unit trusts of FIL and
PIMCO have been offered under the Scheme since 2 December 2002.

TERREESNEE  RTBATHFHRESHRBEEREETE (H8)BRA A (HEiEE E)7’FIJ;-,-\JILE¢Q SEEBRQ A
(BMRBRIR) §8  HttE2BEARERAEER - RIE - BEES (FB)BROE (HRBEE) RPIMCO FriEEmEN
EREEER - H2002F 12 A2 A8 - sFERHEEERPIMCOMEBNERES THRERE -

The market value of these investment funds as at the year end date was:

EREESNFEANTENT :

2013 2012
Quoted
Unit Trusts Accounts Accounts Cash
EHEN Receivable Payable Deposits Total Total
=i FEW R IR BEBERK st #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
Global Equity Fund
REREES 109,978 275 - - 110,253 97,275
Growth Fund
BERES 1,388,500 727 - - 1,389,227 1,246,916
Balanced Fund
FEHES 997,786 452 - - 998,238 914,454
Capital Stable Fund
EXTRES 657,587 296 - - 657,883 584,692
Global Bond Fund
RRESFES 150,635 - - - 150,635 110,877
USD Money Market Fund
EnEEmSEES 60,338 - - - 60,338 63,896
HKD Money Market Fund
BrTEEmEES 218,329 7 - - 218,336 194,147
HKD Deposit Fund
BrTEHERES - 188 (41) 341,219 341,366 335,494
Total
B 3,583,153 1,945 (41) 341,219 3,926,276 3,547,751
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.  TAX STATUS OF THE SCHEME
AT BB AR R

The Scheme is registered under ORSO, and is therefore a recognised scheme for Hong Kong profits tax purposes. The policy
of the Inland Revenue Department (IRD), as set out in IRD Departmental Interpretation and Practice Note No. 23, is that
“recognised retirement schemes and their trustees are not considered to be subject to profits tax on their investment income”.
Accordingly, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the Scheme’s financial statements.

FTEIRBIRGIZER - BAEBRERPRTERAKRETE - REESBRBEROIBRERAITIESIF 23 RAHENHBEBE - [R
AERAESTERAEGEEABERRERBZHAREH | - st » SHELBEEMBRRPR/BEFESHERRE -

5.  CAPITAL ACCOUNT
BEXRRF

The capital account represents contributions from the employer and employees, plus net earnings applied and less
distributions. Details of the changes in the capital account between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below.

ERRFRREEIREE 2N MFRARMBRIE - EXRARFEFNEFRZENEBHUT :

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Net Assets Available for Benefits at the FHBRNCROFEE
Beginning of the Year 3,559,837 3,874,931
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets Available for AEAJEHBEANLSROFEE
Benefits for the Year 0, CRd) 379,485 (315,094)
Net Assets Available for Benefits at the End FRUEBEFETROFEE
of the Year 3,939,322 3,559,837

6.  AGGREGATE VESTED AND PAST SERVICE LIABILITIES
BRERBERBRAER

As at 31 March 2013, there were 2,057 Members (2012: 2,108 Members). The aggregate past service liability of the Scheme
as at 31 March 2013 was HK$3,939 million (2012: HK$3,560 million). The aggregate vested liability of the Scheme was
HK$3,912 million (2012: HK$3,530 million).

BZE2013F3A31HIE > 5T EH2,057BKE(2012F : 2,108 B K E) ° ;T EINBEREAEE R B 39.39/E (2012
F B 35.60RT) c FFEINBIEREERB 39.12/87T (2012 F : B 35.30/=87T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
tMIT A

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and investment risks arises in the normal course of the Scheme’s
operation. These risks are limited by the Scheme’s financial management policies and practices described below.
EEEREERSIRNGEE - EERD - AR - MERKRERAR - ZZRBZRNT YR EINSERMEREBERR
EXIE-

Credit Risk
AR

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the Statement of Net
Assets Available for Benefits.

SEERBRAATHEINNFEERRNVBEENREE -
Liquidity Risk
TR B 1 L B

The unit trusts which the Scheme invests in are readily realisable marketable financial instruments which meet the liquidity
requirements of the Scheme.

KB RENBEAGTESATS LUBRARNERTE  HEFSAHEINEERDTE -

Interest Rate Risk
FIE @B

The Scheme’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the investment in Money Market Funds, Deposit Fund
and cash at bank.

A ENAZREREESRAEEETSES  EHFRESRRITREMNRE -

Foreign Currency Risk

SN LB

The Scheme is exposed to foreign currency risk through purchase of unit trusts that are denominated in USD. As HKD is
currently pegged to USD, the Scheme does not expect any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate.
AFENMERBIRBEUAETFEEVNENETES - ABTRETHN  HEAEEHEANBLEXZFTEEERE
&) o

Investment Risk
RE b

Unit trusts of reputable investment managers, with risks ranging from low to high are offered to members of the Scheme.
The investment managers provide regular reports to the Trustees and members and an independent consultant has been
appointed by the Scheme to monitor the investment performance of the investment managers.
ATERUBABERFNRELEMEE  ARHRESTENENCTESLHEFRE RELENIEARKEE
EHER - AHETZEBLEBERRELENRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
THIA (&)

Fair Value
AREE

All financial instruments are carried at fair value or amounts approximate their fair values as at 31 March 2013.

FIEEMIANR2013F 3831 HUAABERBAEAABEEN KRR P RR

The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet date
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

TRAVNBRAABEAENSRMIANEE RSBV BHRELADE 7R (BRR) [2HTA - KE | REN={ERE
HREENREE  REGTEZAREEEEAEBENREERA

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments.

E-HE(RSE)  AREBEEUEFRERMIATERMSEE (T THARE)E -

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market data.
E_MEE: ARBENECLNERMIATEETSNRE  IAGERN(ERMEEER A YT EERBEERA
ABEMIGEIE)TE -

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any significant input is not based on
observable market data.

F=RE (REE)  DABEMMERN (EF - LEEHALFRATEETSEE)E -

2013 2012
31 March 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Total
201343 A31H F—PEE EMEE E=PEE et N
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Investments Managed by Investment Managers
REKEEENREEHR
Unit Trusts
BlERES 3,583,153 - - 3,583,153 3,210,684
Cash Deposit
BEFH 341,219 - - 341,219 335,179
Receivable from Fund Manager
PRI IR & KR BR K - 1,945 - 1,945 1,929
Payable to Fund Manager
EF1REKIBIR™N = (41) = (41) (41)
3,924,372 1,904 - 3,926,276 3,647,751
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B %5 R ak B

8.  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS AND NEW STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013
H£ 201353 A 31 HILFEC AMEREREVE AR FTIRER A RER ARV &

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2013 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
BEVKBRETERD  EBSTHMASE AMEELEITIRINEER » BEREBZE2013F3A31BLEZFERREN » 8L
RARBERRPERA ©

The Scheme is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Scheme’s disposition of assets and liabilities and its financial transactions.

At E R ERBLEBITHAER BN EELTM - ESBEHNERARABLER  REARGTENEEXLERH
BARAREEERTE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL
RETIREMENT AND DEATH GRATUITY SCHEME FOR MINOR STAFF (THE SCHEME)

FRENARIREERAESREMNE TS (RN H) ITANBULAMRE

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme set out on
page 82 to page 90, which comprise the statement of net assets
available for benefits as at 31 March 2013, and the statement
of changes in net assets available for benefits and the cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Trustees’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trustees of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such internal control
as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion based on
our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purposes. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

FZEE (LT BRI EETVERES2EEH 90
Bt BB Rk - B3ER2013F 3 A 31 H Al#tEF|
NROBEERK  UREBZEZA LFEERTEER S
HNBFEEEHHRRANBRESRERUARTESTTBERM
ERHMMHFHREER -

ZRARMBHRRAAENEE

BHREERDFERGBRE - AWM BRREFELEEM
D HY R BR R B H B A R R I R Rk P s R B A AR 4
B MEMBHRERAFEHRRFRIERMEHNEKX
SEERPRAL o

RHENEE
BMANEEEREBEEMNVFAHZSHBERRFELR
R WERZTARBHERKELRSE o Rtz
HMOREFTTAERLMAR - RPABIRARENA
B HEMEMATEERAEEREE -

EMERBETBSTMASEMAETBETER)
I 2 RCE B )HE 860.1 5% [ R AKET BI AV T | AT
Eit - ZEEABZREMETERRE  YRIRHIT
Fih LAEREMBRREREE T FEEMNERERR
ZLE o

F S RITREFUENEAMERRAHSEARIKE
BRBFTRE o TR E AR R BUR MR BED &Y ) & -
BREEARRFFRERMEH I BIRRFEE RER
BRI ERR - EHEZS AR  RBEMZREITA
RHRMBHRRUMEBEE M 2 F B R RAEREN A
B URETEENEFARF  EENAFBHITAR
BEGHNAREBERER - FATEEFEZITARK
RAEBRNSBERMERET A NEEM - UK
FHEVBHmERNERIHLK -

BEPEE RAMESHENRREAENEZ AR
g ET R RIRMHER
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 31
March 2013, and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2013

2R

BARE  ZEVRRRCEB(EBYHREERE
EMAFRMEA2013FE3/3LANEEERBHR
ARBEZHLFENTERZRREESRE °

EEHG TSR
HESTTED
BEBYIR

#ITE 1058
KFRESHE
20136 A28 H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING
COUNCIL RETIREMENT AND DEATH GRATUITY SCHEME FOR MINOR STAFF (THE SCHEME)

FRXVIRROREERAEREME 8 (FRFE) ZTRANBULRAEBHRE

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year
ended 31 March 2013 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA), and have issued an unqualified
auditors’ report thereon dated on 28 June 2013.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (ORSO), we are required to report whether the
Scheme complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Respective Responsibilities of the Trustees and Auditors
The ORSO requires the trustees to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) the relevant undertaking, as defined under section 20(4) of
the ORSO, is complied with;

(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,
charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

It is our responsibility to report solely to you on the Scheme’s
compliance with the above requirements based on the results of the
procedures performed by us and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Basis of Conclusion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance engagement
other than audits or reviews of historical financial information”
and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of retirement
schemes” issued by the HKICPA. We have performed such
procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose of reporting
on the Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements.

RAZEEN (AT EERM) CREEESTEIASEMHN
(BARBTTER)  URSB(EKHIE)ES60.155 BIX
ST » B ETEIBE2013FE 3831 HLEFERN
B Rk » WM 2013F6 A28 HBHEREZRNX
SRS

BREB(BERAKTBRG) (BRRH) 5 20RHHR
- RAFEDEREEATBRIEATE TRENRE

| o

SRARGZEMEBENERE
RBIERZFEARR

(F) SERNABEEE EERMBXZHEEX
E MR B KRS

(Z) EHEISEITIRAISE 20(4) 1R FTE B RO AR BAARGS |

(A)  BIEBIZE203)b)([iNVERAIRES » sTEINEEL
REETMEE K EHAZTHMERES
ERHRRE &

(T) SIEBEFHROIE 272 RAVBAE -

HPNEERRBEEAMMETEFNGR HerdlBS
Bp EAMARGIRE - ERZEAERRS - RS
RARE 2ABRHEMEMA T BERAEEREME -

#m Y B

BMECZEREBEFM LS NMA(EBEREERS
#RI3000%5%) [BrETHFHNELMBERIINERT
11 LUK 2 R(EH588)56860. 155 RIRGT IR ZFET ]
ETRMNIE - RS ETHEMRBAMBNERF - U
BERTEERRT LMRERRHRSE -
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Conclusion

Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(1)

KPMG

proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 31 March 2013 as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

the relevant undertaking, as defined under section 20(4) of
the ORSO, has been complied with during the year ended 31
March 2013;

at 31 March 2013, the assets of the Scheme were
not subject to any assignment, charge, pledge or other
encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii)
of the ORSO; and

at 31 May 2012, 30 November 2012 and 31 March 2013,
the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been
complied with.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2013

A
?ﬁl:l A

RIBLA PR - RS -

(1) BZE2013F3A31HIEFER  stEHNMBE
E BERUBRZHEFTZESHRE ML

(2) T EIRMERBIZE 20(4) IR AT BR MV AE B AR E R EL
Z£2013F3A318LFEERET ;

(3) MR2013F 3 318 » K& 5 20(3)(b)(iii) f&
FrREN HEMNEELREFEEMEZE - K
# ERRSHMEREEMER &

(4) MA2012F5H31H 201211 A30H &
2013%F 3 A 31 H ' T EHEBFHRHIE27(2)
REVIRIE ©

EERETES A

HEEEE

BBPIER

EITHE 1058

AKFRESHE

20136 A28 H
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AVAILABLE
FOR BENEFITS AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

R2013F3 A31 HAUEBANTRBNBEFEERRK

Note 2013 2012
FIEE HK$’000 HK$’000
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Accounts Receivable FEUL BRFX 32 38
Bank Deposits with Original Maturity Z|HAH 77 E B st
over Three Months B ={E B iRITE 10,080 9,973
Cash and Cash Equivalents HeRBESEEY 5 6 7
10,118 10,018
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts Payable FESBRRR 13 24
NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS THBEAGROFEFEE 10,105 9,994
Represented by: FRFRIEDE :
CAPITAL ACCOUNT BARERE 4 10,105 9,994

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Trustees

on 28 June 2013

M 2013%F 6 A28H
HETZESMRRRERE

Mr. Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP
Chairman

Board of Trustees
BRAZI% 4%, BBS, JP
EEEEgXE

The notes on page 85 to page 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
JBNESSEEE 0 HE 2 MERAU KRR 2 —FD ©
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BE2013F3ASTHLEFETHEN RN EFEESD®R

Note 2013 2012
FiaE HK$'000 HK$’'000
INVESTMENT RETURN BEER
Interest Income FEUWA 2(c) 147 117
INVESTMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  RER{THEH
Administration and Accountancy Fees THRETER 10 10
Audit Fees E%ER 13 12
Miscellaneous Expenses MIER S 4 4
Actuarial Fee BEMLEER 9 =
36 26
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PAYMENTS BAREFZH = (734)
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS ARETHBRLSRE
AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR TBEERMGRD) 4 111 (643)

The notes on page 85 to page 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JIBNE S HEF IO AZMERAMBRER 2 —87 °
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BE2013F3A31MBLEEENRERER

Note 2013 2012
By =t HK$’000 HK$’000
Operating Activities EEEE
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets Available EHEANSRNEEE
for Benefits #m, CEA) 111 (643)
Adjustment for Interest Income FE WA (147) (117)
Operating Result Before Changes in EEEEREAZ
Working Capital EEEE (36) (760)
Decrease in Accounts Receivable FE U BR TR 2 6 3
Decrease in Accounts Payable FEASBRFOR A (11) -
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities EETEFMACESEE (41) (757)
Investing Activities RETH
(Increase)/Decrease in Bank Deposits with FEHBERE Bt
Original Maturity over Three Months B =18 B HRITER
(3gm) (107) 641
Interest Income FIEUWA 147 117
Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities RETEFEELEZ
RERH 40 758
Net (Decrease)/Increase in HeERRESLEWF
Cash and Cash Equivalents CGRi4) /& hn (1) 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents FOHRERBAESEEY
at the Beginning of the Year 2(e) &5 7 6
Cash and Cash Equivalents FRESREESEEY
at the End of the Year 2(e) &5 6 7

The notes on page 85 to page 90 form an integral part of these financial statements.
JBNESSEEE 0 HE 2 MERAU KRR 2 —FD ©

84 | Vocational Training Council Retirement and Death Gratuity Scheme for Minor Staff B 3 3| 48 /5 ] 4% (& 8 B Kk & &Il & 5+ &)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 & B

(a)

(b)

STATUS OF THE SCHEME
ar 8RR

In accordance with the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (ORSO), a Board of Trustees has been set up since
11 May 1995 to govern the fund of the Vocational Training Council Retirement and Death Gratuity Scheme for Minor Staff (the
Scheme). The Scheme which is a defined benefit scheme, has been registered under ORSO as an approved retirement scheme
and exemption has been granted by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

B2 R B RIBCRZER NG EURGD (BRG] - R1995F 5811 ARV EAZEES (BBIEAN)  EEEEREINRE
VAREERRESREBMSTE (FETE) NES - AHEBERAERATE  ERBEAZMARTRAEFE - LEER
FIMAEETEAEERHRER -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FEEFTER

Statement of Compliance
EREH

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong as applicable to retirement schemes and the requirement of ORSO. A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Scheme is set out below.

REBHRRDIRBEBSTHMASAGAEEAN(EBMBRESER) (BRAEERZEANEBUBREELL) (BB
B ERRER) - BRANERGTENEEARSTRARKOINER) MERN o AFTEFMRANEIESFHBERBMAT -

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Scheme. However, none of these developments are relevant to the Scheme’s financial statements.
ERASTMASE AMRASHBBEXERS TRAKANELHIERBITIKE B K REEA) o L EWEFTRZ
BRI B HRFIIBEE -

The Scheme has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (See
Note 8).
REFEARBRAERS B NARERNFTEARZE GFSHMEES) ©

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
MBRRNEREE

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost basis. The net assets of the
Scheme, as disclosed on the Statement of Net Assets Available for Benefits, are shown before the deduction of any obligations
to pay retirement benefits in the future.

AHBHERRUBEEANERTEEE - R AHEFCRNFEERK | FIREFENEEFE - ATKRBRXTEME
RBRIEE AT ENEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
FTESE B (A

Interest Income
FE U A

Interest on time deposits is accounted for on an accrual basis.

EHERFASANE BT EENE -
Benefit Payments

B

Benefit payments represent all benefit claims determined by the Trustees to be valid in respect of the Scheme during the year
for members who have left the Scheme.

BAXHIEEZEARRE  ZFARRETEIREMBEANERRE -

Cash and Cash Equivalents
RERBEEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and time deposits with banks, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.

BehBSSEYERRTERRENFN  FHHAFEAE AT TEE=@EA -

Obligations to Pay Retirement Benefits in the Future
A& TRABANHNEE

Details of the Scheme’s obligations to pay retirement benefits in the future are set out in Note 6. No provision is made in the
financial statements for this liability except to the extent indicated under Note 2(d). The terms “aggregate past service liability”
and “aggregate vested liability” as used in Note 6, are defined as follows:

TEEE BRI NMNBRRERNNEETFE 0 SHNAMEES o BRITE2(d) IR WRERBSLEEEENHRKPIRBER - Mt
dofit [BERBEAGEI R BEEEEINERNIT

Aggregate Past Service Liability
BERBEGE

The aggregate past service liability represents the value on the date of valuation by the actuary of the aggregate of the
members’ benefit entitlements under the Scheme having regard to the qualifying service of the members, the actuary
having made a reasonable allowance for the effects of mortality, future salary increases, rates of withdrawal from
service and other such factors considered to be relevant.

[BERBEEE] EREMEMERRTEIANERBHEREEZNENLERENEE - FEMEBETZEER 2
HERENATZNRBEFTE Ve SEMERETE - AEFSEE BEBASLERAMBEREE -

Aggregate Vested Liability
BEHEE

The aggregate vested liability represents the aggregate of the benefits, which under the Scheme the members were
entitled to receive on the date of valuation by the actuary, assuming that the members had voluntarily resigned and
thereby ceased to be so employed on that day.

[REREE | ETENEEREMETHEE A EXEATREENENELE  BEMEKRRTERNED BEH
B YRZATBZEE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

(8)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
R =] E-I-Eyﬁi I\,\

Related Parties

BER
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Scheme if that person:
—UATEUTER  ZATRERENAHRKE SHETEEHEE
(a) has control or joint control over the Scheme;
ZEHIS L EESIEE
(b) has significant influence over the Scheme; or
HtBBERTE
(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the Scheme.
ATEINEEEEAS
(ii) An entity is related to the Scheme if any of the foIIowing conditions applies:

HNAUTEMER - ZERRETIEREE

(a) The entity is a sponsoring employer of the Scheme;

ZERIITENEEE ;

(b) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i); or

ZEBRZHR() IR ATHZELEES %

(c) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

R(i)a) WA THZERBEALENIBEZER (FAZEBNILF) TEEEAE -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

BERATHRELRKEENEEERETRERN  AHTRESEZERATHZZEBIATZENRERS °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M aE

3. TAX STATUS OF THE SCHEME
AT BB AR R

The Scheme is registered under ORSO, and is therefore a recognised scheme for Hong Kong profits tax purposes. The policy
of the Inland Revenue Department (IRD), as set out in IRD Departmental Interpretation and Practice Note No. 23, is that
“recognised retirement schemes and their trustees are not considered to be subject to profits tax on their investment income”.

Accordingly, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the Scheme’s financial statements.

sHERBIRPIGEM - BEBRESH PR THRA ST E - RIBFTEBBROEZRTIESIE 23 FAEAMNBBHE - [

ARRAGT IR EZTABRERREWSHRFEH | Ut - TEALBEMBRRDBAIAEHERRE -

4.  CAPITAL ACCOUNT
BEXRRF

The capital account represents contributions from the employer, plus net earnings applied and less distributions. Details of
the changes in the capital account between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below.

ERRFRREZZHR  MFRARNRIAN - EXRRFEFVNRFEZEBNEFHMNT

Net Assets Available for Benefits
at the Beginning of the Year
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets
Available for Benefits for the Year

Net Assets Available for Benefits
at the End of the Year

5.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BERRLZEY

Cash at Bank

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000
FYAHER
TREEE 9,994 10,637
ARETHRBRS R
BEERMCRD) 7lzlal (643)
FA T HFF]
FROBEEE 10,105 9,994
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
IRITER 6 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

6.  ACTUARIAL VALUATION
BEGE

An actuarial valuation of the Scheme at 1 January 2013 was undertaken by an independent actuary, Mr. Wilfred Lau of HSBC
Life (International) Limited, Associate of the Society of Actuaries. The valuation indicated that:

T8N 2013 F 1 A1 HETREME AR YREM EL ASRKE (BKR) BRATNIZERBLESS - 2EHELERSE
MBERBEBEMESEL - HELRET !

Aggregate Past Service Liability
BERBEAR

The aggregate past service liability as at 1 January 2013 was HK$1,037,000. The major assumptions used for this
valuation include rate of interest return at 3% per annum, salary increase of 3% per annum and nil turnover, mortality,
ill-health and retirement rates. As at 1 January 2013, the Scheme’s assets were sufficient to meet the Scheme’s
aggregate past service liability.

BZ2013F1 A1 BB ERBEEEREBE103.78T - FHERMLERFANIERRS | SFNAEEHE
3% BENHEIBIEA3%  BH - tT - ARERERANLEERET - HELRETS > W2013F 1A 118 &
ZMEERUEMNTENBERBEEE -

Aggregate Vested Liability
BEEAE

The aggregate vested liability as at 1 January 2013 was HK$364,000. As at 1 January 2013, the Scheme’s assets
were sufficient to meet the aggregate vested liability and were expected to continue to be sufficient to meet such
liability throughout the three-year period from 1 January 2013. No contribution would be required to be made by the
employer throughout the same period.

BZEZ2013F1 A1 AN AHREEABE36.48T - AELARET R2013F 1818 » sFEMNEE R UENET
%ﬂﬂ/’éﬁ%;ﬁﬁﬁ%  MEtEINEEFRSKEUNE2013F 1 A1 BT EN=FRENEEARE - EXTEEETZIE
WAEERIMHRK -

The aggregate liabilities disclosed above are calculated as at 1 January 2013. The net assets available for benefits
shown on page 82 of the same financial statements are stated as at 31 March 2013. In considering these figures, it
should be borne in mind that changes in membership, contributions and other circumstances of the Scheme between
those dates mean that these figures at the two different dates are not comparable.

M ENEAEERN2013F1 A1 BRFTEREER - BBBREQ2EMHIHBRANRMNEEERLL2013F 3
A31BRFEEER - HRFTENHEER HRESBERAMBERELANEARBETELE  WAEEZEEL
MBIERF - & BRI RASF M LLE -

Financial Report 81 # ¥k £:2012/2013 | 89



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 o MY

(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ERTHE

The Scheme’s financial instruments are carried at values not materially different from their fair values at the year end date.

AEANERTARFEARAMIIRZEEEEAVELIREAER -

Exposure to credit and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Scheme’s operation. These risks are limited by
the Scheme’s financial management policies and practices described below:

SR EEREEETIREERFERRAR - ERTIHMEEERERERITF » ZERMBEAES
Credit Risk
EERK

The Scheme’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank deposits. In respect of bank deposits, credit evaluations are
performed on the banks regularly.

SFENEERBEESRIBRITEFER stEERARTESETN A -
Interest Rate Risk
I 2= [ s

The Scheme’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to investment in time deposits.

BN ZRREREESRRTEHRERNFRESR

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS AND NEW STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013
#£2013F 3 A 31 HILFEC AMEREMWIERRIEER A REBKHNTE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2013 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
BEAMKEBRETED  EBSTHMASE AMEELEITRINEER - BEBZE2013F3A3LALEZFERRER » L
AR E MR PR ©

The Scheme is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Scheme’s disposition of assets and liabilities and its financial transactions.
AERERBLELEITHINREAZHBNEEELHTM - ESBENERAFEASLED > RELRTTENEEEER
MBEMRRELEBERTE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL
AS THE TRUSTEE OF NEW TECHNOLOGY TRAINING FUND (THE FUND)

HEXRIRREAFNEREIES (FRES)ZXTANBLULAMERE

We have audited the financial statements of the Fund set out on
page 93 to page 103, which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 March 2013, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in trust funds and cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Trustee’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trustee of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the terms of the Trust
Deed and for such internal control as the trustee determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
trustee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

AZEM(ULTEBRM) EEBFFHNEREIBEES
103 EHBIRIEIES (BEES) NIKREK  BER
2013F3A31HMEEEBEREBEZHLFENS
HlER  SEESEHRNBEESRERUREIESS

BEHMER M EmEE R -

ZREARMBHRRBAAENSE

HEADK(ERRN) 2R mEBBHRE - USHFES
DHBREHEEMRATFHRRREZEERLREN B
R RHABRRES] - DU R R R R N7 R EREE
o $E R 1T B B A B R SEERIR AL o

REENEE
EMWEEEREEMNVEAHUZSEHBRRFELR
R RMRZREAHRR - ENEBZITARSE - Rit
BAGN - AR E A Al AEE M AR - LA A AR
ENRE  BEAEMALEEHRAREEET -

HMERET BSOS EMI(EBENERET
Fit o ZEEZREMETERRE TR RHT
B UG EREUMBREES T FRENERERR
3& o

F S RATREFUEDNREMBRRTRSERIKE
BRNFTRRE o A E R FBUR R BED 89 &
BREFEHRRFERERM B BRRFEEARER
PULKERR - EFEZSEARE  ZREMEZREZES
WAMBHERUMELEEN QT RRAEBHAEE
& UREHEENFAREF  EENAFHESHRE
BEHNBEMMBRER B TEETEZTARKES
MEFTHRRNSEEREESTAEITHEEY - URFF
B BHRROBEIIHRLGK -

HMHEE  RPESHNENRREEACNEZ AR
PN RIBHER

Financial Report 81 # ¥k £2012/2013 | 91



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Fund’s affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of its deficit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

6 September 2013
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BZE2013F3A3MBHLEFENZEHWER

Note 2013 2012
FdaE HK$'000 HK$’000
INCOME WA
Interest Income FEW A 3(c) 1,570 1,540
EXPENDITURE P
Training Grants Ih=—4: 1 3(d) 1,866 1,907
Auditors’ Remuneration B ET BN S 17 17
1,883 1,924
DEFICITS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
KEERFER
FOR THE YEAR ZHEUW AL (313) (384)

The fund had no components of comprehensive income other than “deficits for the year” in either of the periods presented. Therefore,
the Fund’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “deficits for the year” in both periods.

BRY [RFEFRFIIN > BEERERFAALRBEMAEZERA - ARESH AFERFZ | HER [ 2EBARE] -

The notes on page 97 to page 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.
JHRE T EEF 103 EZMERTMBHRR 2 —87 °

Financial Report 81 ¥k £:2012/2013 | 93



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TRUST FUNDS
AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

2013 3 A31 HEEEEEH R

Balance of Trust Funds at the Beginning of Year FHETESEE
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year REZE2HEINALEEE
Balance of Trust Funds at the End of Year FRETESER

The notes on page 97 to page 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.

PIEINE 97 EEF 103 A Z MR AMBHREK 2 —87 °
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2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
111,410 111,794

(313) (384)
111,097 111,410




BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

2013 3HA31HNEEEER

Note 2013 2012
M EE HK$’000 HK$’'000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Bank Deposits with Maturity FHAEBB—FMW
over One Year RITER 28,000 22,000
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Bank Deposits with Maturity FHAEHBEB=EAK
over Three Months RITER 60,400 89,030
Accounts Receivable FEUL BRIE 4 78 80
Cash and Cash Equivalents HeRBESEEY 5 22,669 579
83,147 89,689
Less: A
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts Payable FETBRIE 6 50 279
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 83,097 89,410
NET ASSETS BEFE 111,097 111,410
Represented by: FRFRIEDE :
TRUST FUNDS EEES
Capital Fund BEARES 105,000 105,000
Revenue Fund WAES 6,097 6,410
111,097 111,410

Approved and authorised for issue

by the Vocational Training Council

as Trustee of the Fund

on 6 September 2013

M2013F9H6H
HBEIRBUZTEABERA AR EERE K

Mr. Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BENREDEE

PREE{=SE4E, SBS, JP

The notes on page 97 to page 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.
JHRE T EEF 103 EZMERTMBHRR 2 —87 °
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

BZE2013F3A3MBLFEFENRERE

Operating Activities

Deficits for the Year
Adjustment for:
Interest Income

Operating Deficits Before Changes
in Working Capital

Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Decrease in Accounts Payable

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
Investing Activities

Increase in Bank Deposits with
Maturity over One Year
Decrease in Bank Deposits with
Maturity over Three Months
Interest Received

Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 April

Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31 March

The notes on page 97 to page 103 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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KEERF

FRIER

FIEWA
EELEESBBAKEEE
FE UK BRIE 2 R
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REEBAZREFE
REFEY
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EHERZ B

HHEEB=EAMN
EMERZBD

2R

REZBMEEZ
REFE

RERBSESEBYWFEZ
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R4B1BNERER
BELEEY

M3A31LEHMNBEER
RELEEY

PIEINE 97 EEF 103 A Z MR AMBHREK 2 —87 °
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Note
By e

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
(313) (384)
(1,570) (1,540)
(1,883) (1,924)
2 1
(229) (13)
(2,110) (1,936)
(6,000) =
28,630 230
1,570 1,540
24,200 1,770
22,090 (166)
579 745
22 669 579




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 & B

(a)

PURPOSE OF THE FUND
eS8 ) AVAS]:Y)

New Technology Training Fund (the Fund) was established by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government (the
Government) to finance a training scheme known as the New Technology Training Scheme (the Scheme). The purpose of the
Scheme is to provide assistance in the form of training grants to companies in Hong Kong that wish to have their staff trained
in a new technology that would be useful to their businesses.

FRREIES (BRES) AEBRSATREBN (BBBAT) R - BB B IENE & (REEIEE) o Z3I5 3
B Em A A RIREINERE - UEREE T EEESHHEBERENHBEI -

The Vocational Training Council (the Council) undertook to administer the Scheme and holds the Fund on trust for the
Government under the terms of a Trust Deed executed on 22 May 1992 between the Government and the Council.

BEIRE (BREEIRE) B EEEZIIFE - WRBEMN1992F 5 A 22 B EHFFT L MEFERZANGR - BBUFTEERES -

TRUST FUNDS
EtEE

The Trust Funds are invested by the Council in the lists of permissible instruments approved by the Government, such as debt
securities, bank deposits and certificates of deposits to generate income to meet the expenditure in running the Scheme.
ERESHABIBUABRHENTTIRETANES  RITFRRFARFSELRE  WEUER - LUXAHETEIIE 85T
EEA -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
ETEEHER

Statement of Compliance
BREBH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Fund is set out below.

AU BBRDEZEBREBSTHTMASAGHEEANE B BREEL)  (BEMEER BT BHBREEL) - (&
BETERRRE) UREBARSHREE) MARKN - XESHKANTESTHRRBEMOT -

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period. However, none of these developments are relevant to the Fund’s financial statement.
BAETMASAME THIIRLEITI(EBMBEREER)  IARSTHHEERERSARAEA - A EPILE
R E & B R R AR 2 185] ©

The Fund has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see Note 10).

RESWRBRAEMESRRA ST BB ERN I ER L2 (F2HMEE10)

Financial Report 81 # ¥k £:2012/2013 | 97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
FTESE B (A

(b) Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
MR RNEREE

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost.

Y BHREABLRANERTEERERE -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
EREFE(EBVBEREEIDN M BHRRE  EEBAFLHSFYESHTBEZEAREE 88 WARIHZHREH
FRHIER et RER - ZEATTREBBRERDEBETIZECREECEEERER TBEBENEMEREMEL  HERK
AETHMRETEAZ RENEEREENRABFEABNER - BRERATREEAINZEMET -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

ZEMFTREBRISFERR - HEETHETBIR BB EHATT RELIEITHFTWERE > AETTENER
H’R BRI EINERRUREE  ABITERNENRUABRFERR -

(c) Interest Income

FE WA
Interest income from bank deposits is recognised using the effective interest method.
IRITERAERNERAERFREAEILER -
(d) Expenditure on Training Grants
EFRRE X W

Expenditure on training grants is accounted for when the training programme has been completed and the related claim
approved.

ERIRETERARZMERZRE  FINRBRTHESER IR PER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
TEEF PR (&)

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents
ReRRELEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
RERRELSEYEERTEFRREREE - FRRRITHERER UREHRESRBUENRE - SLEREVUBRFRES
EHNESHE  EESHHAENERTR > YEBAR=EARNEIE -

(f) Related Parties
BER
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Fund if that person:
WEBUAT AL  BIZATSHERENEFRREEAESHRE !

(a) has control or joint control over the Fund;

BEHRAREFEEE

(b) has significant influence over the Fund; or

HAESHEEARTE | X

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the Fund.

REETHNETEEEAS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
FTESE B (A

(f) Related Parties (Cont’d)
BER (&)

(i) An entity is related to the Fund if any of the following conditions applies:

e fF & T IR —IRRG - BIZEREAESHRHE :

(a) The entity and the Fund are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

ZEREAESER -—H#BRE (AZFLQF  MEARARNEDRKMEBE LA KILEFE)

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

E-EREASERENBHEQARISELE (R BERAKERAZEBETHEZHERNRRNGEDR
E IR

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

MEEBRIIAB—FE=2a&bH¥-
(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

—ERRF=-NERBZGELEX ME—ERRF=-TEHEZHEQR -

(e) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i).

2B ()BT A T B EES

(f) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

R()a) B AL AHEREEAFENAEZER (AZERE LR TEEEBAE -
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
BERIALTHRELFRKERIEHERETRSR  HHAATREEZENALTRZIZEIALTEZENIERS -

4.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
FEW iRTR

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

FENEBYRERBER - FRAKREHEI /IS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

(a)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

HERBEEEY
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000
Bank Deposits with Maturity FEBELR=@EAHN
less than Three Months IRITERER 22,000 =
Cash at Bank and in Hand RITERRRE 669 579
Cash and Cash Equivalents BHEeRERMTRH
in the Cash Flow Statement BHeRIBESEEY 22,669 579

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
FE(SRRIR

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled within one year.

FIENENRERBER—FRBE -

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
EAXEE
The Fund’s primary objectives when managing capital fund and revenue fund are to preserve the principal whilst maximising

investment returns so that it can continue to provide grants for employers to train their staff.

EEERESNRARESNIZERRRAE  ARRBESHFREANRELFUFEFERHESTREMUEINIESE ZA -

There has been no change in the Fund’s capital management policy during the year.
AEENERNEBRKIZHEMNRE -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TR IT A

Exposure to credit and interest rate risk arises in the normal course of the Fund’s business. These risks are limited by the
Fund’s financial management policies and practices described below:
RESGHREEBBRPIREERMNEREIR - BB TIMBEEERRREL ITE  ZEREAKRSGSUES :

Credit Risk
EERB

The Fund’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank deposits and credit evaluations are performed on the banks regularly.
Management does not expect any deposit counter party to fail to meet its obligation.

AEEZFEERBRIERARITER - BRITEEFR IS EHRET  BUEEGFERIR - EBEEHEEZIAES
FRARITHEBITHEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ok MY =

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
THIA (&)

Interest Rate Risk
R = @B

The Fund’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to investment in time deposits.

NZEEBREEREEHEFARTENRE -

Sensitivity Analysis

BRI

At 31 March 2013, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis point in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would increase/decrease the Fund’s surplus and revenue fund by approximately
HK$1,104,000 (2012: HK$1,110,000). The trust funds would increase/decrease by approximately HK$1,104,000
(2012: HK$1,110,000) in response to the general increase/decrease in interest rates.

M2013F3H31H  EFELH THI1% HEtEETE  RXEEWFFAIRARS2HESEHR LA TR
NBEEL110.4B0(20125F : B 11108 ) - ERESZEHRFENTIEREFEZ LFHA TRM LA TBRAH
BE110.48T (20125 @ B¥111.087T) ©

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both derivation and non-derivation
financial instruments in existence at the date. The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

Ltz RS MRRABRAENERENEEEBR AN UXERBTENETELERTANBERTET
Mol%WEH TREEEEBHE TAARREEZETEEEEEANEREEZANREB 2TEM - 2012825
Mt R ARYEAE B Y ZE R ZRAEITHY ©

Fair Value
AREE

The Fund’s financial instruments are carried at values not materially different from their fair values at the balance sheet date.

FEECEMTANREERECEESERANNLIABEREERER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R 2k B &

O

10.

COMMITMENTS FOR TRAINING GRANTS
sl RE A

As at 31 March 2013, commitments for approved training programmes amounted to HK$244,000 (2012: HK$397,000).
R2013F 3 A 31 H » Bt ZFIRENIZFINREEAIETT R B 244,000 7T (2012 F : B# 397,000 7T) °

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
E£ 20135 3 A 31 HIEFEE A MEREREMNEIET RIBEL KRB BRI E

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2013 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
BEAUBHRETIZED  SESHMASE AMBELEITRINIEER  BREBE2013F3A3LALEZFERAREN W
WARRAE FEFRFZ P ERA o

The Fund is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Fund’s
disposition of assets and liabilities and its financial transactions.
AESRIERBELEMEITHANAEAZHBENTEETHME - ESHBENERA/ARABLET  REXESNEEXERY
BRRELEERTE
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For enquiries &5 External Relations Office,

Vocational Training Council
BN RBINEE

Address Hbit VTC Tower, 27 Wood Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
ERBTEE 27T EREIRRKE

Tel &3 (852) 2836 1000
Fax BE (852) 2838 0667
Website #ilt http:/www.vtc.edu.hk

FlEREE
caringorganisation

Awarded by The Hong Koﬂg Cczuncl\ of Social Ser\i\cz
et SRFHER%

(A7 Printed on environmentally friendly paper
D0 sBREDE






OPPORTUNITIES + ACTION « SUCCESS
R i%- -8 % - a1

www.vtc.edu.hk



